GOLDCREST CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: U74999MH1983PLC029408

Registered Office: 3rd Floor, Devidas Mansion, Mereweather Road, Colaba, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400001, India.

Email: office@goldcrestgroup.com.

NOTICE OF NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL CONVENED MEETING (MEETING NO. 1/2024-2025) OF THE EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF GOLDCREST CORPORATION LIMITED (APPLICANT TRANSFEREE COMPANY) TO BE HELD ON
THURSDAY, 10 OCTOBER 2024 AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY SITUATED AT 3RD FLOOR, DEVIDAS

MANSION, MEREWEATHER ROAD, COLABA, MUMBAI, MAHARASHTRA - 400001, INDIA.
(Conducted pursuant to order dated August 12, 2024, passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench)
MEETING:

Day Thursday

Date October 10, 2024

Time 10.00 AM

Venue 3rd Floor, Devidas Mansion, Mereweather Road, Colaba, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400001, India.

REMOTE E-VOTING:

Commencing on Saturday, October 5, 2024
Ending on Wednesday, October 9, 2024
S.No. CONTENTS PAGE NO.

Notice of National Company Law Tribunal convened Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of Goldcrest Corporation 3-7

1. Limited to be convened as per the directions of the Mumbai Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal, in terms
of Section 230(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.
Explanatory Statement under Section 230(3), read with Section 102 of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule 6(3) of the 8-18

2. Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamation) Rules, 2016.

3. Annexure 1: Scheme of Arrangement between Goldcrest Global Trading Private Limited and Goldcrest Corporation 19-51
Limited and their respective shareholders (“Scheme of Arrangement” / “Scheme”).

4. Annexure 2: Valuation Report dated March 5, 2024 issued to Goldcrest Corporation Limited by SSPA & Co, 52-60
Independent Registered Valuers.

5. Annexure 3: Valuation Report dated March 5, 2024 issued to Goldcrest Corporation Limited by ICON, Independent 61-82
Registered Valuers.

6. Annexure 4: Fairness Opinion dated March 5, 2024, issued to Goldcrest Corporation Limited by Vivro Financial 83-88
Services Private Limited, Merchant Bankers.

7. Annexure 5: Valuation Report dated March 5, 2024, issued to Goldcrest Corporation Limited and Goldcrest Global 89-111
Trading Private Limited by Mayur Popat, Registered Valuer recommending Share Exchange ratio for amalgamation.

8. Annexure 6: Report adopted by the Board of Directors of Goldcrest Corporation Limited pursuant to provisions of 112-114
Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act 2013.

9. Annexure 7: Report adopted by the Board of Directors of Goldcrest Global Trading Private Limited pursuant to 15-117
provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act 2013.

10. Annexure 8: Audited Financial Statements of Goldcrest Corporation Limited as on March 31, 2024. 118-136

11. Annexure 9: Audited Financial Statements of Goldcrest Global Trading Private Limited as on March 31, 2024. 137-145

12. Annexure 10: Form of Proxy 146

13. Annexure 11: Attendance Slip 147

14. Annexure 12: Route Map 148




BEFORE THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL

MUMBAI BENCH

COMPANY SCHEME APPLICATION NO. CA(CAA)/103(MB)/2024

FORM CAA.2

Pursuant to Section 230(3) and rule 6 and 7 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamation Rules, 2016)

Goldcrest Corporation Limited
(CIN: U74999MH1983PLC029408)

A company incorporated under the provisions of
Companies Act, 1956 and having its current registered
office at 3rd Floor, Devidas Mansion, Mereweather Road,
Colaba, Mumbai, 400001, India.

In the state of Maharashtra ............ Applicant Transferee Company

In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013
AND

In the matter of Section 230 read with 232 of the Companies
Act, 2013

AND

In the matter of Scheme of Arrangement of Goldcrest Global
Trading Private Limited (“Transferor Company”) with
Goldcrest Corporation Limited (“Transferee Company”) and
their respective Shareholders



NOTICE OF NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL CONVENED MEETING (MEETING NO. 1/2024-2025) OF THE EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF GOLDCREST CORPORATION LIMITED (APPLICANT TRANSFEREE COMPANY) TO BE HELD ON
THURSDAY, 10 OCTOBER 2024 AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY SITUATED AT 3RD FLOOR, DEVIDAS
MANSION, MEREWEATHER ROAD, COLABA, MUMBAI, MAHARASHTRA - 400001, INDIA.

To,
The Equity Shareholders of Goldcrest Corporation Limited
(“the Applicant Transferee Company”)

Notice is hereby given that by order dated August 12, 2024 (the “Order”), the Mumbai Bench of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (the
“NCLT”) in the above mentioned Scheme Application has directed a meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Applicant Transferee Company to
be held for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving with or without modification, the proposed Scheme of Arrangement between
Goldcrest Global Trading Private Limited (“Applicant Transferor Company/ “Transferor Company”) and Goldcrest Corporation Limited
(“Applicant Transferee Company” /“Transferee Company”) and their respective shareholders (the “Scheme”, “Scheme of Arrangement”)

pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”).

In pursuance of the said Order and as directed therein, notice is hereby given that a meeting of Equity Shareholders of the Applicant Transferee
Company will be held at 3rd Floor, Devidas Mansion, Mereweather Road, Colaba, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400001, India on Thursday, the 10" day
of October at 10 A.M. (“Tribunal Convened Meeting” or “Meeting”) at which time and place the said Equity Shareholders are requested to attend
and to consider, and if thought fit, to approve with or without modification, the following Special Resolution under section 230-232 read with
Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force).

TAKE NOTICE that the following Special Resolution is proposed under Section 230(3) read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of
the Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), and the provisions of the Memorandum of
Association and Articles of Association of the Applicant Transferee Company, for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving, the
Scheme:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013, and Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, and / or any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, and as provided under the enabling provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association
of the Company and subject to the approval of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, (“NCLT”) and subject to such
other approvals, permissions and sanctions of any regulatory and other authorities, as may be necessary and subject to such conditions and
modifications as may be prescribed by the NCLT or by any other appropriate authority, while granting approval(s) or confirmation(s), and
which may be agreed by the Board of directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”), between Goldcrest Corporation Limited
(“Transferee Company”) and Goldcrest Global Trading Private Limited (“Transferor Company” /“Company”) and their respective shareholders
and creditors (“Scheme”), which is placed before this meeting and initialed by the Chairperson of the meeting for the purpose of identification,
be and is hereby approved with or without modification and for conditions, if any, which may be required and/or imposed and/or permitted by the
National Company Law Tribunal while sanctioning the Scheme and/or by any Governmental authority.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above Resolution and for removal of any difficulties or doubts, the Board
be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem necessary, expedient, usual
or proper, and to settle any questions or difficulties or doubts that may arise, including passing of such accounting entries and/or making such
adjustments in the books of accounts as considered necessary to give effect to the above resolution, settling of any questions or difficulties arising
under the Scheme or in regard to and of the meaning or interpretation of the Scheme or implementation thereof or in any matter whatsoever
connected therewith, or to review the position relating to the satisfaction of various conditions of the Scheme and if necessary, to waive any of
those, and to do all acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, desirable or expedient for carrying the Scheme into effect or to carry out such
modifications/directions as may be required and/or imposed and/or permitted by the Mumbai Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal while
sanctioning the Scheme, or by any Governmental authorities, or to approve withdrawal (and where applicable, re-fling) of the Scheme at any stage
for any reason including in case any changes and/or modifications are suggested/required to be made in the Scheme or any condition suggested,
required or imposed, whether by any shareholder, creditor, the Mumbai Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal, and/or any other authority,
are in its view not acceptable to Goldcrest Corporation Limited, and/or if the Scheme cannot be implemented otherwise, and to do all such acts,
deeds and things as it may deem necessary and desirable in connection therewith and incidental thereto.”

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that in compliance with the provisions of (i) Section 230(4) read with Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013; (ii)
Rule 6(3)(xi) of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016; and (iii) Rule 20 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Applicant Transferee Company has provided the facility of remote e-voting
so as to enable the Equity Shareholders to consider and approve the Scheme by way of aforesaid resolution(s). The Applicant Transferee Company
has engaged the services of M/s Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt Ltd, as the authorized agency to provide the remote e-voting facility. The Applicant
Transferee Company will also provide facility to vote through ballot paper at the venue of the Meeting. Accordingly, voting by Equity Shareholders
of the Applicant Transferee Company to the Scheme shall be carried out through (a) Remote e-voting; and (b) Ballot paper at the venue of the
Meeting, to be held on October 10, 2024. The Equity Shareholders desiring to exercise their vote by using remote e-voting facility are requested to
carefully follow the instructions set out in the notes below under the heading “Voting through electronic means”.

The above-mentioned Scheme, if approved by the Meeting, will be subject to the subsequent approval of the Tribunal.
Dated this 6™ September 2024 at Mumbai
SD/-

Anupa Tanna Shah
DIN 01587901
Chairman appointed for the meeting

Registered Office:

Goldcrest Corporation Limited

3rd Floor Devidas Mansion, Mereweather Road, Colaba, Mumbai — 400001, India
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Copies of the said Scheme and of the Explanatory Statement and other annexures under Sections 230-232 read with Section 66 of the Act can
be obtained free of charge at the Registered Office of the Applicant Transferee Company on any working day up to the date of the Tribunal
Convened Meeting between 10.00 A.M. to 5.00 P.M.

The NCLT has appointed Anupa Tanna Shah, and failing her, Nita Tushar Tanna, to be the Chairperson, of the said Tribunal Convened
Meeting. The above-mentioned Scheme, if approved at the Tribunal Convened Meeting, will be subject to the subsequent approval and order
of the NCLT.

NCLT has also appointed RAAM & Associates LLP Practicing Company Secretaries, Company Secretary, as the Scrutinizer for the Meeting,
including for any adjournments thereof.

Only registered Equity Shareholders of the Applicant Transferee Company may attend and vote (either in person or through authorized
representative by Proxy) at the Meeting. A registered Equity Shareholder of the Applicant Transferee Company entitled to attend and vote
at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and such Proxy need not be a member of the Applicant
Transferee Company.

In accordance with Rule 10 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, the instrument of Proxy in
order to be effective, must be in the prescribed form and should be duly signed by the person entitled to attend and vote at the aforesaid
meeting or by his authorised representative and filed with the Applicant Transferee Company at its Registered Office at 3rd Floor, Devidas
Mansion, Mereweather Road, Colaba, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400001, India not later than 48 hours before the aforesaid Tribunal Convened
Meeting. Forms of proxy are attached with this notice and is available at the Registered Office of the Applicant Transferee Company and/or
at the offices of its Advocates, Sanjay Udeshi & Co., Advocates & Solicitors, 402-B, Vikas Building, 4th Floor, NGN Vaidya Road, above
Jimmy Boy Restaurant, Horniman Circle, Fort, Mumbai 400 001.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 19 of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules 2014, a person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) members and holding in the aggregate not more than
ten percent of the total share capital of the Company. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a member holding more than 10% of
the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

All alterations made in the form of proxy should be initialed.

The authorised representative of a Body Corporate or Foreign Portfolio Investor (“FPI”) which is a registered Equity Shareholder of the
Applicant Transferee Company may attend and vote at the Meeting, provided a certified copy of the resolution of the Board of Directors or
other governing body of such Body Corporate/FPI, authorising such representative to attend and vote at the Meeting on behalf of such Body
Corporate/ FPI is deposited at the Registered Office of the Applicant Transferee Company not later than 48 hours before the commencement
of the Meeting. Further, the authorised representative and any persons voting by Proxy are requested to carry a copy of valid proof of identity
at the Meeting.

A minor cannot be appointed as a Proxy.

The Proxy of a member who is blind or incapable of writing will be accepted if such member has attached his/her signature or mark thereto
in presence of a witness who has signed the Proxy form and added his/her description and address provided that all insertions have been
made by the witness at the request and in the presence of the member before the witness attached his/her signature or mark.

The Proxy of a member who does not know English may be accepted if it is executed in the manner prescribed in this notice and the witness
certifies that it was explained to the member in the language known to him/her and gives the member’s name in English below the signature.

A registered Equity Shareholder or his Proxy is requested to bring a copy of the Notice to the Meeting and produce it at the entrance of the
Meeting venue, along with the Attendance Slip duly completed and signed in accordance with their specimen signature(s) registered with
their respective Depositories or with the Applicant Transferee Company for admission to the Meeting hall.

Registered Equity Shareholders are informed that in case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder whose name appears
first in the Register of Members of the Applicant Transferee Company, or the list of Beneficial Owners as received from the Depositories in
respect of such joint holding, will be entitled to vote.

The Notice, together with the documents accompanying the same, is being sent to all the Equity Shareholders by permitted mode whose
names appear in the Register of Members as on September 6, 2024, and a person who is not an Equity Shareholder on such date should treat
the Notice for information purposes only.

All documents referred to in the Notice and Explanatory Statement will be available for inspection at the Applicant Transferee Company’s
Registered Office between 10:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M. on any working days till the date of the Meeting and at the venue of the meeting during
the meeting.

Members whose names are recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the Depositories as
on the cut-off date i.e. Thursday, October 3, 2024, shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as e-voting system on the
date of the EGM. Any recipient of the Notice, who has no voting rights as on the cut-off date, shall treat this Notice as intimation only.

The remote e-voting period will commence at 9:00 A.M. on Saturday, October 5, 2024, and will end at 5:00 P.M. on Wednesday, October 9,
2024. During the remote e-voting period, Equity Shareholders of the Applicant Transferee Company holding shares either in physical form
or in dematerialized form as on the cut-off date i.e. October 3, 2024, may cast their vote electronically. The remote e-voting module shall be
disabled for voting on Wednesday, October 9, 2024, at 5.00 P.M. It is clarified that casting of votes by remote e-voting does not disentitle
an Equity Shareholder from attending the Tribunal Convened Meeting, however any Equity Shareholder who has voted by remote e-voting
cannot vote at the venue of the Tribunal Convened Meeting. Once the vote on the resolution is cast by an Equity Shareholder by way of
remote e-voting, he or she will not be allowed to change it subsequently.
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It may be noted that the e-voting facility will also be provided at the Meeting and Equity Shareholders attending the Meeting who have not
cast their vote through remote e-voting shall be entitled to exercise their vote at the venue of the Meeting.

The Notice convening the aforesaid Tribunal Convened Meeting will be published through advertisement in Business Standard (in English
language and translation thereof in ‘Mumbai Lakshadeep’ in Marathi language, thereof in indicating the day, date, place and time of the
Meeting and stating that the copies of the Scheme, and the Explanatory Statement required to be furnished pursuant to Sections 230 to 232
of the Act and the form of proxy shall be provided free of charge at the Registered Office of the Applicant Transferee Company.

The scrutinizer will submit his consolidated report to the Chairperson of the Meeting after scrutinizing the voting made by Equity Sharcholders
of the Applicant Transferee Company through remote e-voting facility and e-voting at the venue of the Meeting.

The results, together with scrutinizer’s report, will be announced on or before and will be placed on the website of the Applicant Transferee
Company not later than 48 (forty eight) hours of the conclusion of the meeting the same shall be displayed on the website of the Company
www.goldcrestgroup.com and on the website of M/s Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt Ltd being the agency appointed by the Company to
provide the voting facility to the shareholders, as aforesaid at evoting.purvashare.com.

VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS

Instructions To Shareholders Voting Through Electronic Means (Remote E-Voting):

(@

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in
order to access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual shareholders holding
securities in Demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and

Individual Shareholders password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The
holding securities in URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit www.
Demat mode with cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi.

CDSL

2) After successful login the Easi/ Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies
where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by the company. On clicking the evoting
option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally,
there are also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/
KARVY/LINKINTIME/PURVA, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service provider’s website directly.

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at https://web.cdslindia.com/
myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number and PAN
No. from an e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate
the user by sending an OTP on the registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After
successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and
also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual Shareholders | 1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of NSDL. Open
holding securities in web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or
demat mode with NSDL on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under
“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your
User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on
“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting.

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://eservices.
nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/

IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https:/www.
evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen
will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number held with
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication,
you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see the e-Voting page. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting
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Individual Shareholders | You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant
(holding securities in | registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting
demat mode) login | option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after
through their Depository | successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service
Participants provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option
available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through Depository
i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding securities in Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending
Demat mode with CDSL a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 and 22-

23058542-43.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in

Demat mode with NSDL Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a

request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than individual shareholders holding in Demat form &
physical shareholders.

1)  The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website https://evoting.purvashare.com.
2)  Click on “Shareholder/Member” module.
3)  Now enter your User ID
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

4)  Ifyouare holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com or www.evoting.nsdl.com and voted on an earlier
e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

5)  Ifyou are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form other than individual and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders
as well as physical shareholders)

o  Sharcholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are requested to use
the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

Dividend Bank | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat account or
Details OR in the company records in order to login.

Date of Birth e Ifboth the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the member id / folio number
(DOB) in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (v).

After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen.

For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.
Click on the EVENT NO. for the relevant <Goldcrest Corporation Limited> on which you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO/ABSTAIN” for voting. Select
the option YES or NO or ABSTAIN as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution, option NO implies that you dissent
to the Resolution and option ABSTAIN implies that you are not voting either for or against the Resolution.

Click on the “NOTICE FILE LINK” if you wish to view the Notice.

After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to
confirm your vote, click on “OK?”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
Facility for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians — Remote Voting

° Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on to https://evoting.
purvashare.com and register themselves in the “Custodians / Mutual Fund” module.

° A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to evoting@purvashare.com.

. After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The Compliance User
would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.



° A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any,
should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

° Alternatively, Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with
attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the
email address viz; office@goldcrestgroup.com (designated email address by company) , if they have voted from individual tab & not
uploaded same in the Purva e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

Process For Those Shareholders Whose Email/Mobile No. Are Not Registered With The Company/Depositories.

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front
and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/
RTA email id.

2. For Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP).

3. For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP) which is
mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending the EGM & e-Voting from the Purva e-Voting System, you can write an email to evoting@

purvashare.com or contact at 022-49614132 and 022-49700138. All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may

be addressed to Ms. Deepali Dhuri, Compliance Officer, Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Limited, Unit No. 9, Shiv Shakti Industrial Estate, J.

R. Boricha Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400011 or send an email to evoting@purvashare.com or contact at 022- 022-49614132 and 022-

35220056.

Dated this 6™ September 2024 at Mumbai
SD/-

Anupa Tanna Shah
DIN 01587901
Chairman appointed for the meeting

Registered Office:

Goldcrest Corporation Limited

3rd Floor Devidas Mansion, Mereweather Road, Colaba, Mumbai — 400001, India
CIN: L74999MH1983PLC029408

Website: www.goldcrestgroup.com



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 230(3) READ WITH SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND RULE
6(3) OF THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATION) RULES, 2016, TO THE NOTICE OF THE
TRIBUNAL CONVENED MEETING OF EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF GOLDCREST CORPORATION LIMITED

1.  Pursuant to the Order dated August 12, 2024 passed by the Hon’ble Tribunal, Mumbai Bench in the Company Scheme Application No.
C.A(CAA)/103/MB/2024, a meeting of the Equity sharcholders of Applicant Transferee Company is being convened on Thursday, October
10, 2024 at 10.AM at the registered office at 3rd Floor, Devidas Mansion, Mereweather Road, Colaba, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400001
for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, approving with or without modification(s), Scheme of Arrangement which provides for
the capital reduction of the Applicant Transferee Company and post capital reduction, amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the
Applicant Transferee Company (“Scheme of Arrangement/”Scheme”). Notice of the said meeting together with the copy of the Scheme of
Arrangement, which has been, interalia approved by the Board of Directors of the Applicant Transferee Company and Applicant Transferor
Company is sent herewith. This statement explaining the terms of the Scheme of Arrangement is being furnished as required u/s 230(3) of
the Companies Act, 2013.

2. The Board of Directors of the Applicant Transferee Company, at their meeting held on March 5, 2024, took into account the Valuation
Reports and the Fairness Opinion and on the basis of their independent judgment, approved the Scheme, subject to the approval of Equity
Shareholders and Creditors of the Applicant Transferee Company. A copy of the Scheme which has been, inter alia, approved by the Board
of Directors of the Applicant Transferee Company at their meetings held on March 5, 2024 is enclosed as Annexure 1.

3. Further, in terms of the said Order, the Hon’ble Tribunal has appointed Anupa Tanna Shah, director of the Applicant Transferee Company
as the Chairperson and failing her Nita Tushar Tanna, Director of the Applicant Transferee Company, as the Alternate Chairperson of the
said meeting, including for any adjournment or adjournments thereof. The Hon’ble Tribunal has also appointed RAAM & Associates LLP ,
Practicing Company Secretaries, as the Scrutinizer for the Meeting, including for any adjournments thereof.

4.  In accordance with the provisions of Sections 230-232 of the Act, the Scheme of Arrangement shall be considered approved by the Equity
Shareholders only if the Scheme is approved by majority of persons representing three-fourth in value of the members, of the Applicant
Transferee Company, voting in person or by proxy or by remote e-voting.

5. The Applicant Transferee Company has filed the Scheme with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai in Form No. GNL-1.

6. This statement is being furnished as required under Sections 230(3), 232(1) 232(2) and 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”), read
with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016.

7. Details as per Rule 6(3) of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016
7.1. Details of the Order of the NCLT directing the calling, convening and conducting of the Meeting.

Please refer to paragraph no. 1 of this Explanatory Statement for date of the Order and the date, time and venue of the Tribunal
Convened Meeting.

7.2. Details of the Applicant Transferee Company and the Transferor Company:

Sr. No | Particulars Goldcrest Global Trading Private Limited | Goldcrest Corporation Limited

1 Corporate Identification Number | U74999MH1994PTC076391 U74999MH1983PLC029408

2 Permanent Account Number AAACV1663M AAACG1938Q

3 Date of Incorporation February 3, 1994 February 25, 1983

4 Registered office address Devidas Mansion, 3rd Floor, Mereweather | 3™ Floor, Devidas Mansion,

Road, Colaba, Mumbai, 400001, India Mereweather Road, Colaba, Mumbai,

Mabharashtra — 400001, India.

5 Email address Email Id: office@goldcrestgroup.com Email Id : office@goldcrestgroup.com

7.3. Other Particulars of the Applicant Transferor Company and Applicant Transferee Company as per Rule 6(3) of the Merger
Rules

7.3.1. Goldcrest Corporation Limited

7.3.1. Summary of the main objects as per the Memorandum of Association and main business carried on by the Applicant
Transferee Company

The main objects for which the Applicant Transferee Company has been established are set out in its Memorandum of
Association. The main objects of the Applicant Transferee Company are set out hereunder:

“(a) To undertake the business as general traders and merchants, and buy, sell, trade, exchange, export, import, deal in goods,
things, commodities, contracts of all types, deal, barter, swap, borrow, lend, assure underwrite, guarantee, give comfort for
pledge, hypothecate, charge, mortgage, procure for or arrange placement of or otherwise engage in India or abroad in trade
and investment instruments of all kinds and types, whether securitized or not, including shares, stocks, securities, debentures,
bonds cumulative, convertible preference shares, certificates of deposits, commercial paper, participation certificates, bills
of exchange, letter of credit, promissory notes, cheques, whether negotiable or not, currencies, drafts, travellers cheques,
factoring of debt, all kind of units, coupons, warrants, options and such other derivatives, issued or to be issued by companies,
government co-operations, banks, co-operatives firms, organizations, mutual benefit societies in India or abroad, to deal in
any commodity market, commodity exchange, spot exchange, for itself or for others, transaction in the nature of hedging, spot
trading, forward commodity contracts, rate swaps, commodity future/swaps, commodity options, futures and options and in
derivatives of all the commodities, whether for the purpose of trading, investment, hedging, arbitrage, or any other purpose,
whether in India or abroad and trade in either as principal, broker, agent, dealer, stockist, trader, consignee or any other
capacity and to acquire membership, dealership, licenses, permits, registrations or such other positions in and of stock, share,
securities, debt, commodity, foreign exchange, bullion, metals, oil including crude oil, gas including natural gas, gems and
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®)

7.3.2.

7.3.3.

7.3.4.

precious stones, grains and pulses, futures and options, merchant banking, financial and leasing, hire purchase, currencies,
credit, savings and loans, real estate, antiques, icons and such other associations, exchanges, organization and bourses in India
and abroad.

To acquire, subscribe, purchase, hold, sell, divest or otherwise deal in securities, financial instruments, financial products,
shares, scripts, stocks, equity/index linked securities, units, bonds, commercial papers, acknowledgements, deposits, notes,
obligations, warrants, government securities, loans, loan certificates, all kinds of derivatives including interest derivatives,
futures, forwards, options, calls, swaps, rights or interest in securities, foreign currencies, carbon credits, financial securities
and any other securities issued by any entity whether for the purpose of hedging, arbitrage or for any other purpose.”

Details of change of name, registered office and objects of the Applicant Transferee Company during the last five years

There has been no change in the name, registered office, and objects of the Applicant Transferee Company during the last five
years.

Details of the capital structure of the Applicant Transferee Company including Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-
up Share Capital

The details of the Capital structure of the Applicant Transferee Company as on March 31%, 2024, was as under:

Particulars Amount (in Rs.)
Authorized Capital

1,01,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 10,10,00,000/-
10,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each 10,00,00,000/-
Total 20,10,00,000/-

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital
56,89,760 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 5,68,97,600
Total 5,68,97,600

Post Scheme Capital Structure: Pursuant to the Scheme, the capital structure set out above shall be subject to changes
pursuant to the effectiveness of the Scheme. The expected post Scheme capital structure of the Applicant Transferee Company
(based on the shareholding pattern as of March 31, 2024) is as follows :

Particulars Number of Amount (in Rs.)
Shares

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital pre merger and Capital reduction 56,89,760 5,68,97,600
Less: Capital Reduction pursuant to Scheme 3,45,305 34,53,050
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital post capital redcution 53,44,455 5,34,44,550
Less: Cancellation of Shares on Amalgamation (Cross holding) 8,41,610 84,16,100
Add: Fresh Issue of Shares on Amalgamtion to share holders of Goldcrest Global 7,27,038 72,70,380
Trading P. Ltd

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital post merger and capital reduction 52,29,883 5,22,98,830

Details of the Promoters and Directors of the Applicant Transferee Company along with their addresses

Details of the promoters of the Applicant Transferee Company are as below:

Sr. Name of the Equity Type of Number of
No. Shareholders Shares Address Shares held
1 Goldcrest Global Trading | Equity Shares | Devidas Mansion, 3rd Floor, Mereweather Road, 8,41,610
Private Limited Colaba, Mumbai, 400001, India

Equity Shares | Zenia Abad Co-op Housing Society Ltd, Little Gibbs 19,43,593

2 Nita Tushar Tanna Road, Mumbai — 6, Maharashtra

3 Anupa Tanna Shah Equity Shares | 144, Jolly Maker III, Cuffe Parade, Mumbai 400005 12,38,718
Equity Shares | Zenia Abad Co-op Housing Society Ltd, Little Gibbs 9,26,598
4 Namrata Tanna Road, Mumbai — 6, Maharashtra
Equity Shares | Zenia Abad Co-op Hsg Soc Ltd, Little Gibbs Road, 2,69,415

5 Hansa Tulsidas Tanna

Mumbai — 6, Maharashtra

The Applicant Transferee Company has 3 Directors as on the date of this notice. The details of such Directors are set
forth as below:

;Z'. Name of the Equity Directors | DIN Address
1 Ms. Nita Tushar Tanna 00170591 | Zenia Abad Co-op Housing Society Limited, Little Gibbs Road,
Mumbai — 400006, Maharashtra, India
2 | Ms. Anupa Tanna Shah 01587901 | 144, Jolly Maker III, Cuffe Parade, Mumbai 400005, Maharashtra,
India
3 | Namrata Tushar Tanna 02753244 | Zenia Abad Co-op Housing Society Limited, Little Gibbs Road,
Mumbai —400006, Maharashtra, India




7.3.5.

7.3.6.

7.3.7.

The date of the Board Meeting of the Applicant Transferee Company at which the Scheme was approved by the Board
of Directors including the name of the Directors who voted in favour of the resolution, who voted against the resolution
and who did not vote or participate on such resolution:

The Scheme of Arrangement was unanimously approved, by the Board of Directors of both the Applicant Transferee Company
at its Board Meeting dated March 5, 2024.

Names of the directors who attended and voted in favor of the resolution, who voted against the resolution and who did not vote
or participate on such resolution:

Sr. | Name of the Director who had attended the meeting | Voted in Favour/ Against/ Abstained from voting
No.

Ms. Nita Tushar Tanna Voted in favour
Ms. Anupa Tanna Shah Voted in favour
Namrata Tushar Tanna Voted in favour

Amounts due to unsecured creditors

As on December 31, 2023, the Applicant Transferee Company had 16 (Sixteen) unsecured creditors and amount due to such
unsecured creditors is Rs. 13,22,32,758/- (Rupees Thirteen crore twenty two lakh thirty two thousand seven fifty eight Only).

Investigations or proceedings, if any, pending against the Applicant Transferee Company under the Act:

No investigation proceedings are pending under the provisions of Chapter XIV of the Act or under Sections 235 to 251 of the
Companies Act in respect of the Applicant Transferee Company.

7.3.2. Goldcrest Global Trading Private Limited:

a)

b)

)

Summary of the main objects as per the Memorandum of Association and main business carried on by the Applicant
Transferor Company

The main objects for which the Applicant Transferor Company has been established are set out in its Memorandum of
Association. The main objects of the Transferor Company are set out hereunder:

1. To carry on the business of buying, selling, reselling, importing, exporting, transporting, storing, developing, promoting,
marketing or supplying, trading, dealing in any manner whatsoever, in the goods on retail as well as on wholesale basis
in India or globally.

2. To carry on the business as exhibitors of various goods, services and merchandise and to undertake the necessary
activities to promote sales of goods, services and merchandise manufactured/dealt with/provided by the Company, in
India or globally.

3. To act as a broker; trader, agent, C&F agent, shipper, commission agent, distributor, representative, franchiser, consultant,
collaborator, stockiest, liasioner, job worker, export house of goods, merchandise and services of all grade, specifications,
descriptions, applications, modalities, fashions including by-products, spares or accessories thereof, on retail as well as
on wholesale basis, in India or globally.

Details of change of name, registered office and objects of the Transferor Company during the last five years

There has been no change in the name, registered office, and objects of the Applicant transferor Company during the last five
years.

Details of the capital structure of the Transferor Company including Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share
Capital

The details of the Capital structure of the Applicant Transferor Company as on March 31%, 2024 was as under:

Particulars Amount (in Rs.)
Authorized Capital

29,00,000 Class A carrying voting rights Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 2,90,00,000/-
25,000 Class B carrying Non-voting rights Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 2,50,000/-
12,75,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- 1,27,50,000/-
40,000 Unclassified Shares of Rs. 10/- 4,00,000/-
Total 4,24,00,000/-

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

51,832 Class A carrying voting rights Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 5,18,320/-
18,557 Class B carrying Non-voting rights Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,85,570/-
Total 7,03,890/-

Post Scheme Capital Structure: The Scheme shall result in the amalgamation of Applicant Transferor Company into the
Applicant Transferee Company and dissolution of Transferor Company without winding up and the consequent issuance
of equity shares of the Applicant Transferee Company to the sharcholders of Transferor Company. As such, pursuant to the
Scheme, Transferor Company shall cease to exist.
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d)

Details of the Promoters and Directors of the Applicant transferor Company along with their addresses

Details of Promoter of the Transferor Company are as follows:

Sr. Name of the Equity . Number
No. | Shareholders Type of Equity Shares | Address of Shares
1 Hansa Tulsidas Tanna | Class A” Carrying Voting | Zenia Abad Co-op Housing Society Ltd, Little 4107

Rights Equity Shares Gibbs Road, Mumbai — 400006, Maharashtra, India
2 | Tushar Tulsidas Class A” Carrying Voting | Zenia Abad Co-op Housing Society Ltd, Little 61
Tanna (Huf) Rights Equity Shares Gibbs Road, Mumbai — 400006, Maharashtra, India
3 Nita Tushar Tanna Class A” Carrying Voting | Zenia Abad Co-op Housing Society Ltd, Little 34,137
Rights Equity Shares Gibbs Road, Mumbai — 400006, Maharashtra, India
4 | Anupa Tanna Shah Class A” Carrying Voting | 144, Jolly Maker III, Cuffe Parade, Mumbai 1,884
Rights Equity Shares 400005, Maharashtra, India
5 Namrata Tanna Class A” Carrying Voting | Zenia Abad Co-op Housing Society Ltd, Little 1,884
Rights Equity Shares Gibbs Road, Mumbai — 400006, Maharashtra, India
6 | Perique Properties Class A” Carrying Voting | Devidas Mension, 3rd Floor, Mereweather Road, 9626
Llp Rights Equity Shares Colaba, Mumbai 400039, Maharashtra, India
7 | Fliessen Real Estates | Class A” Carrying Voting | Devidas Mension, 3rd Floor, Mereweather Road, 133
LLP Rights Equity Shares Colaba, Mumbai 400039, Maharashtra, India
8 | Nita Tushar Tanna “Class B” Carrying Non 18,557
Voting Rights Equity Zenia Abad Co-op Housing Society Ltd, Little
Share Gibbs Road, Mumbai — 400006, Maharashtra, India

The Transferor Company has 2 Directors as on the date of this notice. The details of such Directors are set forth as

below:
Sr. Name (.)f the Equity DIN Address
No. Directors
1 Ms. Nita Tushar Tanna | 00170591 Zenia Abad Co-op Housing Society Limited, Little Gibbs Road,
Mumbai — 400006, Maharashtra, India
2 | Ms. Anupa Tanna Shah | 01587901 144, Jolly Maker III, Cuffe Parade, Mumbai 400005, Maharashtra, India
a)  The date of the Board Meeting of the Transferor Company at which the Scheme was approved by the Board

b)

<)

of Directors including the name of the Directors who voted in favour of the resolution, who voted against the
resolution and who did not vote or participate on such resolution:

The Scheme of Arrangement was unanimously approved, by the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company at its
Board Meeting dated March 5, 2024.

Names of the directors who attended and voted in favor of the resolution, who voted against the resolution and who did
not vote or participate on such resolution:

Sr.

No Name of the Director who had attended the meeting.

Voted in Favour/ Against/ Abstained from voting

Ms. Nita Tushar Tanna Voted in favour

2 | Ms. Anupa Tanna Shah

Voted in favour

Amounts due to unsecured creditors

As on December 31, 2023, the Applicant Transferor Company had 5(five) unsecured creditors and amount due to such
unsecured creditors is Rs. 5,79,14,712/- (Rupees Five crore seventy nine lakhs fourteen thousand seven hundred twelve
only).

Investigations or proceedings, if any, pending against the Transferor Company under the Act:

No investigation proceedings are pending under the provisions of Chapter XIV of the Act or under Sections 235 to 251
of the Companies Act, 1956 in respect of the Transferor Company.

7.4. Other details regarding the Scheme required under Rule 6(3) of the Merger Rules

7.4.1. Relationship between the Applicant Transferee Company and Applicant Transferor Company:

Both the Companies are effectively governed by the same management structure. As on the date of filing the Scheme with the
Hon’ble Tribunal, the Applicant Transferor company and Applicant Transferee Company are either directly or indirectly under
the same control.

None of the Directors, the Key Managerial Personnel (as defined under the Act and Rules formed thereunder) of the Applicant
Transferee Company and their respective Relatives (as defined under the Act and rules formed thereunder) and Applicant
Transferor Company and their Relatives have any interests, financial or otherwise in the Scheme except to the extent of their
respective shareholding in the Applicant Transferor Company and Applicant Transferee Company. The effect of the Scheme
on the material interests of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their respective relatives, is not any different from
the effect on other shareholders of the Applicant Transferor Company and/or Applicant Transferee Company. The details of the
shareholding of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their respective relatives as on the date of the notice is as follows:
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7.3.1

Sr. | Name Relation No. of shares held in | No of shares held in
No. Applicant Transferee | Applicant Transferor
Company Company
1 Anupa Tanna Shah Key Management Personnel 12,38,718 1884
2 | Nita T. Tanna Key Management Personnel 19,43,593 34,137 (Class A Equity
Shares)
Nita T. Tanna Key Management Personnel 18,557 (Class B Equity
Shares)
3 Namrata Tanna Key Management Personnel
9,26,598 1884
4 | Hansa T. Tanna Relative of Key Management
Personnel 2,69,415 4107
5 Tushar Tanna Relative of Key Management
Personnel 61
6 | Goldcrest Global Enterprise controlled by the
Trading Pvt. Ltd. company (Subsidiary Company) 8,41,610
7 | Fliessen Real Estates | Enterprise over which KMP
Private limited exercises significant influence 133
8 Perique Properties Enterprise over which KMP 9,626
LLP exercises significant influence

Disclosure about the effect of the Scheme on material interests of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), Debenture
Trustee and other Stakeholders:

Sr.
No.

Category of the
stakeholder

Effect of the Scheme on Stakeholders

1.

Shareholders (Promoter
and Non-Promoter)

—-

ii.

iil.

iv.

Vi.

Vil.

The Applicant Transferee Company has sufficient reserves and cash and intends to
reduce its paid-up share capital, which is no longer required, by paying off to the
Relevant Shareholders at the value determined as per the valuation carried out by
independent valuers, SSPA & CO. (Chartered Accountants) and Icon Valuation LLP,
Independent Registered Valuers. On the Scheme becoming effective, the Promoter
shareholding percentage would stand increased in the Applicant Transferee Company.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in consideration of the Amalgamation, the
Applicant Transferee Company shall allot equity shares, credited as fully paid-up, to
the members of Applicant Transferor Company, holding fully paid up equity shares in
Applicant Transferor Company and whose names appear in the register of members
of Applicant Transferor Company and / or whose name appears as the beneficial
owner of the Applicant Transferor Company shares in the records of the depository
on a specific record date and at a specific record time, or to such of their respective
heirs, executors, administrators or other legal representative or other successors in
title.

The equity shares of the Applicant Transferee Company to be allotted to the members
of Applicant Transferor Company shall be allotted in the following manner: “149
(One hundred forty nine) equity shares of the Applicant Transferee Company of face
value Re. 10/- each shall be credited as fully paid-up for every 1539 (One thousand
five hundred thirty nine) equity share of Applicant Transferor Company of face value
Rs. 10/- fully paid-up” (“Share Exchange Ratio”).

The shares allotted to shareholders of Applicant Transferor Company by the Applicant
Transferee Company as set out above shall rank pari-passu in all respects with the
then existing equity shares of the Applicant Transferee Company.

The promoters of the Applicant Transferee Company shall continue to remain the
promoters, even after the effectiveness of the Scheme.

Post the effectiveness of the Scheme, the promoters of Applicant Transferor Company
shall become promoter shareholders of Applicant Transferee Company.

Further, the Applicant Transferor Company does not have any non-Promoter
shareholders.

Key Managerial
Personnel (“KMPs”)

ii.

The KMPs of the Applicant Transferee Company shall continue as Key Managerial
Personnel of the Applicant Transferee Company after effectiveness of the Scheme.
Please refer to point (1) above for details regarding the effect of the Scheme on such
KMPs who are also shareholders of the Applicant Transferee Company. Other than
the above, the KMPs are not affected pursuant to the Scheme.

Post Amalgamation the Applicant Transferor Company shall stand dissolved without
winding up and accordingly, they are not required to appoint any KMP.
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Sr.

Category of the Effect of the Scheme on Stakeholders
stakeholder

Director(s) i.  The Director(s) of the Applicant Transferee Company shall continue as Director(s) of
the Applicant Transferee Company after effectiveness of the Scheme.

ii. Please refer to point (1) above for details regarding the effect of the Scheme on such
Director(s) who are also shareholders of the Applicant Transferee Company.

iii. Upon the effectiveness of the Scheme, the Applicant Transferor Company shall
stand dissolved without winding up and accordingly, the Board of Directors of the
Applicant Transferor Company shall cease to exist.

iv.  Other than the above, the Director(s) are not affected pursuant to the Scheme.

Employees i.  Under the Scheme, no rights of the staff and employees of the Applicant Transferee
Company are being affected.

ii. On the Scheme becoming effective, the employees of the Applicant Transferor
Company who are in employment as on the Effective Date (as defined in the Scheme)
shall become and shall be deemed to have become the employees of the Applicant
Transferee Company, without any interruption or break of service and on terms and
conditions no less favorable than those applicable to them with reference to their
employment in the Applicant Transferor Company on the Effective Date. In the
circumstances, the rights of the staff and employees of the Applicant Transferor
Company would in no way be affected by the Scheme.

Creditors i.  Under the Scheme, no arrangement is sought to be entered into between the Applicant
Transferee Company and its creditors. The interest of the creditors of the Applicant
Transferee Company shall not be impacted in any manner.

ii. Under the Scheme, there is no arrangement with the creditors of the Applicant
Transferor Company. Upon effectiveness of the Scheme and as provided in the
Scheme, the creditors of the Applicant Transferor Company shall become the
creditors of the Applicant Transferee Company. No compromise is offered under the
Scheme to any of the creditors of the Applicant Transferor Company. The liability
of the creditors of the Applicant Transferor Company, under the Scheme, is neither
being reduced nor being extinguished. The creditors of the Applicant Transferor
Company would in no way be affected by the Scheme.

Depositors, Deposit i.  Not Applicable. As on date the Applicant Transferee Company and the Applicant
Trustee Transferor Company do not have any Depositors and deposit trustee.

Debenture holders, i.  Not Applicable. As on date the Applicant Transferee Company and the Applicant
Debenture trustee Transferor Company do not have any Debenture holders / Debenture trustee.

7.4.2. Appointed Date, Effective Date, Record Date and Share Exchange Ratio

7.5.

Appointed Date : commencement of business hours of April 1, 2024

Effective Date : The Effective date shall be the date as on which all the following conditions are fulfilled:

a.

The Scheme being approved by the requisite majorities in number and value of such classes of persons including the
shareholders and/or creditors of each of the Applicant Transferee Company and the Applicant Transferor Company as
may be required under applicable laws;

The Scheme being sanctioned by the Tribunal under Sections 230-232 of the Act and/or other applicable provisions of the
Act.

Certified copies of the orders of the tribunal sanctioning this Scheme being filed with RoC by each of the Applicant
Transferee Company and the Applicant Transferor Company.

Record Date : The Record Date means a mutually agreed date to be fixed by the Boards of the Applicant Transferee Company
and the Applicant Transferor Company for the purposes of determining the shareholders of the Applicant Transferor Company
to whom the equity shares of the Applicant Transferee Company shall be allotted under the Scheme.

Share Exchange Ratio: 1,539 (One thousand five hundred thirty-nine) fully paid-up equity shares of Rs. 10/- each of the
Applicant Transferee Company shall be issued and allotted for every 149 (One hundred forty-nine) fully paid-up equity shares
of Rs. 10/- each held in the Applicant Transferor Company.

Summary of Valuation Report:

i

The Valuation Report dated March 5, 2024 was issued by SSPA & CO. and ICON VALUATION LLP (Registered
Valuers), (appointed by the Applicant Transferee Company), describing inter alia the computation of and the methodology
adopted by them in arriving at the price for Capital Reduction. The recommendation of the consideration for Capital
Reduction has been approved by the Board of the Applicant Transferee Company. A Fairness Opinion dated March
5, 2024 was issued by Vivro Financials Services Private Limited, a SEBI Registered Merchant Banker, explaining the
rationale for its opinion as to the fairness of the capital Reduction consideration from a financial point of view.
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7.6.

7.7.

7.8.

The Valuation Report dated March 5, 2024 was issued by Mayur Popat, Registered Valuer (appointed by the Applicant
Transferee Company), describing inter alia the computation of and the methodology adopted by them in arriving at the
Share Exchange Ratio for the Amalgamation. The Share Exchange Ratio has been arrived at on the basis of a relative
equity valuation of the businesses based on the methodologies explained in the Valuation Report and various qualitative
factors relevant to each business the recommendation of the Share Exchange Ratio has been approved by the Board of the
Applicant Transferee Company and Board of Directors of the Transferor Company.

Detail of debt restructuring:

There shall be no debt restructuring of the Applicant Transferee Company and the Applicant Transferor Company pursuant to
the Scheme.

Rationale and Benefits of the Scheme

This Scheme between the Companies (as defined hereinafter) is being undertaken as part of the restructuring plan to
simplify the holding structure through consolidation of the group company and to reduce the paid-up share capital of
the Transferee Company held by the Relevant Shareholders (as defined hereinafter). The Scheme is expected to achieve
various objectives, including:

The Transferee Company has sufficient reserves and cash and intends to reduce its paid-up equity share capital, by
paying off to the Relevant Shareholders, in order to maximize the value of such shareholders. The Transferee Company
had delisted its shares from BSE in 2022, under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity
Shares) Regulations, 2021 (“SEBI Delisting Regulations”) pursuant to which, the promoters of the Transferee Company
had provided an exit opportunity to the Relevant Shareholders of the Transferee Company, under the SEBI Delisting
Regulations at a price of INR 200/-(Rupees Two Hundred Only) per share for a face value of INR 10/- (Rupees Ten Only)
per each paid up equity share. Post the delisting and exit offer which concluded on August 2022, residual shareholders
who still had not tendered the equity shares were allowed to tender the shares during the exit window which was open till
October 12, 2023. The shareholding of public shareholders reduced from 27.14% to 8.26%. The Transferee Company has
a total of 637 shareholders. Out of these, around, 631 shareholders, i.e approximately, 99.06% of the total sharecholders
hold less than 1,00,00 equity shares of the Transferee Company (“Relevant Shareholders™). Out of these, around 353, i.e.,
approximately, 55.94% of the total Relevant Shareholders hold less than or equal to 100 equity shares of the Transferee
Company individually. Of the above, around 262, i.e., approximately 41.52% of Relevant Shareholders currently hold
less than or equal to 10 equity shares of the Transferee Company individually. Hence, a very moderate shareholding of
the Transferee Company is scattered amongst a very dense number of shareholders.

Post delisting, the Transferee Company’s equity shares cannot be traded on any of the stock exchanges in India. Since
there is no trading platform available to the shareholders, the equity shares of the Transferee Company have lost its
marketability. In view of this, the proposed Capital Reduction is considered to monetize/ liquidate the investment made
by the Relevant Shareholders in the equity share capital of the Transferee Company which is otherwise not marketable/
tradeable. It will give an opportunity to the Relevant Shareholders of the Transferee Company to exit from the Transferee
Company at a fair exit price.

The Capital Reduction shall also enable the Transferee Company to save administrative and other costs associated with
having a large number of shareholders.

The proposed Amalgamation will lead to greater efficiency in overall combined business including economies of scale,
efficiency of operations, cash flow management and unfettered access to cash flow generated by the combined business
which can be deployed more efficiently for the purpose of development of businesses of the combined entity and their
growth opportunities, eliminate inter corporate dependencies, minimize the administrative compliances and to maximize
shareholders value.

It will provide for more productive and optimum utilization of various resources by pooling of the managerial, technical
and financial resources of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company which will fuel the growth of the business
and help effectively address the growing competition.

It will result in economies of scale, reduction in overheads including administrative, managerial and other expenditure,
operational rationalization, organizational efficiency and optimal utilization of resources by elimination of unnecessary
duplication of activities and related costs which will in turn promote maximization of stakeholders value.

It will result in reduction in the multiplicity of legal and regulatory compliances required at present to be separately
carried out by the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company.

This Scheme would be in the interest of the Companies, their respective shareholders, creditors, employees, and other
stakeholders and will not be prejudicial to the interest of any concerned shareholders or creditors or general public at large.

Details of approvals, sanctions or no-objection(s) from regulatory or any other governmental authorities in relation to
the Scheme.

i

The Applicant Transferee Company and Applicant Transferor Company have filed a joint application before the Mumbai
Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal for the sanction of the Scheme under sections 230 to 232 read with section
66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Hon’ble Tribunal has given directions to, inter
alia, convene the meeting of Equity Shareholders of the Applicant Transferee Company, vide order dated August 12,
2024.

The Companies will obtain such other approvals/sanctions/no objection(s) from regulatory or other governmental
authorities in respect of the Scheme as may be required in accordance with law.
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7.9. Description and Salient Features of the Scheme of Arrangement:

a.

1.1

The Scheme envisages Capital Reduction of the Applicant Transferee Company in compliance with the provisions of
Sections 230-232 read with Section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Capital Reduction with be effective from the
Appointed Date but will be operative from the Effective Date.

The Scheme also envisages amalgamation of Applicant Transferor Company with the Applicant Transferee Company in
compliance with the provisions of Section 2(1B) of the IT Act.

“Appointed Date” means the commencement of business hours of April 1, 2024 or such other date as may be decided
by the Board of Directors as applicable, of the Transferor Company and Board of Directors of the Transferee Company
or such date as may be approved by the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai bench and which is acceptable to the
Board of Directors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company.

The following points are reproduced as per the Scheme of Arrangement are numbered according to the Scheme of
Arrangement:

“Undertaking of the Transferor Company” shall mean and include the whole of the Transferor Company, as a going
concern with all its assets, rights, licenses and powers, and all its debts, outstandings, liabilities, duties and obligations
and employees as on the Appointed Date including, but not limited to, the following:

All the assets and properties (whether movable or immovable, tangible or intangible, real or personal, in possession
or reversion, corporeal or incorporeal, present, future or contingent) of the Transferor Company whether situated
in India or abroad, but not limited to plants and machinery, computers, equipment, buildings and structures, offices,
residential and other premises, including all tangible and intangible assets, stock in trade, capital work in progress,
sundry debtors, furniture, fixtures, interiors, office equipment, vehicles, appliances, accessories, deposits, all stocks,
assets, investments of all kinds (including shares, scripts, subsidiaries, stocks, bonds, debentures stocks, units or pass
through certificates) including shares or other securities held by the Transferor Company, cash balances or deposits
with banks, cheques on hand, loans, advances, contingent rights or benefits, book debts, receivables, actionable claims,
earnest moneys, advances or deposits paid by the Transferor Company financial assets, leases (including but not limited
to lease rights of the Transferor Company), hire purchase contracts and assets, lending contracts, rights and benefits
under any agreement, benefit of any security arrangements or under any guarantees, reversions, powers, bids, tenders,
letters of intent, expressions of interest, development rights (whether vested or potential and whether under agreements or
otherwise), municipal permissions, tenancies or license in relation to the office and /or residential properties (including
for the employees or other persons), guest houses, godowns, warehouses, licenses, fixed and other assets, intangible
assets (including but not limited to software), trade and service names and marks, patents, copyrights, designs and other
intellectual property rights of any nature whatsoever, rights to use and avail of telephones, telexes, facsimile, email,
internet, leased line connections and installations, utilities, electricity and other services, reserves, provisions, funds,
benefits of assets or properties or other interest held in trust, registrations, contracts, engagements, arrangements of all
kind, privileges and all other rights, title, interests, other benefits (including tax benefits), assets held by or relating to
the Transferor Company employee benefit plan, export incentives accrued, derivative instruments, forward contracts,
insurance claims receivable, tax holiday benefit, incentives, credits (including tax credits), minimum alternative tax credit
entitlement, tax losses, rights, easements, privileges, liberties and advantages of whatsoever nature and wheresoever
situate belonging to or in the ownership, power or possession and in the control of or vested in or granted in favour of or
enjoyed by the Transferor Company or in connection with or relating to the Transferor Company and all other interests of
whatsoever nature belonging to or in the ownership, power, possession or the control of or vested in or granted in favour
of or held for the benefit of or enjoyed by the Transferor Company in each case, whether in India or abroad;

All agreements, rights, contracts, entitlements, licenses, permits, permissions, incentives, approvals, registrations, tax
deferrals and benefits, subsidies, concessions, grants, rights, claims, leases, tenancy rights, liberties, special status and
other benefits or privileges and claims as to any patents, trademarks, designs, quotas, rights, engagements, arrangements,

authorities, allotments, security arrangements, benefits of any guarantees, reversions, powers and all other approvals of
every kind, nature and description whatsoever relating to the Transferor Company s business activities and operations;

All Intellectual Property Rights, engineering and process information, software licenses (whether proprietary or otherwise),
drawings, records, files, books, records, files, drawings, papers, computer programs, manuals, data, catalogues, sales
and advertising material, lists of present and former customers and suppliers, customer credit information, customer
pricing information, other customer information and all other records and documents, whether in physical or electronic
form, relating to the business activities and operations of the Transferor Company;,

Permissions approval for commissioning of project and other licenses or clearances granted/ issued/ given by any
Governmental Authority organizations or companies, allotments, approvals, consents, concessions, clearances, credits,
awards, sanctions, exemptions, subsidies, registrations, no-objection certificates, permits, quotas, rights, entitlements,
authorisation, applications made for obtaining all or any of the aforesaid, pre-qualifications, bid acceptances, tenders,
certificates, tenancies, trade names, trademarks, service marks, copyrights, logos, corporate names, brand names,
domain names, privileges and benefits of/ arising out of all contracts, agreements, applications and arrangements
and all other rights including lease rights, powers and facilities of every kind and description whatsoever, equipment,
installations and utilities such as electricity, water and other service connections, all benefits including subsidies, grants,
incentives, tax credits (including but not limited to credits in respect of goods and service tax input credits, all indirect
tax related assets / credits, including but not limited to goods and service tax input credits, service tax input credits, value
added/ sales tax/ entry tax credits or set-off, advance tax, withholding tax/ TDS, taxes withheld/ paid in a foreign country,
self-assessment tax, regular tax, minimum alternate tax, dividend distribution tax, securities transaction tax, deferred
tax assets/ liabilities, accumulated losses under the IT Act and allowance for unabsorbed depreciation under the IT Act,
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11.

15.

losses brought forward and unabsorbed depreciation as per the books of account and tax refunds) and all other rights,
claims and powers, of whatsoever nature; Amounts claimed by the Transferor Company whether or not so recorded in the
books of accounts of the Transferor Company from any Governmental Authority, under any law, act, scheme or rule, as
refund of any tax, duty, cess or of any excess payment;

e. Rights to any claim not preferred or made by the Transferor Company in respect of any refund of tax, duty, cess or other
charge, including any erroneous or excess payment thereof made by the Transferor Company and any interest thereon,
under any law, act, rule or scheme, and in respect of set-off, carry forward of un-absorbed losses, deferred revenue
expenditure, deduction, exemption, rebate, allowance, amortization benefit, etc. whether under the Income Tax Act, 1961,
the rules and regulations thereunder; or taxation laws of other countries, or any other or like benefits under the said acts
or under and in accordance with any law or act, whether in India or anywhere outside India;

f. All debts (secured and unsecured), Liabilities all guarantees, assurances, commitments and obligations of any nature or
description, whether fixed, contingent or absolute, secured or unsecured, asserted or unasserted, matured or unmatured,
liquidated or unliquidated, accrued or not accrued, known or unknown, due or to become due, whenever or however
arising (including, without limitation, whether arising out of any contract or tort based on negligence or strict liability).
Provided that if there exists any reference in the security documents or arrangements entered into by the Transferor
Company under which the assets of the Transferor Company stand offered as a security for any financial assistance
or obligation, the said reference shall be construed as a reference to the assets pertaining to the Undertaking of the
Transferor Company vested in the Transferee Company by virtue of the Scheme. The Scheme shall not operate to enlarge
the security for any loan, deposit or facility created by the Transferor Company which shall vest in the Transferee
Company by virtue of the amalgamation. The Transferee Company shall not be obliged to create any further or additional
security thereof after the amalgamation has become effective;

g.  Allinsurance policies;

h.  All other obligations of whatsoever kind, including liabilities of the Transferor Company with regard to their employees
with respect to the payment of gratuity, pension benefits and the provident fund or other compensation or benefits, if any,
whether in the event of resignation, death, voluntary retirement or retrenchment or otherwise;

L. All permanent and temporary employees engaged by the Transferor Company at various locations, if any.

The expressions, which are used in this Scheme and not defined herein shall, unless repugnant or contrary to the context or
meaning thereof, have the same meaning ascribed to them under the Act, the IT Act, the Securities Contracts (Regulation)
Act, 1956, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (including the regulations made thereunder), the
Depositories Act, 1996 and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, bye-laws, guidelines, circulars, notifications,
orders, as the case may be, including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof, from time to time.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT ON CAPITAL REDUCTION IN THE BOOKS OF THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY

11.1 On the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company will comply with all the relevant accounting standards as
applicable in relation to the accounting for Capital Reduction, including the following:

11.1.1The issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the Transferee Company, shall be reduced to the extent of the
equity shares cancelled pursuant to clause 10.1 and clause 10.2 of the Scheme.

11.1.2 The Transferee Company shall record the payment to be made to the Relevant Shareholders as on the Record Date 1
pursuant to clause 10.3 of the Scheme.

11.1.3 The amount representing the difference between clause 11.1.1 and clause 11.1.2, shall be adjusted against the following
in the order of preference:
a. Capital Reserves
b. Securities Premium
c. General Reserves
d. Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

15.1 As the Transferor Company shall stand dissolved without being wound up and all the assets and liabilities as well as
reserves shall be transferred to the Transferee Company, on a going concern basis, upon the Scheme becoming effective,
hence there is no accounting treatment prescribed under this Scheme in the books of the Transferor Company.

15.2  On effectiveness of the Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date, since the transaction involves entities which
are under common control before and after the transaction, the Transferee Company shall account for the transfer
and vesting of the Undertaking as per the “Pooling of Interests” method in its books of accounts in accordance with
Appendix C for Business combinations of entities under common control of the Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS)
103 prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and other applicable accounting standards prescribed under the Act.

15.3  The pooling of interests ' method is considered to involve the following:

a. All the assets and liabilities of the Transferor Company shall be recorded in the financial statements of the Transferee
Company at their carrying amounts as appearing in the financial statements of the Transferor Company, prior
to this Scheme being made effective. No adjustments will be made to reflect fair values or recognize any new assets
or liabilities. The only adjustments that are made are to harmonize the accounting policies.
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b. The identity of the reserves of the Transferor Company shall be preserved and they shall appear in the financial
statements of the Transferee Company in the same form and manner in which they appear in the financial
statements of the Transferor Company, prior to this Scheme being made effective, and it shall be aggregated with
the corresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the Transferee Company.

c. The difference between the i) aggregate face value of the equity shares of the Transferee Company issued and
allotted by it to the members of the Transferor Company, and ii) the equity share capital of the Transferor Company,
shall be adjusted in the capital reserve account.

d. The financial information in the financial statements of the Transferee Company in respect of prior periods should
be restated as if the amalgamation had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the financial
statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination.

e. All the existing shares held by the Transferor Company in share capital of the Transferee Company as on the
Effective Date, shall stand cancelled, without any further act or deed, upon the Scheme becoming effective. In lieu
thereof no allotment of any shares or any payment shall be made to any person whatsoever. The difference between
the carrying amount in the books of the Transferor Company of its investment in the shares of the Transferee
Company which shall stand cancelled in terms of this Scheme and the aggregate face value of such shares shall,
subject to the other provisions contained herein, be adjusted against the capital reserve account of the Transferee
Company.

f. The reduction as mentioned in above clause, in the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of Transferee
Company shall be effected as an integral part of the Scheme and in accordance with the provisions of Section 66
and/or any other applicable provisions of the Act and rule and regulations framed thereunder without any further
act or deed on the part of Transferee Company. The order of the Hon ’ble NCLT, Mumbai sanctioning this Scheme,
shall also be deemed to be orders passed under Section 66(3) of the Act for the purpose of confirming the reduction.
Notwithstanding the reduction in the share capital, Transferee Company shall not be required to add words “And
Reduced” as suffix to its name and such use is dispensed with.

g. To the extent that there are inter-corporate loans/trade deposits, debentures, debt securities or balances between
the Transferor Company inter se and/or the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, the obligation in
respect thereof shall come to an end and corresponding effect shall be given in the books of account and the records
of the Transferee Company for the reduction / netting of any assets or liabilities, as the case may be. Difference,
if any, arising upon such cancellation, shall be credited or debited, as the case may be, to the reserve of the
Transferee Company.

h. The Scheme set out herein in its present form or with any modification(s) or amendment(s) approved, imposed
or directed by the Tribunals or any other Governmental Authority shall be effective from the Appointed Date but
shall be operative from the Effective Date. However, if the Ind AS 103 require the amalgamation to be accounted
with effect from a different date, then it would be accounted as per the requirements of Ind AS 103, for accounting
purpose, to be compliant with the Indian accounting standards. For regulatory and tax purposes, amalgamation
would have been deemed to be effective from the Appointed Date of this Scheme.

i In case of any differences in accounting policies between the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company,
the accounting policies followed by the Transferee Company shall prevail to ensure that the financial statements of
the Transferee Company reflect the financial position on the basis of consistent accounting policies. The difference,
if any, in the accounting policies between the Transferor Company and Transferee Company, shall be ascertained
and the impact of the same will be quantified and adjusted in the retained earnings or another affected component
of equity of the Transferee Company, as applicable, in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 8 — Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

J- The costs relating to the Scheme will be accounted in accordance with Ind AS 103.
23. EFFECTIVENESS OF THE SCHEME

23.1 Upon the sanction of this Scheme and upon this Scheme becoming effective, the following shall be deemed to have
occurred on the Appointed Date and become effective and operative only in the sequence and in the order mentioned
hereunder:

a. with effect from the Appointed Date, Capital Reduction of the Transferee Company shall be deemed to have
occurred, pursuant to Part B of this Scheme;

b. with effect from Appointed Date, the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company shall
be deemed to have occurred, pursuant to Part C of this Scheme, in accordance with Section 2(1B) of the IT Act.

The features set out above being only the salient features of the Scheme of Arrangement as are statutorily required to be included in this
explanatory statement, the members are requested to read the entire text of the Scheme of Arrangement (annexed herewith) to get fully
acquainted with the provisions thereof and the rationale and objectives of the proposed Scheme of Arrangement .

Members to whom the Notice is sent may vote in the meeting either in person or by proxies, or where applicable, by voting through
electronic means.

No investigation proceedings have been instituted or are pending in relation to the Applicant Transferee Company and the Applicant
Transferor Company under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 or under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

The Applicant Transferee Company and the Applicant Transferor Company are required to seek approvals/ sanctions/ no objections from
certain regulatory and governmental authorities for the Scheme and will obtain the same at the relevant time.

17



11
12
13

14

The copy of draft Scheme of Arrangement is filed with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai.

There are no winding up proceedings pending against the Applicant Transferor Company and/or Applicant Transferee Company as of date.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Applicant Transferee
Company and the Applicant Transferor Company, in their respective meetings held March 5, 2024 have adopted a report, inter alia,
explaining the effect of the Scheme on each class of shareholders, key managerial personnel, promoter and non-promoter shareholders.
Copy of the report adopted by the Board of Directors of the Applicant Transferee Company is enclosed herewith as Annexure 7.

Inspection of Documents

The following documents will be open for inspection by the Shareholders as per Rule 6(3)(ix) of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements
and Amalgamation) Rules, 2016 at the Registered Office of Applicant Companies situated at 3rd Floor, Devidas Mansion, Mereweather
Road, Colaba, Mumbai, Maharashtra — 400001, India on all working days except Saturdays and Sundays up to the date of the ensuing
Meeting:

a.

Copy of the Order passed by the Hon’ble Tribunal dated August 12, 2024 directing convening the meeting of Equity Shareholders
passed in Company Application No. C.A(CAA)/103/MB/2024 .

Copies of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Applicant Transferor company and Applicant Transferee
Company;

Copy of Audited Financial Statements of the Applicant Transferor Company and the Applicant Transferee Company for the year ended
March 31st, 2024;

Copy of Scheme of Arrangement;

Copy of Valuation Report dated March 5, 2024 obtained from SSPA & CO. and ICON Valuation LLP (Registered Valuers) and the
fairness opinion dated March 5, 2024 provided by independent merchant banker, Vivro Financials Services Private Limited;

Copy of Valuation report dated March 5, 2024 obtained from registered Valuer, Mayur Popat for determining the share exchange ratio;

The certificate issued by the statutory auditor of the Applicant Transferee Company to the effect that the accounting treatment proposed
in the Scheme of Arrangement is in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013;

Copy of contracts or agreements material to the amalgamation, if any;

Copy of Form No. GNL-1 fled by the respective Companies with the concerned Registrar of Companies along with challans,
evidencing fling of the Scheme;

Copies of the Board resolutions dated March Sth, 2022, passed by the respective Board of Directors of the Companies approving the
Scheme;

Such other information or documents as the Board or management believes necessary and relevant for making decision for or against
the Scheme of Arrangement.

A copy of the Scheme of Arrangement, Explanatory Statement and Form of Proxy and Attendance Slip may also be obtained from the Registered
Office of the Applicant Transferee Company and / or at the office of the advocate Sanjay Udeshi & Co., Advocates & Solicitors at 402-B,
Vikas Building, 4th Floor, NGN Vaidya Road, above Jimmy Boy Restaurant, Horniman Circle, Fort, Mumbai 400 001

Dated this 6™ September 2024 at Mumbai

SD/-

Anupa Tanna Shah
DIN 01587901
Chairperson appointed for the meeting

Registered Office:
Goldcrest Corporation Limited
3rd Floor Devidas Mansion, Mereweather Road, Colaba, Mumbai — 400001, India

Enclosures: As above.
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Annexure - 1

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT
BETWEEN

GOLDCREST GLOBAL TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
(“TRANSFEROR COMPANY” OR “GGTPL’)

AND

GOLDCREST CORPORATION LIMITED
(“TRANSFEREE COMPANY” OR “GCL”)

AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS
UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 READ WITH SECTION 66 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ALONG
WITH APPLICABLE RULES MADE THEREUNDER
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1. PREAMBLE

1.1  This scheme of arrangement is presented under the provisions of sections 230-232 read with

1.2

2.1

2.2

23

24

a.

sections 66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) as may be
applicable, read with Section 2(1B) of the Income Tax, 1961 (IT Act), for the following:

Capital Reduction (as defined hereinafter) of the Transferee Company (as defined hereinafter),
and;

Amalgamation (as defined hereinafter) of the Transferor Company (as defined hereinafter) with
the Transferee Company.

In addition, this scheme of arrangement also provides for various other matters consequential or
otherwise integrally connected herewith.

OVERVIEW OF THE SCHEME

The Scheme (as defined hereinafter) envisages Capital Reduction (elaborated in Part B) of the
Transferee Company in compliance with the provisions of Sections 230-232 read with Section 66 of
the Companies Act, 2013. The Capital Reduction with be effective from the Appointed Date (as
defined hereinafter) but will be operative from the Effective Date (as defined hereinafter).

The Scheme also envisages amalgamation of Transferor Company with the Transferee Company
(elaborated in Part C) in compliance with the provisions of Section 2(1B) of the IT Act, such that:

all the properties of the Transferor Company immediately before the amalgamation, shall become
the property of the Transferee Company by virtue of amalgamation;

all the liabilities of the Transferor Company immediately before the amalgamation, shall become
the liabilities of the Transferee Company by virtue of amalgamation; '

shareholders holding not less than three-fourths in value of the shares in the Transferor Company
(other than shares already held therein immediately before the amalgamation by, or by a nominee
for, the Transferee Company or its subsidiary) will become shareholders of the Transferee
Company by virtue of the amalgamation.

Upon the amalgamation of the Transferor Company into and with the Transferee Company
pursuant to the Scheme becoming effective on the Effective Date, the Transferee Company will
issue New Shares (as defined hereinafter) to the shareholders of the Transferor Company on the
Record Date 2 (as defined hereinafter), in accordance with the Share Exchange Ratio (as defined
hereinafter) approved by the Board of Ditectors of each of the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company and pursuant to Sections 230 to 232 and other relevant provisions of the Act
in the manner provided for in this Scheme and in compliance with the provisions of the IT Act.

If any of the terms ot provisions of the Scheme are found inconsistent with the provisions of
Section 2(1B) of the IT Act, at a later date, including resulting from an amendment of law or for
any other reason whatsoever, the provisions of Section 2(1B) of the IT Act shall prevail and the
Scheme shall stand modified to the extent determined necessary to comply with the provisions of
Section 2(1B) of the IT Act. Such modifications, however, will not affect other parts of the Scheme.

241 The amalgamation of the Transferor Company into and with the Transferee Company will be
effective from the Appointed Date but will be operative from the Effective Date.




3.1

RATIONALE OF THE SCHEME

This Scheme between the Companies (as defined heteinafter) is being undertaken as part of the °
restructuring plan to simplify the holding structure through consolidation of the group company
and to reduce the paid-up share capital of the Transferee Company held by the Relevant
Shareholders (as defined hereinafter). The Scheme is expected to achieve various objectives,
including:

2. The Transferee Company is having sufficient reserves and cash and intends to reduce its
paid-up equity share capital, by paying off to the Relevant Shareholders, in order to
maximize the value of such shareholders. The Transferee Company had delisted its shares
from BSE in 2022, under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity
Shares) Regulations, 2021 (“SEBI Delisting Regulations™ pursuant to which, the
promoters of the Transferee Company had provided an exit opportunity to the Relevant
Shareholders of the Transferee Company, under the SEBI Delisting Regulations at a price -
of INR 200/-(Rupees Two Hundred Only) per share for a face value of INR 10/- (Rupees
Ten Only) per each paid up equity share. Post the delisting and exit offer which concluded
on August 2022, residual shareholders who still had not tendeted the equity shates were
allowed to tender the shares during the exit window which was open till October 12, 2023.
The shareholding of public shareholders reduced from 27.14% to 8.26%. The Transferee
Company has a total of 637 shareholders. Out of these, around, 631 shareholders, i.e
approximately, 99.06% of the total shareholders hold less than 1,00,000 equity shares of
the Transferee Company (“Relevant Shareholders”) Out of these, around 353, ie.,
approximately, 55.94% of the total Relevant Shareholders hold less than or equal to 100
equity shares of the Transferee Company individually. Of the above, around 262, ie.,

" approximately 41.52% of Relevant Shareholders currently hold less than or equal to 10
equity shares of the Transferee Company individually. Hence, a vety moderate
shareholding of the Transferee Company is scattered amongst a very dense number of
shareholders.

b. Post delisting, the Transferee Company’s equity shares cannot be traded on any of the
stock exchanges in India. Since there is no trading platform available to the shareholders,
the equity shates of the Transferee Company have lost its marketability. In view of this, the
proposed Capital Reduction is considered to monetize/ liquidate the investment made by
the Relevant Shareholders in the equity share capital of the Transferee Company which is
otherwise not matketable/tradeable. It will give an opportunity to the Relevant
Shareholders of the Transferee Company to exit from the Transferee Company at a fair

" exit price.

c. The Capital Reduction shall also enable the Transferee Company to save administrative
and other costs associated with having a large number of shareholders.

d. The proposed Amalgamation will lead to greater efficiency in overall combined business
including economies of scale, efficiency of operations, cash flow management and
unfettered access to cash flow generated by the combined business which can be deployed
mote efficiently for the purpose of development of businesses of the combined entity and
their growth opportunities, eliminate inter corporate dependencies, minimize the
administrative compliances and to meximize shareholders value.

e. It will provide for more productive and optimum utilization of various resources by

pooling of the managerial, technical and financial resources of the Transferor Company
and the Transferee Company which will fuel the growth of the business and help
effectively address the growing competition.




f. It will result in economies of scale, reduction in ovetheads including administrative,
managerial and other expenditure, operational rationalization, organizational efficiency and
optimal utilization of resources by elimination of unnecessary duplication of activities and
related costs which will in turn promote maximization of stakeholders value. '

g It will result in reduction in the multiplicity of legal and regulatory compliances required at
ptesent to be separately cartied out by the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company.

32  This Scheme would be in the interest of the Companies, their respective shareholders, creditors,
employees, and other stakeholders and will not be prejudicial to the interest of any concerned
shareholders or creditors or general public at large.

4, NO ARRANGEMENT WITH THE CREDITORS

41  Under the proposed Scheme, there is no arrangement proposed to be entered into with the
creditors, either secured and/or unsecured creditors of the Companies. The liability towards the
creditors of the Transferor Company are neither being reduced nor being extinguished but shall be
assumed and discharged by the Transferee Company in its ordinary course of business.

5.  PARTS OF THE SCHEME

Part A: Deals with the background and description of the company, Definitions and Share Capital.

Patt B: Deals with Capital Reduction ok the Transferee Company

Patt C: Deals with Amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company, in
accordance with Section 2 (1B) of the IT Act and Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and/ or other relevant

provisions of the Act.

Part D: General Terms and Conditions and various other matters consequential or otherwise integrally
connected herewith.
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PART A

6. BACKGROUND AND DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANIES

6.1  Goldcrest Global Trading Private Limited (“Transferor Company™)

6.1.1

6.1.4

6.1.5

Goldcrest Global Trading Private Limited, was incorporated on February 3, 1994, under the
provision of the Companies Act, 1956, as amended, vide certificate of incorporation dated
February 3, 1994 in the name and style of Valance Investment and Leasing Private Limited.
Further on January 21, 2012 the name was changed to Goldcrest Securities & Commodities
Private Limited and subsequently on March 7, 2018 the name was changed to Goldcrest
Global Trading Private Limited. The Registered Office of the Transferor Company is situated
at Devidas Mansion, 3rd Floor, Mereweather Road, Colaba, Mumbai, 400001, India. The
Transferor Company was formed with an object to carry on the business of buying, selling
goods on retail and wholesale basis. The Corporate Identification Number of the Transferor
Company is U74999MH1994PTC076391

The existing paid-up share capital of the Transferor Company is INR 7,03,890/-(Rupees
Seven Lakh Three Thousand Eight Hundred and Ninety only) divided into 51,832 “Class A”
Equity shares of INR 10/-(Rupees Ten Only) each and 18,557 “Class B” Equity shares of
INR 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each.

The main object of the Transferor Company are as below:

1. To carry on the business of buying, selling, reselling, importing, exponfihg, transporting, storing,
developing, promoting, markating or supplying, frading, dealing in any manner whatsoever, in the
£00ds on retatl as well as on wholesale basis in India or globally.

2. To carry on the business as exhibitors of various goods, services and merchandise and to undertake
the necessaty activities to promote sales of goods, services and merchandise manufactured/ dealt
with/ provided by the Company, in India or globally.

3. To act as a broker, trader, agent, COF agent, shipper, commission agent, distributor,
representative, franchiser, consultant, collaborator, stockiest, kiasioner, job worker, export house of
Loods, merchandise and services of all grade, specifications, descriptions, applications, modalities,
Jashions including by-products, spares or accessories thereof; on retail as well as on wholesale basis, in
India or globally.

Clause 18 of ‘matters which are necessary for furtherance of the Object specified in Clause
III(A)’ of the memorandum of association of the Transferot Company allows amalgamation

of the Transferor Company with any other company or companies.

The shares of the Transferor Company are not listed on any of the Stock Exchanges.

6.2 Goldcrest Corporation Limited (“Transferee Company’)

6.2.1

Goldcrest Corporation Limited (“Transferee Company”) was incorporated on Februaty 25,
1983 in the State of Maharashtra under the Companies Act, 1956 in the name and style of
“Amulya Holdings Limited”. On June 24, 1985 the name further changed to “Goldcrest
Finance (India) Limited” and subsequently on October 18, 2013 the name changed from
“Goldcrest Finance (India) Limited” to “Goldctest Corporation Limited”. The Registered
Office of the Transferee Company is situated at 3¢ Floot, Devidas Mansion, Mereweather
Road, Colaba, Mumbai, Maharashtra — 400001, India. The Transferee Company is engaged
in the business of operation and maintenance of a software development park and trading
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7.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.2.5

in shares and securities. The Corporate Identification Number of the Transferee Company
is U74999MH1983PLC029408.

The existing paid-up share capital of the Transferee Company is INR 5,68,97,600/ -(Rupees
Five Crores Sixty-Eight Lakhs Ninety Seven Thousand and Six Hundred only) divided into
56,89,760 shares of INR 10/-(Rupees Ten Only) each, wherein Promoter Group holding is
91.74% and the balance 8.26% is held by public shareholders).

The main object of the Transferece Company are as below:

(@) To nndertake the business as general traders and merchants, and buy, sell, trade, exchange, exgport,
import, deal in goods, things, commodities, contracts of all types, deal, barter, swap, borrow, lend, assure
underwrite, guarantee, give comfort for pledge, hypothecate, charge, morigage, procure for or arrange placement
of or otherwise engage in India or abroad in trade and investment instruments of all kinds and types, whether
securitized or not, including shares, stocks, securities, debenturss, bonds cumulative, convertible preference
Shares, certificates of deposits, commercial paper, participation certificates, bills of exrbange,‘/e/ter of eredit,
promissory notes, cheques, whether negotiable or not, currencies, drafls, travellers cheques, factoring of debr, all
kind of units, coupons, warrants, options and such other derivatives, issued or 1o be issued by companies,
Lovernment co-operations, banks, co-operatives firms, organizations, mutual benefit socisties in India or
abroad, to deal in any commodity market, commodity exchange, spot exchange, for itself or for others,
transaction in the nature of hedging spot trading, forward commodity contracts, rate swaps, commodity
Juture] swaps, commodity options, futures and options and in derivatives of all the commodities, whether - for the
purpose of trading, investment, hedging, arbitrage, or any other purpose, whether in India or abroad and trade
in either as principal, broker, agent, dealer, stockist, trader, consignee or any other capacity and to acquire
membership, dealership, licenses, permits, registrations or such other positions in and of stock, share, securities,
debt, commodsty, foreign exchange, bullion, metals, oil including orude oil, gas including natural gas, gems and
precious stones, grains and pulses, futures and options, merchant banking, financial and leasing, hire purchase,
currencies, credit, savings and loans, real estate, antiques, icons and such other associations, exchanges,
organization and bourses in India and abroad. "

(b) To acquire, subscribe, purchase, hold, sell, divest or otherwise deal in securities, financial instruments,
Sinancial products, shares, scripts, stocks, equity/index linked securities, nnits, bonds, commersial papers,
acknowledgements, deposits, notes, obligations, warrants, government securities, loans, loan certificates, all
kinds of derivatives including interest derivatives, futnres, forwards, options, calls, swaps, rights or interest in
secirities, foreign curvencies, carbon credits, financial securities and any other securities issued by any entity
whether for the parpose of hedging, arbitrage or for any other purpose.

Clause 22 of the ‘objects incidental or ancillary to the attainment of the main objects’ of the
memorandum of association of the Transferee Company allows amalgamation of the
Transferee Company with any other company or companies.

The Transferee Company was delisted from BSE in 2022. As on date, the shares of the
Transferee Company are not listed on any of the Stock Exchanges.

DEFINITIONS

For the purposes of this Scheme, unless tepugnant to the meaning ot context thereof, the following
expressions will have the meaning as mentioned hetein below: '

“Act” means the Companies Act, 2013, and ordinances, rules and tegulations made thereunder,
and shall include any statutory modifications, re-enactments or amendments thereof for the time
being in force. References in this Scheme to particular provisions of the Act, are references to
particular provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, unless stated otherwise.
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7.13

“Amalgamation” shall have the meaning as defined under Section 2(1B) of the Income Tax Act,
1961.

“Applicable Laws” shall mean any statute, notification, bye-laws, rules, regulations, guidelines,
common law, policy, code, directives, ordinance, schemes, notices, orders or instructions, laws
enacted or issued or sanctioned by any appropriate authority in India including any modifications or
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force. )

“Appointed Date” means the commencement of business hours of April 1, 2024 or such other
date as may be decided by the Board of Ditectors as applicable, of the Transferor Company and
Board of Directors of the Transferee Company or such date as may be approved by the National
Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai bench and which is acceptable to the Board of Directors of the
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company.

“Board of Directors” or “Board” in relation to each of the Parties, means the board of directors
of such company, and shall include a committee of directots or any pefson authorized by the board
of directors or such committee of directors duly constituted and authotized for the purposes of
matters pertaining to this Scheme or any other matter relating theteto.

“BSE” means BSE Limited and includes any successor thereof.

“Capital Reduction” means reduction-of capital of the Transferee Company under Part B of this
Scheme.

“Companies” means collectively the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company.

“Competent Authority” means the relevant National Company Law Tribunal(s) having territorial
jutisdiction in the state(s) in which the respective registered offices of the Transferor Company and
the Transferee Company are located or such other forum or authority as may be vested with any of
the powers of the above mentioned tribunal under the Act for approving any scheme of
arrangement, compromise ot reconstruction of a company under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act.

“Effective Date” means the date on which the last of the conditions in Clause 25 of this Scheme
are complied with and all the parts of this Scheme are made effective with effect from the
Appointed Date.

“Eligible Members” has the meaning given to it in clause 13.1 of this Scheme.

“Governmental Authority” means any applicable Central, State of Local Government, statutoty,
regulatoty, departmental or public body or authority of relevant jurisdiction, legislative body or
administrative authority, agency or commission or any Coutt, Trbunal, board, bureau or
instrumentality thereof including Securities and Exchange Boatd of India, Stock Exchanges,
Registrar of Companies, Official Liquidators, Regional Directors, Foreign Investment Promotion
Board, Reserve Bank of India, Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India or
arbitration or arbitral body having jurisdiction, Tribunal and other government and regulatory
authorities of India,

"Income-tax Act or IT Act" means the Income-tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961), the rules made
thereunder and will include any statutory amendment(s), modification(s) ot re-enactment(s) thereof

" for the time being in force.

“New Shares” has },eﬂm’e’a’njﬁ.éfgive\n to it in clause 13.2.

iy
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7.25

“Promoter(s)” means Ms. Nita Tushar Tanna, Ms. Anupa Tanna Shah, Ms. Namrata Tushar
Tanna, Goldcrest Global Trading Private Limited and Ms. Hansa Tulsidas Tanna who hold equity
shares in the issued, subsctibed and paid-up share capital of the Transferee Company.

“Record Date 1” means a date to be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company,
for the purpose of determining the Relevant Shareholders of the Transferee Company to whom the
Capital Reduction pursuant to Part B of this Scheme will be applicable;

“Recotd Date 2” means a date to be fixed by the Board of Directots of the Transferee Company
in consultation with the Transferor Company, for the purpose of determining the shareholders of
the Transferor Company to whom the New Shates will be allotted pursuant to Part C of this
Scheme.

“Registrar of Companies or ROC” shall mean the relevant Registrar of Companies having
tetritorial jurisdiction in the states(s) in which the respected Registered Office of the Companies are
located;

«Relevant Shareholders” means all small shareholders holding less than 1,00,000 equity shares in
the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Transferee Company.

“Scheme” or “the Scheme” ot “this Scheme” means this Scheme of arrangement in its present
form or with any modification(s) made hereunder in this Scheme as approved or directed by the
Hon’ble Tribunal and which is acceptable to the Board of Directors of the Companies;

“Stock Exchanges” means BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited
collectively;

“Tribunal”® means the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai bench having jurisdiction in
relation to the Companies and shall be deemed to include, if applicable, a reference to such other
foram ot authotity which may be vested with any of the powers of Ttibunal to sanction the Scheme
under the Act.

“Transferee Company” means Goldcrest Cotporation Limited, incorporated on Februaty 25,
1983 in the State of Maharashtra under the Companies Act, 1956.

“Transferor Company” means Goldcrest Global Trading Private Limited, (formetly known as
Goldcrest Securities & Commodities Private Limited) incorporated on February 3, 1994 in the State
of Maharashtra under the Companies Act, 1956.

“Undertaking of the Transferor Company” shall mean and include the whole of the Transferor
Company, as a going concern with all its assets, rights, licenses and powers, and all its debts,
outstandings, liabilities, duties and obligations and employees as on the Appointed Date including,
but not limited to, the following: :

a. All the assets and properties (whether movable or immovable, tangible or intangible, real or
personal, in possession or teversion, corporeal or incorporeal, present, future ot contingent) of
the Transferor Company whether situated in India or abroad, but not limited to plants and
machinery, computers, equipment, buildings and structures, offices, residential and other
premises, including all tangible and intangible assets, stock in trade, capital work in progtess,

sundry debtors, furniture, fixtures, interiots, office equipment, vehicles, appliances, accessories,

inds (including shates, scripts, subsidiaries, stocks,
ertificates) including shares or other secutities
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held by the Transferor Company, cash balances or deposits with banks, cheques on hand, loans,
advances, contingent rights ot benefits, book debts, receivables, actionable claims, earnest
moneys, advances ot deposits paid by the Transferor Company financial assets, leases (including
but not limited to lease rights of the Transferor Company), hire purchase contracts and assets,
lending contracts, rights and benefits under any agreement, benefit of any security arrangements
or under any guarantees, reversions, powers, bids, tenders, letters of intent, expressions of
interest, development rights (whether vested or potential and whether under agreements or
otherwise), municipal permissions, tenancies or license in relation to the office and /or residential
properties (including for the employees or other persons), guest houses, godowns, warehouses,
licenses, fixed and othet assets, intangible assets (including but not limited to software), trade and
service names and marks, patents, copyrights, designs and other intellectual property tights of any
nature whatsoevet, tights to use and avail of telephones, telexes, facsimile, email, internet, leased
line connections and installations, utilities, electricity and other services, reserves, provisions,
funds, benefits of assets or properties or other interest held in trust, registrations, contracts,
engagements, arrangements of all kind, privileges and all other rights, title, interests, other benefits
(including tax benefits), assets held by or relating to the Transferor Company employee benefit
plan, export incentives accrued, derivative instruments, forward contracts, insurance claims
receivable, tax holiday benefit, incentives, credits (including tax credits), minimum alternative tax
credit entitlement, tax losses, rights, easements, privileges, liberties and advantages of whatsoever
nature and wheresoever situate belonging to or in the ownership, power or possession and in the
control of or vested in or granted in favour of or enjoyed by the Transferor Company or in
connection with or relating to the Transferor Company and all other interests of whatsoever
nature belonging to or in the ownership, power, possession or the control of or vested in or
granted in favour of or held for the benefit of or enjoyed by the Transferor Company in each
case, whether in India or abroad;

All agreements, rights, contracts, entitlements, licenses, permits, permissions, incentives,
approvals, registrations, tax deferrals and benefits, subsidies, concessions, grants, rights, claims,
leases, tenancy tights, liberties, special status and othet benefits or privileges.and claims as to any
patents, trademarks, designs, quotas, rights, engagements, arrangements, authorities, allotments,
secutity arrangements, benefits of any guarantees, teversions, powers and all other approvals of
every kind, nature and description whatsoever relating to the Transferor Company’s business
activities and operations;

All Intellectual Property Rights, engineering and process information, software licenses (whether
proprietary or otherwise), drawings, records, files, books, records, files, drawings, papets,
computer progtams, manuals, data, catalogues, sales and advertising material, lists of present and
former customers and suppliers, customet credit information, customer pricing information,
other customer information and all other records and documents, whether in physical or
electronic form, relating to the business activities and operations of the Transferor Company;

Permissions apptoval for commissioning of i)roject and other licenses or clearances granted/
issued/ given by any Governmental Authority otganizations or companies, allotments, approvals,
consents, concessions, clearances, credits, awards, sanctions, exemptions, subsidies, registrations,
no-objection certificates, permits, quotas, rights, entitlements, authotisation, applications made
for obtaining all or any of the aforesaid, pre-qualifications, bid acceptances, tenders, certificates,
tenancies, trade names, trademarks, service marks, copyrights, logos, corporate names, brand
names, domain names, privileges and benefits of/ arising out of all contracts, agreements,
applications and arrangements and all other rights including lease rights, powers and facilities of
every kind and description whatsoever, equipment, installations and utilities such as electricity,
water and other service connections, all benefits including subsidies, grants, incentives, tax credits
(including but not limited to credits in respect of goods and service tax input credits, all indirect
tax related assets / credits, includi &B‘ imited to goods and service tax input credits, service
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tax input credits, value added/ sales tax/ cntry tax credits or set-off, advance tax, withholding
tax/ TDS, taxes withheld/ paid in a foreign country, self-assessment tax, regular tax, minimum
alternate tax, dividend distribution tax, securities transaction tax, deferred tax assets/ liabilities,
accumulated losses under the IT Act and allowance for unabsorbed depreciation under the IT
Act, losses brought forward and unabsorbed dcpredation as per the books of account and tax
refunds) and all other rights, claims and powers, of whatsoever natute; Amounts claimed by the
Transferor Company whether or not so recorded in the books of accounts of the Transferor
Company from any Governmental Authority, under any law, act, scheme or rule, as refund of any
tax, duty, cess or of any excess payment;

Rights to any claim not preferred or made by the Transferor Company in respect of any refund of
tax, duty, cess or other charge, including any erroneous or excess payment thereof made by the
Transferor Company and any interest thereon, under any law, act, rule or scheme, and in respect
of set-off, catry forward of un-absorbed losses, deferred revenue expenditure, deduction,
exemption, tebate, allowance, amottization benefit, etc. whether under the Income Tax Act, 1961,
the rules and regulations thereunder, or taxation laws of other countries, or any other or like
benefits under the said acts or under and in accordance with any law or act, whether in India or
anywhere outside India;

All debts (secured and unsecutred), Liabilities all guarantees, assurances, commitments and
obligations of any natute or description, whether fixed, contingent or absolute, secured or
unsecured, asserted or unasserted, matured or unmatured, liquidated or unliquidated, accrued or
not accrued, known ot unknown, due or to become due, whenever or however arising (including,
without limitation, whether atising out of any contract or tort based on negligence or strict
liability). Provided that if there exists any reference in the security documents or arrangements
entered into by the Transferor Company under which the assets of the Transferor Company
stand offered as a security for any financial assistance or obligation, the said reference shall be
construed as a reference to the assets pertaining to the Undertaking of the Transferor Company
vested in the Transferee Company by virtue of the Scheme. The Scheme shall not operate to
enlarge the security for any loan, deposit or facility created by the Transferor Company which
shall vest in the Transferee Company by virtue of the amalgamation. The Transferee Company
shall not be obliged to create any further or additional secutity thereof after the amalgamation has
become effective;

All insurance policies;

All other obligations of whatsoever kind, includin;g liabilities of the Transferor Company with

regard to their employees with respect to the payment of gratuity, pension benefits and the
provident fund or other compensation or benefits, if any, whether in the event of resignation,
death, voluntary retirement or retrenchment or otherwise;

All permanent and temporary employees engaged by the Transferor Company at vatious
locations, if any.

The expressions, which are used in this Scheme and not defined herein shall, unless repugnant or
contrary to the context or meaning thereof, have the same meaning ascribed to them under the Act,
the IT Act, the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (including the regulations made thercunder), the Depositories Act, 1996 and other
applicable laws, tules, regulations, bye-laws, guidelines, circulars, notifications, otders, as the case
may be, including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof, from time to time.
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8.1

8.2

9.1

INTERPRETATIONS

All terms and words not defined in this Scheme shall, unless repugnant or contrary to the context
or meaning thereof, have the same meaning ascribed to them under the Act, the IT Act, the
Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (including
the regulations made thereundet), the Depositories Act, 1996 and other Applicable Laws, rules,
regulations, bye-laws, as the case may be, or any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof from time to time.

In this Scheme, unless the context otherwise requires:

references to “persons” shall include individuals, bodies corporate (wherever incorporated),
unincorporated associations and partnerships;

the headings, sub-headings, titles, sub-titles to clauses, sub-clauses and paragraphs are inserted for
ease of reference only and shall not form part of the operative provisions of this Scheme and shall
not affect the construction or interpretation of this Scheme;

words in the singular shall include the plural and vice versa;
words “include” and “including” are to be construed without limitation;

terms “hereof”, “herein”, “hereby”, “hereto” and derivative or similar words shall refer to this
entire Scheme or specified clauses of this Scheme, as the case may be;

a reference to “writing” or “written” includes printing, typing, lithography and other means of
reproducing words in a visible form including e-mail;

reference to any agreement, contract, document or arrangement or to any provision thereof shall
include references to any such agreement, contract, document or arrangement as it may, after the
date hereof, from time to time, be amended, supplemented or novated;

reference to the recital or clause shall be a reference to the recital or clause of this Scheme; and

references to any provision of law or legislation or regulation shall include: (a) such provision as
from time to time amended, modified, re-enacted or consolidated (whether before or after the
date of this Scheme) to the extent such amendment, modification, re-enactment or consolidation
applies ot is capable of applying to the transaction entered into under this Scheme and (to the
extent liability thereunder may exist or can arise) shall include any past statutory provision (as
amended, modified, re-enacted or consolidated from time to time) which the provision referred
to has directly or indirectly replaced, (b) all subordinate legislations (including circulats,
notifications, clarifications otAsupplement(s) to, or replacement or amendment of, that law or
legislation or regulation) made from time to time under that provision (whether or not amended,
modified, re-enacted or consolidated from time to time) and any retrospective amendment.

SHARE CAPITAL

The shate capital of the Transferor Company as on March 31, 2023 was as under:




9.2

Particulars Amount (in Rs.)
Authorized Capital :
29,00,000 Class A carrying voting rights Equity Shates of Rs. 10/~ each 2,90,00,000/-
25,000 Class B carrying Non-voting rights Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- 2,50,000/-
each

12,75,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- 1,27,50,000/-
40,000 Unclassified Shares of Rs. 10/- 4,00,000/-
Total 4,24,00,000/-
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

51,832 Class A carrying voting rights Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 5,18,320/-
18,557 Class B catrying Non-voting rights Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- 1,85,570/-
each

Total 7,03,890/-

Subsequent to the above date and till the date of the Scheme being approved by the Board of
Directors of the Transferor Company, there has been no change in the authorized, issued,

subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the Transferor Company.

The share capital of the Transferee Company as on March 31, 2023 was as under:

Particulars Amount (in Rs.)
Authotized Capital

1,01,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each .10,10,00,000/-
10,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each 10,00,00,000/-
Total 20,10,00,000/-
Issued, Subsctibed and Paid-up Capital

56,89,760 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 5,68,97,600
Total 5,68,97,600

Subsequent to the above date and till the date of the Scheme being approved by the Board of
Directors of the Transferee Company, there has been no change in the authorized, issued,

subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the Transferee Company.
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PART B

REDUCTION OF THE EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL OF THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY IN
ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 230-232 READ WITH SECTION 66 OF THE ACT AND
OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS AND RULES THEREUNDER

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

105

10.6

Reduction of Equity share Capital of the Transferee Company

As on December 31, 2023, the issued, subsctibed and paid-up share capital of the Transferee
Company is Rs. 5,68,97,600 consisting of 56,89,760 equity shares of face value Rs. 10 each, fully
paid up, of which, 3,45,305 equity shares are held by the Relevant Shareholders. The issued,
subsctibed and paid-up share capital of the Transferee Company shall stand reduced with regard to
the shares held by the Relevant Shareholders as on the Record Date 1, by paying back the capital at
a price as mentioned hereinafter.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the
Transferee Company will be reduced from Rs. 5,68,97,600 (Rupees Five Crore Sixty-Fight Lakhs
Ninety-Seven Thousand Six Hundred) consisting of 56,89,760 (Fifty-Six - Lakhs Eighty-Nine
Thousand Seven Hundred and Sixty) equity shares of face value Rs. 10/- each to Rs. 5,34,44,550/-
(Rupees Five Crore Thirty Four Lakh Forty Four Thousand Five Hundred and Fifty only)
consisting of 53,44,455 (Fifty-Three Lakh Forty Four Thousand Four Hundred and Fifty Five)
equity shares of face value Rs. 10/- each, by cancelling and extinguishing 3,45,305 (Three Lakh
Forty Five Thousand Three Hundred and Five) equity shares of face value Rs. 10/- each, to the end
and intent that all the equity shares held by the Relevant Shareholdets as on the Record Date 1 ate
cancelled and extinguished for payment of requisite consideration mentioned in clause 10.3 below.
It is hereby clarified that in the event there is a decrease in the number of equity shares held by the
Relevant Shareholders between December 31, 2023 and the Record Date 1, the reduction of equity
shares shall be deemed to have been effected for the number of equity shares held by the Relevant
Shareholders as on the Record Date 1.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and pursuant to clause 10.1 and clause 10.2 above, the
Relevant Shareholders of the Transferee Company as on the Record Date 1, shall be paid, for the
equity shares held by them and which are cancelled and extinguished, a sum of Rs. 233/- (Rupeesh‘
Two Hundred and ’I'}urTThree only) per equity share of face value Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only)
each, so cancelled and extinguished, as per valuation carried out by independent valuers, SSPA &
CO. and ICON VALUATION LLP (Registered Valuers) and the fairness opinion provided by

independent merchant banker, Vivro Financials Services Private Limited.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective with effect, and without any further act or deed by the

Relevant Shareholders or their nominees (including but not limited to surrendering of share

certificates and / or sending appropriate instructions to the Depository Participants), the shares

held by the Relevant Shareholders shall stand cancelled, extinguished and rendered invalid.
ki e s

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the payment for the Capital Reduction to the Relevant
Shareholders as on the Record Date shall be discharged by issue of cheque, draft, pay order/
watrant or demand draft, electronic transfer of funds, NEFT/ RTGS/ IMPS to the last known
details of such Relevant shareholder, as available with the Company / Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent.

To the extent the consideration for the Capital Reduction is payable to non-resident Relevant
Shareholders as on the Record Date, the Transferee Company shall comply with the provisions of
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10.7

10.8

109

10.10

10.11

11.

11.1.1

from such non-resident Relevant Sharcholders as on the Record Date to comply with the said
provisions. .

In case of transfer requests pending as on the Record Date, the Transferee Company shall dispatch
to shareholders (transferor) and to such person (transferee) from whom the Transferee Company
has received any communication with respect to pending transfer of shares, a form to be duly filled
in by the transferor and the transferee. Upon receipt of duly filled-in form complete in all respects,
the Transferee Company shall discharge the consideration to the transferee or to the transferor, as
the case may be. Pending receipt of duly filled in form, the consideration towards such shares shall
be dealt in a manner provided for in the clause 10.8 below.

Where the payment pursuant to clause 10.3 and clause 10.5 above, has not been claimed by or paid

to the Relevant Shareholders, on account of cheques teturned and / or undelivered’,wéﬁgques not

deposited, consideration in respect of shares pending transfer as on the Record Date, or for any

qther reason, for a petiod of 7 (seven) years, such unclaimed consideration after the said petiod
. J A PREm O LN RA !

shall be utilized in a manner as may be permitted under any law then in force or shall be transferred

T—— e, e

to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

‘The Capital Reduction shall be effected as an integral part of the Scheme.

It is expressly clarified that for the purposes of this Clause 10 of the Scheme, the consent of the
shareholders and the creditors of the Transferee Company to the Scheme shall be deemed to be
sufficient for the purposes of effecting the above reorganization in the share capital of the
Transferee Company resulting in a reduction in the equity share capital of the Transferee Company,
and no further resolution or action under Section 66 of the Act, and/or any other applicable
provisions of the Act would be required to be separately passed or taken.

The reduction of the share capital of the Transferce Company as contemplated in this Clause 10

. shall become effective, in accordance with the provisions of Section 66(5) of the Act, and/ or any

other applicable provisions of the Act and rules and regulations framed thereunder, pursuant to the
filing of the order of the Tribunal sanctioning the aforesaid capital reduction by the Transferee
Company with the RoC and upon tegistration by the RoC of such order of the Tribunal and of the
minute approved by the Tribunal, if any, showing, with respect to the share capital of the
Transferee Company as altered by the order, (a) the amount of share capital; (b) the number of
shares into which it is to be divided; (c) the amount of each share; and (d) the amount, if any,
deemed to be paid-up on each share at the date of registration of the aforesaid minute and order by
the RoC.-Such reduction in the share capital of the Transferee Company as contemplated in-this
Clause 10 of the Scheme shall be conditional upon this Scheme becoming effective on the Effective
Date. If this Scheme is, for any reason whatsoever, not sanctioned by the Tribunal, such reduction
of share capital as set out in this Clause 10 of the Scheme shall not become effective and shall be
deemed to be redundant/shall be nullified.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT ON CAPITAL REDUCTION IN THE BOOKS OF
THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY

" ) ‘
On the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company will comply with all the relevant
accounting standards as applicable in relation to the accounting for Capital Reduction, including the
following:

The issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the Transferee Company, shall be
reduced to the extent of the equity shares cancelled piz.rsuant to clause 10.1 and clause 10.2 of the

Scheme.
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11.1.2

11.1.3

The Transferee Company shall record the payment to be made to the Relevant Shareholders as on
the Record Date 1 pursuant to clause 10.3 of the Scheme.

The amount representing the difference between clause 11.1.1 and clause 11.1.2, shall be adjusted
against the following in the order of preference:

Capital Reserves

Securities Premium

General Reserves

Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss

a.
b.
c.
d
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12.1

12.2

12.2.1

PART C

AMALGAMATION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY WITH THE TRANSFEREE
COMPANY

TRANSFER AND VESTING OF UNDERTAKING

General: Subject to the provisions of Part B of the Scheme and after giving effect of Part B of this
Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date and pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to
232 and other applicable provisions of the Act, if any, the entire business and Undertaking of the
Transferor Company including all the debts, liabilities, losses, duties and obligations, including
those arising on account of taxation laws and other allied laws, of the Transferor Company of every
description and also including, without limitation, all the movable and immovable properties and
assets (whether tangible or intangible) of the Transferor Company comprising, amongst others, all
investments, receivables, actionable claims, furniture and fixtures, office equipment, telephones,
telex, facsimile and other communication facilities and business licenses, permits, deposits,
authorisations, approvals, lease, tenancy rights, permissions, incentives, if any, and all other rights,
know-how, trade secret, patents, trademark, service mark, other intellectnal property tights,
registrations, title, interest, contracts including but not limited to contracts “entered into with
customers, vendors and service providers, consents, approvals and rights and pqwers of every kind,
nature and description whatsoever, privileges, liberties, casements, advantages, benefits and
approvals, shall, under the provisions of section 234 read with sectibns 230 to 232 of the Act and
pursuant to the order of the National Company Law Tribunal sanctioning this Scheme and without
further act; instrument or deed, but subject to the changes affecting the same as on the Effective
Date, be transferred and/or deemed to be transfetred to and vested in the Transferee Company, so
as to become the properties, assets, rights, business and Undertaking of the Transferor Company.

Subject to the provisions outlined above and to the extent that they are relevant, unless explicitly
indicated otherwise within this document, following the implementation of this Scheme and
subsequent to the enactment of Part B, commencing from the Appointed Date:

Transfer of Assets:

a. All assets and properties of the Transferor Company as on the Appointed Date, whether or not

" included in the books of the Transferor Company and all assets and properties which are
acquired by the Transferor Company on or after the Appointed Date but prior to the Effective
Date, shall be deemed to be and shall become the ‘assets and properties of the Transferee
Company, and shall under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and all other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Act, without any further act, instrument or deed, be and stand
transfetred to and vested in and be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in the
Transferee Company upon the coming into effect of this Scheme pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 230 to 232 of the Act. It shall not be necessary to obtain the consent of any third party
or other person who is a party to any contract or arrangement in order to give effect to the
provisions of this sub-clause.

b. In respect of such assets owned and belonging to the Undertaking of the Transferor Company as
are movable in nature or incorporeal property or are otherwise capable of transfer by physical or
constructive delivery and/or by endorsement and delivery or by vesting and recordal of
whatsoever nature, including machinery, equipment, pursuant to this Scheme shall stand
transferred to and vested in and/or be deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Transferee
Company, wherever located and shall become the property and an integral part of the Transferee
Company, under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act’and all other applicable
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sub-clause shall be deemed to have occurred by physical or constructive delivery or by
endorsement and delivery or by vesting and recordal, pursuant to this Scheme, as approptiate to
the property being vested and title to the property shall be deemed to have been transferred
accordingly.

All other movable properties of the Transferor Company including investments in shares and
any other securities, sundry debtors, actionable claims, earnest monies, receivables, bills, credits,
outstanding loans and advances, if any, recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received,
bank balances and deposits (including deposits from members), if any, with government;.semi-
government, local and other authorities and bodies, customers and other persons, shall, under the
provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and all other applicable provisions of Applicable
Law and without any further act, instrument or deed, become the property of the Transferee
Company, and the same shall also be deemed to have been transferred by way of delivery of
possession of the respective documents in this regard. The Transferee Company may, at its sole
discretion but without being obliged, give notice in such form as it may deem fit and proper, to
such person, as the case may be, that the said debt, receivable, bill, credit, loan, advance or deposit
stands transferred to and vested in Transferee Company and be paid or made good ot held on
account of the Transferee Company as the person entitled thereto. It is hereby clarified that
investments, if any, made by Transferor Company and all the rights, title and interest of the
Transferor Company in any leasehold properties shall, pursuant to Sections 230 to 232 of the Act
and all other applicable provisions of Applicable Law and the provisions of this Scheme, without
any further act or deed, be transferred to and vested in and/or be deemed to have been
transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company;

All immovable properties of the Transferor Company including land together with the buildings .

and structures standing thereon and rights and interests in immovable properties of the
Transferor Company whether freehold ot leasehold or otherwise and all documents of title,
rights'and easements in relation thereto, shall be vested in and/or be deemed to have been vested
in the Transferee Company, under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and all other
applicable provisions of Applicable Law without any further act or deed done or being required
to be done by the Transferor Company and/or the Transferee Company, putsuant to the
sanctioning of the Scheme and upon the Scheme becoming effective. The Transferee Company
shall be entitled to exercise all rights and privileges attached to the aforesaid immovable
properties and shall be liable to pay the ground rent and taxes and fulfil all obligations in relation
to or applicable to such immovable properties, upon the sanctioning of Scheme by the
Competent Authority and the Scheme becoming effective. The relevant authorities shall grant all
clearances/permissions, if any, required for enabling Transferee Company to absolutely own and
enjoy the immovable properties in accordance with Applicable Law. Upon this Scheme becoming
effective, the title to such properties shall be deemed to have been mutated and recognised as that
of the Transferee Company and the mere filing theteof with the appropriate registrar or sub-
tegistrar or with the relevant Governmental Authority shall suffice as record of continuing titles
with the Transferee Company and shall be constituted as a deemed mutation and substitution
thereof;

Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, all lease agreements and leave and license
agreements, as the case may be, to which the Transferor Company is a party, and having effect
immediately before the Effective Date, shall remain in full force and effect on the terms and
conditions contained therein in favour of ot against the Transferee Company and may be
enforced fully and effectually as if, instead of the Transferor Company the Transferee Company

had been a party or beneficiary or obligee theteto or thereunder; and the respective lessees and -

the licensees, as the case may be, shall continue to be in possession of the premises subject to the
terms and conditions contained in the relevant lease agreements or leave and license agreements,
as the case may be. Further, all the rights, title, interest and claims of the Transferor Company in




12.2.2

any properties including leasehold/ licensed properties of the Transferor Company including but
not limited to security deposits and advance or prepaid lease or license fee, shall, on the same
terms and conditions, be transferred to and vested in or be deemed to have been transferred to
and vested in the Transferee Company automatically without requirement of any further act or
deed, under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and all other applicable provisions
of Applicable Law including without the requitement of payment of any transfer chatges or any
other charges. The Transferee Company shall continue to pay rent or lease or license fee as
provided for under such agreements, and the Transferee Company shall continue to comply with
the terms, conditions and covenants thereunder;

From the Effective Date, all bank accounts operated or entitled to be operated by the Transferor
Company shall be deemed to have transferred and shall stand transferred to the Transferee
Company and name of the Transferor Company shall be substituted by the name of the
Transferee Company in the bank’s records and the Transferee Company shall be entitled to
operate all bank accounts, realise all monies and complete and enforce all pending contracts and
transactions in the name of the Transferor Company to the extent necessary until the transfer of
the rights and obligations of the Transferor Company to the Transferee Company under the
Scheme is formally accepted and completed by the parties concerned. For avoidance of doubt, it
is hereby clarified that all cheques and other negotiable instruments, payment orders received and
ptesented for encashment which ate in the name of the Transferor Company after the Effective
Deate, shall be accepted by the bankers of the Transferee Company and credited to the accounts
of the Transferee Company, if presented by the Transferee Company. Similarly, the banker of the
Transferee Company shall honor all cheques issued by the Transferor Company for payment after
the Effective Date;

The transfer and vesting of movable and immovable properties as stated above, shall be subject
to Encumbtances, if any, affecting the same; and

All consents, permissions, licenses, permits, quotas, approvals, certificates, clearances, authorities,
leases, tenancy, assignments, allotments, registrations, incentives, subsidies, concessions, grants,
rights, claims, liberties, special status, other benefits or privileges and any powers of attorney
given by, issued to or executed in favour of the Transferor Company including in relation to the
Undertaking of the Transferor Company and all rights and benefits which have accrued to the
Transferor Company shall, under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and othet applicable
provisions, if any, of the Act, stand transferred to and vested in, or shall be deem to be
transferred to ot vested in, the Transferee Company, as if the same were originally given by,
issued to or executed in favour of the Transferee Company, so as to become, as and from the
Appointed Date, consents, permissions, licenses, permits, quotas, approvals, cettificates,
clearances, authorities, leases, tenancy, assignments, allotments, registrations, incentives, subsidies,
concessions, grants, rights, claims, liberties, special status, other benefits or privileges and any
powers of attorney of the Transferce Company which are valid, binding and enforceable on the
same terms, and the Transferee Company shall be bound by the terms thereof, the obligations
and duties thereunder, and the rights and benefits under the same shall be available to the
Transferee Company.

Transfer of Liabilities:

All Liabilities of every kind, nature and description whatsoever and howsoever arising, whether
provided for or not in the books of account or disclosed in the balance sheets of the Transferor
Company shall be deemed to be the debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties, and obligations
of the Transferee Company; and the Transferee Company shall, and undertakes to meet,
discharge and satisfy the same in terms of their respective terms and conditions, if any. All loans
raised and used and all debts, duties, undertakings, liabilities and obligations incurred or




undertaken by the Transferor Company after the Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date,
shall also be deemed to have been raised, used, incutred or undertaken for and on behalf of the
Transferee Company and, to the extent they are outstanding on the Effective Date, shall, upon
the coming into effect of this Scheme, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 t6 232 of the
Act and all other applicable provisions of Applicable Law, without any further act, instrument or
deed shall stand transferred to and vested in or be deemed to have been transferred to and vested
in the Transferee Company and shall become the debt, duties, undertakings, liabilities and
obligations of the Transferee Company which shall meet, discharge and satisfy the same;

Where any of the Liabilities incurred before the Appointed Date by the Transferor Company
deemed to have been transferred to the Transferee Company by virtue of this Scheme, have been
discharged by the Transferor Company after the Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date,
such discharge shall be deemed to have been for and on account of the Transferee Company;

All debentures, bonds, notes or other securities of the Transferor Company whether convertible
into equity or otherwise, shall, without any further act, instrument or deed become the
debentures, bonds, notes or othet securities of the Transferee Company and all rights, powers,
duties and obligations in telation thereto shall be and shall stand transferred to and vested in or
deemed to be transferred to and vested in and shall be exercised by or against the Transferee
Company as if it were the Transferor Company under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of
the Act and all other applicable provisions of Applicable Law and without any further act or deed.
It is hereby clarified that it shall not be necessary to obtain the consent of any third party or other
person who is a party to any contract or arrangement by virtue of which such debts, liabilities,
duties and bbligations have arisen in order to give effect to the provisions of this clause;

All public deposits, debentures or bonds of the Transferor Company shall be distinctly identified
in the records of the Transferee Company for all intents and purposes including taxation and
accounting and shall not be combined with any existing outstanding deposit scheme or seties of
debentures or bonds of the Transferee Company;

All Encumbrances, if any, existing prior to the Effective Date over the assets of the Transferor
Company which secure or relate to any liability, shall, after the Effective Date, without any further
act, instrument or deed, continue to be related and attached to such assets or any part thereof to
which they related or were attached prior to the Effective Date and as are transferred to the
Transferee Company. Provided that if any assets of the Transferor Company have not been
Encumbered in respect of the liabilities, such assets shall remain unencumbered and the existing
Encumbrance referred to above shall not be extended to and shall not operate over such assets.
Further, such Encumbrances shall not relate or attach to any of the other assets of the Transfetee
Company and the Transferee Company shall not be obliged to create any further or additional
security after the Scheme has become effective or otherwise. The secured creditors of the
Transferee Company and/or other holders of secutity over the properties of the Transferee
Company shall not be entitled to any additional security over the properties, assets, rights,
benefits and interests of the Transferor Company and therefore, such assets which are not
currently Encumbered shall remain free and available for creation of any security thereon in
future in relation to any current or future indebtedness of the Transferee Company. The absence
of any formal amendment which may be required by a lender or trustee or any third party shall
not affect the operation of the foregoing provisions of this Scheme;

Any reference in any security documents or arrangements to which the Transferor Company is a
party and their assets and properties, shall be construed as a reference to the Transferee Company
and the assets and properties of the Trapst equpany shall be transferred to the Transferee
Company by virtue of the Scheme. e

Company and the Transferee Corgpatigeipa

<he foregoing provisions, the Transferor
druments-or documents or do all acts
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and deeds as may be considered appropriate, including the filing of necessary particulars and/or
modification(s) of charge, with the jurisdictional Registrar of Companies to give formal effect to
these provisions, if tequired; and

It is expressly provided that, save as mentioned in this Scheme, no other term or condition of the
Liabilities transferred to the Transferee Company as part of the Scheme is modified by virtue of

this Scheme except to the extent that such amendment is required by necessary implication.

Transfer of Contracts, Deeds and Other Instruments

All contracts, agreements, licenses, leases, memoranda of undertakings, memoranda of
agreements, memoranda of agreed points, letters of agreed points, bids, letters of intent,
arrangements, undertakings, whether written or otherwise, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes,
atrangements and other instruments to which the Transferor Company are a party, or to the
benefit of which, the Transferor Company may be eligible/entitled, and which are subsisting or
having effect immediately before the Effective Date, shall, without any further act, instrument or
deed continue in full force and effect on, against or in favour of the Transferee Company and
may be enforced as fully and effectually as if, instead of the Transferor Company the Transferee
Company had been a patty ot beneficiary or obligor thereto. If the Transferee Company enters
into and/or issues and/or executes deeds, writings or confirmations ot enters into any tripartite
atrangements, confirmations ot novations, the Transferor Company will, if necessary, also be a
party to such documents in order to give formal effect to the provisions of this Scheme, if so
required. The Transferee Company may also execute deeds of confirmation in favour of any party
to any contract ot arrangement to which the Transferor Company are a party as may be necessary
to be executed in order to give formal effect to the above provisions. In relation to the same, any
procedural requirements required to be fulfilled solely by the Transferor Company (and not by
any of its successors), shall be fulfilled by the Transferee Company as if it is the duly constituted
attorney of the Transferor Company; and

On and from the Effective Date, and thereafter, the Transferee Company shall be entitled to
complete and enforce all pending contracts and transactions and to accept stock returns and issue
credit notes in respect of the Transferor Company in the name of the Transferor Company in so
far as may be necessary until the transfer of rights and obligations of the Transferor Company to
the Transferee Company under this Scheme has been given effect to under such contracts and

transactions.

Transfer of Employ ces

All employees of the Transferor Company as on the Effective Date shall, become and be deemed
to have become, the employees of the Transferee Company, on terms and conditions not less
favorable than those on which they are engaged by the Transferor Company and without any
interruption of or break in setvice as a result of the amalgamation of the Transferor Company
with the Transferee Company. For the purpose of payment of all retirement benefits, the past
services of such employees with the Transferor Company shall be taken into account from the
date of their appointment with the Transferor Company and such benefits to which the
employees are entitled in the Transferor Company shall also be taken into account and paid (as
and when payable) by the Transferee Company.

In so far as the provident fund, gratuity fund, superannuation fund, retirement fund and any
other funds or benefits created by the Transferor Company for its employees or to which the
Transferor Company are contributing for the benefit of its employees (collectively referred to as
the "Funds") are concerned, the Funds ot such part thereof as relates to the employees (including.
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accretions thereto and the investments made by the Funds in relation to the employees) shall be
transferred to the Transferee Company and shall be held for the benefit of the concerned
employees. In the event the Transferee Company has its own funds in respect of any of the
employee benefits referred to above, the Funds shall, subject to the necessary approvals and
permissions, and at the discretion of the Transferee Company, be merged with the relevant funds
of the Transferee Company. In the event that the Transferee Company does not have its own
funds in respect of any of the above or if deemed appropriate by the Transferee Company, the
Transferee Company may, subject to necessary approvals and permissions, maintain the existing
funds separately and contribute thereto until such time that the Transferee Company creates its
own funds, at which time the Funds and the investments and contributions pertaining to the
employees shall be merged with the funds created by the Ttransferee Company.

In relation to those Employees for whom the Transferor Company is making contributions to the
government provident fund or other employee benefit fund, the Transferee Company shall stand
substituted for the Transferor Company for all purposes whatsoever, including relating to the
obligation to make conttibutions to the said fund in accordance with the provisions of such fund,
bye laws, etc. in respect of such Employees, such that all the rights, duties, powers and obligations
of the Transferor Company as the case may be in relation to such schemes/ Funds shall become
those of the Transferee Company.

Legal Proceedings

If any suit, appeal or other legal proceedings of whatsoever nature by or against the Transferor
Company is pending, the same shall not abate or be discontinued or in any way be prejudicially
affected by reason of the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee
Company and by anything contained in this Scheme, but the said suit, appeal or other legal
proceedings may be continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Transferee Company in
the same manner and to the same extent as it would or might have been continued, prosecuted
and enforced by or against the Transferor Company as if this Scheme had not been made.

The Transferee Company undertakes to have all legal or other proceedings initiated by or against
the Transferor Company above transferred into its name and to have the same continued,
prosecuted and enforced by or against the Transferee Company to the exclusion of the
Transferor Company.

Taxes, Duties/Cess

All taxes (including but not limited to advance tax, tax deducted at source, minimum alternate tax
credits, withholding tax, dividend distribution tax, banking cash transaction tax, securities
transaction tax, taxes withheld/paid in a foreign countty, value added tax, sales tax, service tax,
goods and services tax, customs, duties, etc.), including any interest, penalty, surcharge and cess, if
any, paid / payable by or refunded / tefundable to the Transferor Company including all or any
refunds ot claims shall be treated as the tax liability or refunds/claims, as the case may be, of the
Transferee Company, and any tax incentives, advantages, privileges, accumulated losses and
allowance for unabsorbed depreciation as per Section 72A of the IT Act, losses brought forward
and unabsorbed depreciation as per books of accouht, deductions otherwise admissible such as
under Section 40, 40A, 43B, etc. of the IT Act, exemptions, credits ,exemptions, credits,
deductions / holidays, remissions, reductions ctc., as would have been available to the Transferor
Company shall pursuant to this Scheme becomir;g effective, be available to the Transferee
Company; and

All the benefits under the various incentive schemes and policies that the Transferor Company is
entitled to, including tax credits, tax deferral, exemptions, holidays and benefits (including goods
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and service tax input credits, setvice tax input credits, all inditect tax related assets / credits,
including but not limited to goods and service tax input credits, service tax input credits, valué
added/ sales tax/ entry tax ctredits or set-off, advance tax, withholding tax/ TDS, taxes withheld/
paid in a foreign country, self-assessment tax, regular tax, minimum alternate tax, dividend
distribution tax, securities transaction tax, deferred tax assets/ liabilities, accumulated losses under
the IT Act and allowance for unabsorbed depreciation under the IT Act, losses brought forward
and unabsorbed depreciation as per the books of account), subsidies, tenancy rights, liberties,
special status and other benefits or privileges enjoyed or conferred upon or held or availed by the
Transferor Company rights of any claim not made by the Transferor Company in respect of any
refund of tax, duty, cess or other charge, including any erroneous or excess payment thereof made
by the Transferor Company and any interest thereon and all rights or benefits that have accrued
or which may accrue to the Transferor Company whether on, before or after the Appointed
Date, shall upon this Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date be
transferred to and vest in the Transferee Company and all benefits, entitlements and incentives of
any nature whatsoever, shall be claimed by the Transferee Company and these shall relate back to
the Appointed Date as if the Transferee Company was originally entitled to all benefits under
such incentive schemes and/or policies.

Transfer of benefits, licenses, permits etc.

All the security interest over any moveable and/or immoveable properties and security in any
other form (both present and future) including but not limited to any pledges, or guarantees, if
any, created/executed by any person in favour of the Transferor Company or any other person
acting on behalf of or for the benefit of the Transferor Company for securing the obligations of
the persons to whom the Transferor Company has advanced loans and granted othet funded and
non-funded financial assistance, by way of letter of comfort ot through other similar instruments
shall without any further act, instrument or deed stand vested in and be deemed to be in favour of
the Transferee Company and the benefit of such security shall be available to the Transferee
Company as if such security was ab initio created in favour of the Transferee Company. The
mutation or substitution of the charge in relation to the movable and immovable properties of the
Transferor Company shall, upon this Scheme becoming effective, be made and duly recorded in
the name of the Transferee Company by the appropriate authorities and third parties (including
any depository participants) pursuant to the sanction of this Scheme by the Competent Authority
and upon the Scheme becoming effective in accordance with the terms hereof;

All letters of intent, requests for proposal, pre-qualifications, bid acceptances, tenders and other
instruments of whatsoever nature to which the Transfetor Company is a party of to the benefit of
which the Transferor Company may be eligible, shall remain in full force and effect against or in
favour of the Transferee Company and may be enfotced as fully and effectually as if, instead of
the Transferor Company the Transferee Company had been a party or beneficiary or obligee
thereto. Upon coming into effect of this Scheme, the past track record of the Transferor
Company shall be deemed to be the track tecord of the Transferee Company for all commercial

and regulatory purposes;

All approvals, allotments, consents, concessions, clearances, credits, awatrds, sanctions,
exemptions, subsidies, registrations, no-objection certificates, permits, quotas, rights, entitlements,
authorisation, pre-qualifications, bid acceptances, tenders, licenses (including the licenses granted
by any governmental, statutory or regulatory bodies for the purpose of carrying on its business ot
in connection therewith), permissions and certificates of every kind and description whatsoever in
relation to the Transferor Company or to the benefit of which the Transferor Company may be
eligible/entitled, and which are subsisting or having effect immediately before the Effective Date,
made fot any of the foregoing, shall be



effectually as if, instead of the Transferor Company the Transferee Company had been a patty or
beneficiary or obligor thereto and the Transferee Company shall be liable for compliance with all
the conditions governing such consents, permits, approvals, etc. as stated above It is hereby
clarified that if the consent of any third party or authority is required to give effect to the
provisions of this clause, the said third party or authority shall make and duly record the necessary
substitution/endotsement in the name of the Transferee Company pursuant to the sanction of
this Scheme by the Competent Authority, and upon this Scheme becoming effective in
accordance with the terms hereof. For this purpose, the Transferee Company shall file
appropriate applications/documents with relevant authorities concerned for information and
record purposes;

d. All consents, permissions, licenses, certificates, clearances, authorities, powers of attorney given
by, issued to or executed in favour of the Transferor Company shall stand transfetred to the
Transferee Company, and the Transferee Company shall be bound by the terms thereof, the
obligations and duties thereunder and the rights and benefits under the same shall be available to
the Transferee Company;

e. All trademarks, trade names, service marks, copytights, logos, cotporate names, brand names,
domain names and all registrations, applications and renewals in connection therewith, and
software and all website content (including text, graphics, images, audio, video and data), trade
secrets, confidential business information and other proprietary information shall stand
transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company;

£ All registrations, goodwill and licenses, appertaining to the Transferor Company if any, shall be
transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company;

g Benefits of any and all corporate approvals as may have already been taken by the Transferor
Company whether being in the nature of compliances or otherwise, including without limitation
approvals under Sections 42, 62, 180, 185, 186, etc., of the Act, read with the rules and regulations
made thereunder, shall stand transferred to the Transferee Company and the said corporate
approvals and compliances shall be deemed to have been taken/complied with by the Transferee
Company; it being clarified that if any such resolutions have any monetary limits approved subject
to the provisions of the Act and of any other applicable statutory provisions, then the said limits,
as are considered necessary by the Board of the Transferee Company, shall be added to the limits,
if any, under the like resolutions passed by the Transferee Company; and

h. The Transferor Company and/or the Transferee Company as the case may be, shall, at any time
after this Scheme becoming effective in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required
under Applicable Law or otherwise, do all such acts or things as may be necessary to
transfer/novate the approvals, consents, exemptions, tegistrations, no-objection certificates,
petmits, quotas, rights, entitlements, licenses and certificates which were held or enjoyed by the
Transferor Company. It is hereby clarified that if the consent of any third party or Governmental
Authority, if any, is required to give effect to the provisions of this clause, the said third party or
Governmental Authority shall make and duly record the necessaty substitution/endorsement in
the name of the Transferee Company pursuant to the sanction of this Scheme by the Competent
Authority, and upon this Scheme becoming effective in accordance with the provisions of the Act
and with the terms hereof. For this purpose, the Transferee Company shall file appropriate
applications/documents with relevant authorities concerned for information and record purposes.

12.3 The Transferee Company shall, under the provisions of this Scheme, be deemed to be authotised to
execute any such writings on behalf of the Transferor Company and to carry out or perform all
such acts, formalities or compliances referred to above as may be required in this regard.
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The Transferee Company is and shall always be deemed to have been authorised to execute any
pleadings, applications, forms, etc., as may be requited to remove any difficulties and carry out any
formalities or compliance as are necessary for the implementation of this Scheme, pursuant to the
sanction of this Scheme by the Competent Authority.

Without prejudice to the other provisions of the Scheme and notwithstanding the vesting of the
Transferor Company into the Transferee Company, in order to ensure (i) implementation of the
provisions of the Scheme; and (ii) continued vesting of the benefits, exemptions available to the
Transferor Company in favour of the Transferee Company, the Transferee Company may, at any
time after the coming into effect of this Scheme in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so
required, under Applicable Law or otherwise, execute deeds (including deeds of adherence),
confirmations or other writings or tripartite arrangements with any party to any contract or
arrangement in relation to which the Transferor Company has been a party, including any filings
with the regulatory authorities in order to give formal effect to the above provisions and to carry
out or perform all such formalities or compliances referred to above on the part of the Transferor
Company. The Transferee Company will, if necessary, also be a party to the above.

In otder to ensure the smooth transition and sales of products and inventory of the Transferor
Company manufactured and/or \braﬂded and/or labelled and/or packed in the name of the
Transferor Company prior to the Effective Date, the Transferee Company shall have the right to
own, use, market, sell, exhaust ot to in any manner deal with any such products and inventory
(including packaging material) pertaining to the Transferor Company without making any
modifications, whatsoever to such products and/or the branding, packaging or labelling. All
invoices/payment related documents pertaining to such products and inventory (including
packaging material) may be raised in the name of the Transferee Company after the Effective Date.

Conduct of Business until Effective Date
With effect from the Appointed Date and up to and including the Effective Date:

The Transferor Company shall carry on and be deemed to have carried on their business and
activities and shall be deemed to have held and stood possessed of and shall hold and stand
possessed of all the assets, rights, title and interest for and on account of and in trust for the
Transferee Company.

The Transferor Company shall carry on their business and activities in the ordinary coutse of
business with reasonable diligence and business prudence.

All the profits or income accruing or arising to the Transferor Company or expenditure or losses
incurred or arising to the Transferor Company shall for all purposes be treated and deemed to be
and accrue as the profits or income or expenditure or losses (as the case may be) of the
Transferee Company.

The Transferee Company shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme, to apply to the
Government Authorities concerned, as are necessaty under any law for such consents, approvals
and sanctions which the Transferee Company may require for carrying on the business of the
Transferor Company. ‘

The Transferor Company shall carry on their business, operations or activities with reasonable
diligence and business prudence and in the same manner as they had been doing hitherto and
shall not venture into/expand. any new businesses, alienate, charge, mortgage, encumber or
otherwise deal with the assets or any part thereof except in the ordinary course of business,
without the prior consent of the Transferee Company
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13.1

13.3

13.3.1

13.3.2

13.3.3

13.4

f. The Transferee Company and the Transferor Company shall also be entitled to make an

application for amending, cancelling or obtaining fresh registrations, as the case may be, under all
Applicable Laws and legislations. The Transferee Company and the Transferor Company would
be entitled to make an application for amending licenses/ authotisations.

CONSIDERATION:

Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and in consideration of the amalgamation of the
Transferor Company into and with the Transferee Company, the Transferee Company shall,
without any further application, act or deed, issue and allot to the shareholders of the Transferor
Company whose names are recorded in the register of members as a member of the Transferor
Company, including register and index of beneficial owners maintained by a depository under
Section 11 of the Depositories Act, 1996, if any, on the Record Date 2 (or to such of their
respective heirs, executors, administrators or other legal representatives or other successors in title
as may be recognised by the Board of the Transferee Company) (“Eligible Member”) in the
following ratio (“Share Exchange Ratio™):

“1,539 (One thousand five hundred thirty-nine) fully paid-up equity shares of Rs. 10/- each of the Transferee
Company shall be issued and allotted for every 149 (One hundred forty-nine) fully paid-up equity shares of Rs. 10/-
each beld in the Transferor Company.”

The shares to be issued by the Transferee Company to the Eligible Members of the Transferor
Company in accordance with this clause 13.1 shall be hereinafter referred to as the “New Shares”.

No shares shall be allotted in respect of fractional entitlements by the Transferee Company, to
which, the Eligible Members of the Transferor Company may be entitled on the basis of the Share
Exchange Ratio. The Board of the Transferee Company shall, at its absolute discretion, decide to
take any or a combination of the following actions:

consolidate all such fractional entitlements and theteupon allot equity shares in lieu thereof to a
petson/ trustee authorized by the Board of the Transferee Company in this behalf who shall hold
the shares in trust on behalf of the Eligible Members of the Transferor Company entitled to
fractional entitlements with the express understanding that such person shall sell the shares of the
Transferee Company so allotted at such time or times and at such price of prices and to such
person, as such person/ trustee deems fit, and shall distribute the net sale proceeds, subject to tax
deductions and other expenses as applicable, to the members of the Transferor Company in
proportion to their respective fractional entitlements. In case the number of such New Shares to be
allotted to a person authorized by the Boatd of the Transferee Company by virtue of consolidation
of fractional entitlements is 2 fraction, it shall be tounded off to the next higher integer;

round off all fractional entitlements to the next whole number above the fractional entitlement and
issue such number of securities to the relevant Eligible Members of the Transferor Company; or

dea) with such fractional entitlements in such othet manner as they may deem to be in the best
interests of the shareholders of the Transferor and the Transferee Company.

In the event that the Transferee Company restructures its share capital by way of share
split/consolidation/issue of bonus or right shates/ further issue of shares during the pendency of
the Scheme, the Share Exchange Ratio as defined in this clause, shall be adjusted accordingly to
take into account the effect of such corporate actions.
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13.5

13.6

13.7

13.8

4.

14.1

14.2

Unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors or any committee thereof of the Transferee
Company, issuance of New Shares in terms of this clause shall be done within 90 days from the
date of receipt of certified copy of the Scheme from the Hon’ble NCLT or such other extended
petiod as may be determined by the Board of Directors or any Committee of the Transferee
Company.

Upon the New Shares being issued and allotted as provided in this Scheme, the equity shares of the
Transferor Company, both in electronic form and in the physical form, shall be deemed to have
been automatically cancelled and be of no effect on and from the Record Date.

The New Shares to be issued and allotted as provided in clause 13.1 above shall be subject to the
provisions of the memorandum and articles of association of the Transferee Company and shall
rank pati-passu in all respects with the equity shares of the Transferee Company as on the Effective
Date including in respect of dividend, if any, that may be declared by the Transferee Company on
or after the Effective Date.

The Transferee Company shall complete all formalities, as may be required, for allotment of the
New Shares to the Eligible Members of the Transferor Company as provided in this Scheme within
reasonable time from the Effective Date. It is clarified that the issue and allotment of New Shares
by the Ttansferee Company to the Eligible Members of the Transferor Company as provided in the
Scheme, is an integral part thereof and shall be deemed to have been carried out without requiring
any further act on the part of the Transferee Company or its shareholders and as if the procedure
laid down under Sections 42 and 62 or any other applicable provisions of the Act, as may be
applicable, and such other statues and regulations as may be applicable were duly complied with.

RECLASSIFICATION AND AGGREGATION OF AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL
OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY AND THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY

Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the authorized share capital of the Transferor Company
shall be reclassified and stand consolidated with the authorized share capital of the Transferee
Company. Accordingly, the authorized shate capital of the Transferee Company shall stand
increased to that extent, without any further act, instrument or deed on the part of the Transferee
Compauy, including without any payment of stamp duty and any fees or charges payable to the
Registrar of Companies, and/or to, any other Governmental Authority, and the Memorandum of
Association and Articles of Association of the Transferee Company (relating to the authorised
share capital) shall, without any further act, instrument or deed, be and stand altered, modified and
amended, pursuant to Sections 13, 14, 61 and 232(3)(i) respectively of the Companies Act, 2013
and/or any other applicable provisions of the Act, as the case may be. Hence, for this purpose, the
stamp duties and fees paid on the authorised share capital of the Transferor Company shall be
utilized and applied to the increased authorised share capital of the Transferee Company and no
extra stamp duty and/or fees shall be required to be paid by the Transferee Company for its
increased authotised share capital.

Consequent upon Capital Reduction and Amalgamation, 'Clause V' of the Memorandum of
Association of the Transferee Company shall be replaced with the following:

“The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 24,34,00,000/ - (Rupees Twenty Four Crores Thirty Four
Lacs Only) divided into 1,43,40,000 Equity Shares of Re.10/- (Rupees Ten only) and 10,00,000 Preference
Shares of Rs.100/ - (Rupees Hundred only) each with the rights, privileges, and conditions attaching thereto as are
provided by the Articles of Association of the Company for the time being with the power to increase and reduce the
capital and to divide the shares in the capital for the time being inte several classes and to attach there fo respectively

such preferential, qualified or special rights, privileger Wrtondiiions as may be determined by or in accordance with the
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14.3

14.4

15.

articles of association of the company for the time being and to vary, modify or abrogate any such rights, privileges or
conditions in such manner as may be permitted by the law for the time being in force or provided by the Articles of
Association for the time being.”

It is clarified that the consent of the shareholders to the Scheme shall be deemed to be sufficient
for the purposes of effecting this amendment, and no_further resolution(s) under Sections 13, 14
and 61, respectively, of the Companies Act, 2013 and/ or any other applicable provisions of the
Act, would be required to be separately passed.

In the event, the authorized share capital of the Transferee Company undergoes any change prior
to the Effective Date, the clauses specified in this Scheme to replace the existing clause V of the
memorandum of association, shall be adjusted accordingly to take into account the effect of any
such corporate actions.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

As the Transferor Company shall stand dissolved without being wound up and all the assets and
liabilities as well as reserves shall be transferred to the Transferee Company, on a going concetn
basis, upon the Scheme becoming effective, hence there is no accounting treatment prescribed
under this Scheme in the books of the Transferor Company.

On effectiveness of the Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date, since the transaction
involves entities which are under common control before and after the transaction, the Transferee
Company shall account for the transfer and vesting of the Undertaking as per the “Pooling of
Interests” method in its books of accounts in accordance with Appendix C for Business
combinations of entities under common control of the Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) 103
presctibed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, as notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other applicable accounting standards prescribed under the
Act. .
|

The pooling of interests” method is considered to involv“e the following:

All the assets and liabilities of the Transferor Company shall be recorded in the financial
statements of the Transferee Company at their carrﬁring amounts as appeating in the financial
statements of the Transferor Company, prior tothis Scheme being made effective. No
adjustments will be made to reflect fair values or recognize any new assets or liabilities. The only
adjustments that are made are to harmonize the accounting policies.

The identity of the resetves of the Transferor Company shall be preserved and they shall appear
in the financial statements of the Transferee Company in the same form and manner in which
they appear in the financial statements of the Transferor Company, prior to this Scheme being
made effective, and it shall be aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the
financial statements of the Transferee Company. '

The difference between the i) agpregate face value of the equity shares of the Transferee
Company issued and allotted by it to the members of the Transferor Company, and ii) the equity
share capital of the Transferor Company, shall be adjusted in the capital reserve account.

The financial information in the financial statements of the Transferee Company in respect of
priot periods should be restated as if the amalgamation had occurred from the beginning of the
preceding period in the financial statements, itrespective of the actual date of the combination.
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16.

16.1

All the existing shares held by the Transferor Company in share capital of the Transferee
Company as on the Effective Date, shall stand cancelled, without any further act or deed, upon
the Scheme becoming effective. In lieu thereof no allotment of any shares or any payment shall
be made to any person whatsoever. The difference between the carrying amount in the books of
the Transferor Company of its investment in the shares of the Transferee Company which shall
stand cancelled in terms of this Scheme and the aggregate face value of such shares shall, subject
to the other provisions contained herein, be adjusted against the capital reserve account of the
Transferee Company.

The reduction as mentioned in above clause, in the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of
Transferee Company shall be effected as an integral part of the Scheme and in accordance with
the provisions of Section 66 and/or any other applicable provisions of the Act and rule and
regulations framed thereunder without any further act or deed on the part of Transferee
Company. The otder of the Hon’ble NCLT, Mumbai sanctioning this Scheme, shall also be
deemed to be orders passed under Section 66(3) of the Act for the putpose of confirming the
reduction. Notwithstanding the reduction in the share capital, Transferee Company shall not be
required to add words “And Reduced” as suffix to its name and such use is dispensed with.

To the extent that there are inter-corporate loans/trade deposits, debentures, debt securities or
balances between the Transferor Company inter se and/or the Transferot Company and the
Transferee Company, the obligation in respect thereof shall come to an end and corresponding
effect shall be given in the books of account and the records of the Transferee Company for the

 reduction / netting of any assets or liabilities, as the case may be. Difference, if any, arising upon
such cancellation, shall be credited or debited, as the case may be, to the tesetve of the Transferee
Company.

The Scheme set out herein in its present form or with any modification(s) or amendment(s)
approved, imposed or directed by the Tribunals or any other Governmental Authority shall be
effective from the Appointed Date but shall be operative from the Effective Date. However, if
the Ind AS 103 require the amalgamation to be accounted with effect from a different date, then
it would be accounted as per the requitements of Ind AS 103, for accounting purpose, to be
compliant with the Indian accounting standards. For regulatory and tax purposes, amalgamation
would have been deemed to be effective from the Appointed Date of this Scheme.

In case of any differences in accounting policies between the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company, the accounting policies followed by the Transferee Company shall prevail
to ensure that the financial statements of the Transferee Company reflect the financial position
on the basis of consistent accounting policies. The difference, if any, in the accounting policies
between the Transferor Company and Transferee Company, shall be ascertained and the impact
of the same will be quantified and adjusted in the retained earnings or another affected
component of equity of the Transferee Company, as applicable, in accordance with the
tequirements of Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

The costs relating to the Scheme will be accounted in accordance with Ind AS 103.

TREATMENT OF TAXES PAID BY THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY

All taxes, levies, cess, etc. (whether direct or inditect) that might have been paid by the Transferor
Company (whether before or after the Appointed Date) during the petiod when the amalgamation
has not become effective for any tax liability that arises after the Appointed Date shall be deemed
to be tax paid by the Transferee Company and credit in respect thereof shall be given to the
Transferee Company accordingly.

46

S



17.

171

17.2

173

18.

18.1

19.

19.1

20.

20.1

TREATMENT OF SCHEME FOR THE PURPOSES OF INCOME TAX ACT, 1961

Upon this Scheme being effective, and in terms thereof, both the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company are expressly permitted to prepare/redraw the relevant financial statements, as
tequited, in accordance with, and in terms of, Accounting Standards, as applicable, and the
financial statements once cettified by the Auditots and/or Firm of Chartered Accountants, will be
regarded as duly drawn up in compliance with Companies Act, 2013 and/or laws applicable in
relation to the Transferor Company. Further the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company are expressly permitted to revise and file their respective income tax returns and other
statutory returns, including tax deducted / collected at source teturns, service tax returns, excise tax
returns, sales tax / value added tax ,goods and services tax retuns, minimum alternate tax returns
as may be applicable and has expressly reserved the right to make such provision in its returns and
to claim refunds or credits etc. if any. Such retutns may be revised and filed notwithstanding that
the statutory period for such tevision and filing may have expired and without incurting any
additional liability on account of interest, penalty, late fees or any other sum.
I

Any refund under the tax laws received by or due to the Transferor Company consequent to any
assessments made on the Transferor Company subsequent to the Appointed Date pertaining to the
business transfetred and for which no credit is taken in the accounts as on the date immediately
preceding the Appointed Date shall also belong to and be received by the Transferee Company.

Any transaction enteted into by the Transferor Company between the Appointed Date and the
Effective Date will not be regarded as noncompliant of withholding tax/tax deduction at source
obligation under the Income Tax Act, 1961 or Goods and Service Tax obligation only on the
ground that, on the sanction of the scheme, the transactions are regarded as having been carried out
by the Transferee Company.

DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND OPERATIVE DATE

The Scheme as set out herein in its present form, or with any modification(s) or amendment(s)
approved, imposed or directed by the NCLT or any other appropriate authority and acceptable to
the Board of Transferee Company, shall be effective from the Appointed Date, as defined in
Section 232 (6) of the Act, but shall be operative from the Effective Date.

VALIDITY OF EXISTING RESOLUTIONS, ETC

I
Upon.the coming into effect of the Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date, the
resolutions of the Transferor Company as are considered necessary by the Board of Directors of
Transferee Company and which are validly subsisting, shall be considered as resolutions of
Transferee Company. If any such resolutions have any monetary limits approved subject to the
provisions of the Act or of any other Applicable Laws, then the said limits, as ate considered
necessary by the Board of Directors of Transferee Company, shall be added to the limits, if any,
under the like resolutions passed by Transferee Company.

SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTION

The transfer and vesting of the assets, liabilities and obligations pertaining/relating to the
Transferor Company pursuant to this Scheme, and the continuance of the proceedings by or
against the Transferee Company, under clause 12 hereof shall not affect any transactions or
proceedings already completed or liabilities incurred by the Transferor Company either prior to or
on or after the Appointed Date, to the end and intent that the Transferee Company accepts all acts,




21.

211

deeds and things done and executed by and/or on behalf of the Transferor Company as acts,
deeds and things done and executed by and/or on behalf of itself.

DISSOLUTION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY.
Transferor Company shall be dissolved without winding up, on an order made by the NCLT under

Section 230 of the Act. On and with effect from the Effective Date, the name of Transferor’
Company shall be struck off from the records of the relevant Registrar of Companies.
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PART D

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS APPLICABLE TO THE SCHEME

22.

221

23,

23.1

24.

24.1

24.2

25.

25.1

APPLICATION TO THE TRIBUNAL

Each of the Transferee Company and Transferor Company, shall, as may be required, make
applications and/or petitions under Sections 230 through 232 of the Act and/ or other applicable
provisions of the Act to the Tribunal for sanction of this Scheme and all matters ancillary or
incidental thereto. ’

EFFECTIVENESS OF THE SCHEME

Upon the sanction of this Scheme and upon this Scheme becoming effective, the following shall be
deemed to have occurred on the Appointed Date and become effective and operative only in the
sequence and in the order mentioned hereunder:

a. with effect from the Appointed Date, Capital Reduction of the Transferee Company shall be
deemed to have occurred, pursuant to Part B of this Scheme;

b. with effect from Appointed Date, the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the
Teansferee Company shall be deemed to have occurred, pursuant to Part C of this Scheme, in
accordance with Section 2(1B) of the IT Act

»

MODIFICATIONS OR AMENDEMENTS TO THE SCHEME

Each of the Transferee Company and Transferor Company, through their respective boards of
directors (which shall include any committee constituted by the respective boards) may assent to
any modifications/ amendments to the Scheme or to any conditions or limitations that the Tribunal
and/ or any other authority may deem fit to direct or impose or which may be otherwise
considered necessaty, desirable or appropriate by them.

Each of the Transferce Company and Transferor Company, acting through their respective
authorized reptesentatives, be and are hereby authorized to take all such steps as may be necessaty,
desirable ot proper to resolve any doubts, difficulties or questions whether by reason of any
directive or orders of any authority ot otherwise howsoever arising out of ot under or by virtue of
the Scheme and/or any matter concerned or connected therewith.

CONDITIONALITY OF THE SCHEME
The effectiveness of this Scheme is and shall be conditional upon and subject to:
a. The Scheme being approved by the requisite majorities in number and value of such classes of
persons including the shareholders and/or creditors of each of the Transferee Company and the

Transferor Company as may be required under appliéable laws;

b. The Scheme being sanctioned by the Tribunal under Sections 230-232 of the Act and/or other
applicable provisions of the Act.

c. Certified copies of the orders of the tribunal sanctioning this Scheme being filed with RoC by
each of the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company.
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26.

26.1

26.2

26.3

27.

271

28.

281

29.

29.1

EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS

In the event any of the said approvals or sanctions referred to in clause 25 above not being
obtained or conditions enumerated in the Scheme not being complied with, and/or the Scheme not
being sanctioned by the Tribunal, ot for any other reason, the Scheme cannot be implemented, the
Boards of Directors empowered thereof of the Transferee Company and Transferor Company shall
by mutual agreement waive such conditions as they consider appropriate to give effect, as far as
possible, to this Scheme and failing such mutual agreement, the Scheme shall become null and void
and shall stand revoked, cancelled and be of no effect and each party shall bear and pay their
tespective costs, charges and expenses in connection with the Scheme.

In the event of revocation under the above clause, no rights and liabilities whatsoever shall accrue
to or be incurred inter se to the Transferee Company and Transferor Company or their respective
shareholders or creditors or employees or any other person save and except in respect of any act ot
deed done prior thereto as is contemplated hereunder or as to any right, liability or obligation which
has arisen or accrued pursuant theteto and which shall be governed and be preserved or worked
out as is specifically provided in the Scheme or in accordance with the Applicable Laws and in such
case, each company shall bear its own costs unless otherwise mutually agreed.

The Boatd of Directors of the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company shall be entitled
to withdraw this Scheme prior to the Effective Date. ’

FILING / AMENDMENT OF RETURNS, ETC

Each of the Transferee Company and Transferor Company are expressly permitted to
file/revise/reopen their financial statements (including their balance sheet and profit and loss
statement) and income tax, wealth tax, service tax, value added tax, minimum alternate tax and
other statutory returns, consequent to the Scheme becoming effective, notwithstanding that the
period for filing/ tevising such statements/returns may have lapsed, in order to give full effect to
the Scheme, without requiring/ seeking any additional consent or approval under any applicable
Jaws/rules and regulations. Each of the Transferee Company and Transferor Company is expressly
permitted to amend tax deduction at source and other statutory certificates and shall have the right
to claim refunds, advance tax credits, minimum alternate tax, set offs and adjustments relating to
their respective incomes/ transactions from the Appointed Date.

SEVERABILITY OF ANY PART OF THE SCHEME

If any patt of the Scheme (or any part of a section thereof) is ruled invalid or illegal by any Tribunal
or any other Governmental Authority, or unenforceable under present or future laws, then it is the
intention of the parties that at the discretion of the parties, such part shall be severable from the
remainder of the Scheme (or any Section thereof) and the Scheme (or any Section thereof) shall not
be affected thereby, unless the deletion of such part shall cause the Scheme (or any Section thereof)
to become materially adverse to any party, in which case each of the Transferee Company and
Transferor Company, (acting through their respective boards of directors) shall attempt to bring
about a modification in the Scheme (or any Section thereof), as will best preserve for the parties,
the benefits and obligations of this Scheme (or any Section thereof), including but not limited to
such part,

BINDING EFFECT

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the same shall be binding on the Transferor Company and
the Transferee Company and all concerned parties without any further act, deed, matter or thing.
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30.

301

31

311

32,

321

33,

331

33.2

INTERPRETATION

If any terms or provisions of this Scheme are found to be ot interpreted to be inconsistent with any
provisions of Applicable Law at a later date, whether as a result of any amendment of Applicable Law
or any judicial or executive interpretation or for any other reason whatsoever, the provisions of the
Applicable Law shall prevail. Subject to obtaining the sanction of the Competent Authority, if
necessary, under Applicable Law, this Scheme shall then stand modified to the extent determined
necessary to comply with the said provisions. Such modification will, however, not affect other parts
of this Scheme. Notwithstanding the other provisions of this Scheme, the power to make such
amendments/modifications as may become necessary, whether before or after the Effective Date,
shall, subject to obtaining the sanction of the Competént Authority if necessaty, vest with the Board
of Directors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company.

SEVERABILITY

If any patt of this Scheme is found to be unworkable for any reason whatsoever, the same shall not,
subject to the decision of the Companies, affect the validity ot implementation of the other parts
and/ or provisions of this Scheme.

REMOVAL OF DIFFICULTIES

Each of the Companies may, through mutual consent and acting through theit respective Board of
Directors, agree to take steps, as may be necessary, including but not limited to making any
modification to this Scheme, desirable or proper, to resolve all doubts, difficulties or questions,
whether by reason of any orders of the NCLT or of any directive or orders of any Appropriate
Authorities or otherwise atising out of, under or by virtue of this Scheme in relation to the
arrangement contemplated in this Scheme and / or matters concetning or connected therewith. After
the dissolution of the Transferor, The Transferee Company through its Board of Directors shall be
authorised to take such steps, as may be necessary, desitable or proper to resolve any doubts,
difficulties or questions, whether by reasons of any order of the court(s) or of any directive or order
of any other Appropriate Authorities or otherwise, however, atising out of, under or by virtue of this
Scheme in relation to the arrangement contemplated in this Scheme and / or matters concerning or
connected therewith.

COSTS, CHARGES AND EXPENSES

All costs, charges, taxes including duties, levies and all other expenses, if any (save as expressly
otherwise agreed) of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company arising out of or incurred
in connection with and implementing this Scheme and matters incidental thereto on or prior to the
Effective Date shall be botne by the respective Transferor Company and the Transferee Company.

All costs, charges, taxes including duties, levies and all other expenses, if any (save as expressly
otherwise agteed) of the Transferor Company and the Transferce Company atising out of or incurred
in connection with and implementing this Scheme and matters incidental thereto after the Effective
Date shall be borne by the Transferee Company.
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Annexure - 2

SSPA & CO.

Chartered Accountanis
ist Floor, “Arjun”, Plot No.6A,
V. P. Road, Andheri (W),
Mumbai — 400 058. INDIA.
Tel. : 91(22) 2670 4376 / 17

. 91 (22) 2670 3682

Website : www.sspa.in

REIZ;ORT ON VALUATION OF EQUITY SHARES OF
GOLDCREST CORPORATION LIMITED

1.  BACKGROUND

1.1 GOLDCREST CORPORATION LIMITED
Goldcrest Corporation Limited {hereinafter referred to as ‘GCL’ or the ‘Company’), was
incorporated on February 25, 1983 under the Companies Act, 1956. The activities of
the Company include mainly Operation and Maintenance of a Software Development
Park i.e. Panchshil Tech Park, Pune. The equity shares of GCL. are not listed on any stock
exchange. As per the provisional unaudited consolidated financial statements of the
Company for nine months period ended December 31, 2023 (‘9ME Dec23’), the
revenue from operations of the Company for 9ME Dec23 is INR 12.51 crores and the

issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of the Company as at December 31,2023 is INR

5.69 crores.

2. SCOPE AND PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

2.1 We have been given to understand by the management of GCL (hereinafter referred
to as the ‘Management’) that GCL is considering reduction of share capital of the
Company (hereinafter referred to as ’Iﬁroposed Transaction’).

2.2 In this connection, the Management wants to ascertain the fair value of equity shares
of GCL for complying with the requirements of section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013
{(‘Co. Act’) and other applicable rules and provisions thereunder (hereinafter ‘
collectively referred to as ‘Co. Act-Regulations’).

2.3 For this purpose, SSPA & Co., Chartered Accountants {'SSPA’ or 'Registered Valuer’ or
‘you'} have been requested by the Managementto carry out the fair valuation of equity
shares of the Company as on valuation date.

2.4 Based on the discussion with the management of GCL, the valuation date has been

considered as December 31, 2023 (‘Valuation Date’).

Page 10of 9
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Chartered Accountants
2.5 For the purpose of this valuation, the bases of value is ‘Fair Value’ and the valuation is

based on ‘going concern’ premise,

3. REGISTERED VALUER — SSPA & CO., CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT
SSPA s a partnership firm, located at 1%t Floor, “Arjun”, Plot No. 6A, V. P. Road, Andheri
{West), Mumbai - 400 058, India. SSPA is engaged in providing various corporate
consultancy services.
We are a firm of practicing Chartered Accountants registered with The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India {'ICAI’). We are also registered with the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Board of India (‘IBBI') as a Registered Valuer for asset class — ‘Securities or

Financial Assets’ with Registration No. IBBI/RV-E/06/2020/126.

4, SOURCES OF INFORMATION

For the purpose of the valuation exercise, we have relied upon the following

information, as provided to us by the management and information avaiiable in public

domain.

— Audited financial statements of the Company for FY 2022-23.

—  Provisional unaudited consolidated financial statements for SME Dec23.

— Valuation reports issued by M/s. Niren K Vikamsey dated lanuary 23, 2024 for
Building at Panchshil Tech Park, Pune and Land at Alibaug, Maharashtra.

—  Discussions with the Management on various issues relevant for the valuation
Vincluding the prospects and outlook for the business, expected growth and other
relevant information relating to future expected profitability, etc.

— Such other information and explanation as we have required, and which have been

provided by the management including Management Representations.

5. PROCEDURES ADOPTED AND VALUATION METHODS FOLLOWED
In connection with this engagement, we have adopted the following procedures to
carry out the valuation:
- Obtained financial and qualitative information from the Management.
- Used data available in public domain related to the Company and its peers.
- Discussions with the Management to understand the business and fundamental

factors that affect company’s earning-generating capability including historical
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financial performance and future outlook.

- Reviewed publicly available market data including economic factors and industry
trends that may impact the valuation.

- Analysis of comparable companies / comparable transactions using information
available in public domain and / or proprietary database subscribed by us.

- - Selection of well accepted valuation methodology as considered appropriate by
us.

- Arriving at the recommendation.

6. VALUATION APPROACHES AND METHODOLOGIES

There are various approaches/methods adopted for valuation of equity shares of the

company. Certain approaches/methods are based on asset value of the company while

certain other approaches/methods are based on the earnings potential of the

compaﬁy. Each approach/method proceeds on different fundamental assumptions

which have greater or lesser relevance and at times even no relevance, to a given
situation. Thus, the approach/method to be adopted for a particular valuation exercise
must be judiciously chosen.
6.1 MARKET APPROACH

The ‘Market’ approach uses prices and other relevant information generated by

market transactions involving identical or comparable assets, liabilities or a group of

assets and liabilities, such as a business.

Under the Market approach, the valuation is based on the following:

(a) market price of the shares of a company in case such shares are listed {'Market
Price Method’); and / or

(b) prices paid in transaction(s) of subject asset to be valued or transaction multiples
derived from prices paid in transaction(s) of comparable companies{‘Comparable
Transaction Multiple Method’); and / or

{c) market multiples derived from prices of comparable listed companies:
(‘Comparable Companies’ Multiple Method’).

In the present case, equity shares of the Company are not listed on any the stock

exchange. Further, there are no comparable listed companies with characteristics and

parameters similar to that of GCL and also sufficient and reliable details of comparable

transactions are not available in public domain. Therefore, Market Approach is not
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adopted for the present valuation exercise.

6.2 INCOME APPROACH
Under the ‘Income’ approach, the equity shares of the company are valued using
Discounted Cash Flow (‘DCF’) method. The DCF Method values the business by
disco_unting its free cash flows for the explicit forecast period and the perpetuity value
thereafter. The free cash flows represent the cash available for distribution to both the
owners and the creditors of the business. The free cash flows are discounted by
Weighted Average Cost of Capital ("WACC’). The WACC represents the returns
expected by the investors of both debt and equity, weighted for their relative funding
in the entity. The present value of the free cash flows during the explicit period and
the perpetuity value indicates the value of the business.
GCL has no other significant business operations except Operation and Maintenance
of a Software Development Park i.e. Panchshil Tech Park, Pune, Maharashtra. Since,
the Management has not drawn a long term business plan and thereby no projections
have been shared with us, the Income Approach has not been applied for the present
valuation exercise.

6.3 COST APPROACH
The Cost Approach reflects the amount that would be required currently to replace the
service capacity of an asset; often referred to as current replacement cost.
In the present case, GCL derives its income from the Operation and Maintenance of a
Software Development Park. Fair value of such investment property and land at
Alibaug has been considered based on Valuation report dated January 23, 2024 issued
by M/s. Niren K Vikamsey. Since it has no other significant business operations, the Net
Assets Value (‘NAV’) Method has been adopted considering the book value/fair value
of the assets wherever applicable, owned by the Company and the attached liabilities
as at the valuation Date.

6.4 Considering the above, we have thought fit to use NAV Method under Cost Approach

to arrive at the value of equity shares of the Company as on the Valuation Date.

7. VALUATION OF EQUITY SHARES OF GCL AS PER NAV METHOD UNDER COST
APPROACH

The value per equity share of the Company as per NAV Method has been arrived at as

follows:
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- The book value of assets and liabilities of GCL is considered based on the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for period ended December
31, 2023, to arrive at the net assets value.

- Appropriate adjustment has been made for value of Building at Panchshil Tech
Park - Pune, Maharashtra; land at Alibaug, Maharashtra and value of financial
securities held by the Company, to arrive at the adjusted net assets value of the
Company as on the Valuation Date.

- The adjusted net assets value as arrived above works out to INR 132.27 crores,
which is the equity value of the Company as on the Valuation Date.

7.2 On the basis of the foregoing, the fair value per equity share of the Company as per
NAV Method under Cost Approach works out to INR 232.46 as on the Valuation Date.

The workings for the same are given in Annexure | to this report.

8. SCOPE LIMITATIONS, ASSUMPTIONS, QUALIFICATIONS, EXCLUSION & DISCLAIMERS

8.1 OQur report is subject to the scope and limitations detailed hereinafter. As such the
report is to be read in totality, and not in parts, in conjunction with the relevant
documents referred to herein and in the context of the purpose for which it is made.
Further, our valuation is in accordance with ICAI Valuation Standards 2018 issued by
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

8.2 Valuationis not a pfecise science and the conclusions arrived at will be subjective and
dependent on the exercise of individual judgment. There is, therefore, no indisputahle
single value. While we have provided an assessment of value by applying certain
formulae which are based on the information available, others may place a different
value.

8.3 The report assumes that the Company complies fully with refevant laws and
regulations applicable in its area of operations and usage unless otherwise stated, and
that the Company will be managed in a competent and responsible manner. Further,
as specifically stated to the contrary, this report has given no consideration to matters
of a legal nature, including issues of legal title and compliance with local laws, and
litigations and other contingent liabilities that are not recorded/reflected ih the

balance sheet provided to us.
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8.4 The draft of the present report was circulated to the Management for confirming the
facts stated in the report and to confirm that the information or facts stated are not
erroneous.

8.5 Valuation analysis and results are specific to the purpose of valuation and the Valuation
Date mentioned in the report and is as per agreed terms of our engagement.

8.6 For the purpose of this exercise, we were provided with both written and verbal
information including information detailed hereinabove in para ‘Sources of
Information’. Further, the respyonsibility for the accuracy and completeness of the
information provided to us by the management and/or its auditors / consultants, is
that of the management. Also, with respect to explanations and information sought
from the management, we have been given to understand by the management that
they have not omitted any relevant and material information about the Company. The
management have indicated to us that they have understood that any omissions,
inaccuracies or  misstatements  may materially affect our valuation
analysis/conclusicns.

8.7 Our work does not constitute an audit, due diligence or certification of these
information referred to in this report including information sourced from public
domain. Accord'ingly, we are unable to and do not express an opinion on the fairness
or accuracy of any financial information referred to in this report and consequential
impact on the present exercise. However, we have evaluated the information provided
to us by the management through broad inquiry, analysis and review. However,
nothing has come to our attention to indicate that the information provided / obtained
was materially misstated / incorrect or would not afford reasonable grounds upon
which to base the report.

8.8 We have relied on data from external sources also to conclude the valuation. These
sources are believed to be reliable and therefore, we assume no liability for the truth
or accuracy of any data, opinions or estimates furnished by others that have been used
in this analysis. Where we have relied on data, opinions or estimates from external
sources, reasonable care has been taken to ensure that such data has been correctly
extracted from those sources and / or reproduced in its proper form and context.

8.9 A valuation of this nature involves consideration of various factors inciuding those
impacted by prevailing market trends in general and industry trends in particular. This

report is issued on the understanding that the management has drawn our attention
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to all the matters, which they are aware of concerning the financial position of the
Company and any other matter, which may have an impact on our opinion, on the
value of the shares of the Company including any significant changes that have taken
place or are likely to take place in the financial position of the Company. Events and
transactions occurring after the date of this report may affect the report and
assumptions used in preparing it and we do not assume any obligation to update,
revise or reaffirm this report.

8.10 We are independent of the Company and have no current or expected interest in the
.Company or its assets, The fee paid for our services in no way influenced the results of
our analysis.

8.11 Ourreportisnot, nor should it be construed as our opining or certifying the compliance
with the provisions of any law induding companies, competition, taxation and capital
market related laws or as regards any legal implications or issues arising in India or
abroad from the Proposed Transaction.

8.12 Any person / party intending to provide finance / divest / invest in the shares /
convertible instruments / business of the Company shall do so after seeking their own
professional advice and after carrying out their own due diligence procedures to
ensure that they are making an informed decision.

8.13 The decision to carry out the Proposed Transa_ction (including consideration thereof)
lies entirely with the parties concerned and our work and our finding shall not
constitute a recommendation as to whether or not the parties should carry out the
Proposed Transaction.

8.14 Our Report is meant for the purpose mentioned in Para 2 only and should not be used
for any purpose other than the purpose mentioned therein. It is exclusively for the use
of the Company and may be submitted to regulatory/statutory authority for obtaining
requisite approvals. The Report should not be copied or reproduced without obtaining
our prior written approval for any purpose other than the purpose for which it is
prepared. In no event, regardless of whether consent has been provided, shall SSPA
assume any responsibility to any third party to whom the report is disclosed or
otherwise made available.

8.15 SSPA nor its partners, managers, employees make any representation or warranty,
express or implied, as to the accuracy, reasonableness or completeness of the

information, based on which the valuation is carried out. We owe responsibility only
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to the client that has appointed us under the terms of the engagement letter. We will
not be liable for any losses, claims, damages or liabilities arising out of the actions
taken, omissions or advice given by any other person. In no event shall we be liable for
any loss, damages, cost or expenses arising in any way from fraudulent acts,

misrepresentations or wilful default on part of the client or companies, their directors,

employees or agents.

For SSPA & CO.

Chartered Accountants :

ICAI Firm Registration number: 128851W

IBBI Registered Valuer No.: IBBI/RV—E/06/2020/1_26

A foloh

Sujal Shah

Partner

ICAI Membership No.: 045816
Registered Valuer No.: IBBI/RV/06/2018/10140
UDIN: 240058 1 6 BKA W A3CH2

Place: Mumbai
Date: March 05, 2024
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Annexure |

{INR crores)

...... Particulars . - - Amount | = Amount
Non-current assets
Property, Plant & Equipment 2.05
Fair Value of Investment Properties 71.57
Capital Advances 0.75
ROU Assets 1.85
Fair Value of Investments in Financial Securities 41.75
Current assets
Trade receivables 0.84
Other current assets 0.17
Other non-current assets 0.27
Other non-current financial assets 2.97
Cash and cash equivalents 18.18
Short term loans and advances 5.05
Total current assets 27.48
Current liabilities
Trade payables 0.02
Other current financial labilities 0.98
Other non-current financial Habilities 5.37
Short-term provisions 0.75
Long-term provisions 0.35
Total current labilities (7.47)
Deferred tax liabilities {4.08)
Lease Liabilities {1.63)
Netassetsvalue 132.27
Number of equity shares 56,89,760
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STRICTLY PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL

Date: 5" March 2024
Ref: ICON/2023-24/R/Goldcrest
' "'I'o, . "
-The Board of Directors
" Goldcrest Corporation Limited
3 Floor, Devidas Mansion,

Mereweather Road, Behind Taj Hotel,
Colaba, Mumbai — 400039

Kind Attention: Ms. Nita Tanna
Dear Ms. Tanna,
Re: Valuation of equity shares

This has reference to terms of our engagement letter Ref: ICON/2023-24/EL/Goldcrest dated 24% January 2024 confirming

the engagement of ICON VALUATION LLP with Registered Valuer Entity Registration No. IBBI/RV-E/06/2015/107 {*ICON”) by

Goldcrest Corporation Limited (the “Client” or the “Company”). We enclose the report (the “Report”) prepared in connection

- with the services requested by the Client. We have carried out the valuation of the equity shares of the Company as at 31%
December 2023 (the “Valuation Date”).

- We provided a draft of the Report to the management of the Client. The Report has been reviewed by the management of
the Client and they have confirmed that the factual information contained in the Report is correct.

The Report is canfidential to the Client and is subject to the restrictions on use as per terms of our engagement. We disclaim
any responsibility to any other person / party for any decision of such person / party based on the Report. We draw your
attention to the:sections titled “Scope of Work” and “Caveats, Scope Limitations and Disclaimers” included in the Report,

“wherein we refer to the scope of work and the limitations of the work undertaken. Any person who is not an addressee in
the Report is not authorized to have access to the Report. The Report should not be copied or made available in whole or in
part to any person other than the Client without the express written permission of ICON. ICON accepts no responsibility for
any reliance that may be placed on the Report should it be used by any party other than the Client or for any purpose that
has not been expressly agreed by ICON. Our hame and the Report should not be referred to in‘any offering, circular or other
document, without dur prior written permission.

Trust the above is in order.

Yours faithfully,
For ICON VALUATION LLP

Aseem Mankodi
Partner

Place: Mumbai
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Valuation of Equity Shares
. of
Goldcrest Corporation Limited

Valuation Date: 31 December 2023

_ Report Date: 5! March 2024
SR
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SCOPE OF WORK

We have been given to understand that:
¢ The Client is planning a capital reduction (the “Proposed Transaction”).

*. The Proposed Transaction would require adherence to Section 66 of the
. Companies Act 2013 (the “Act”).

In this connection, the management of the Client has informed us that they
require the valuation of equity shares of the Company from an independent
registered valuer for the purpose of their internal evaluation in relation to the
Proposed Transaction.

[tis in this context that we have been requested by the management of the Client
to render professional services with respect to the valuation of the equity shares
of the Compény, in terms of the Act, as at the Valuation Date of 315t December
2023 in our capacity as an independent registered valuer.

We understand that our Report containing our opinion on the value of the equity
shares of the Company will be used by the Client only for the purpose of
compliance with the Act as applicable to the Proposed Transaction. We hereby
give consent to such use of our Report on the basis that to the fullest extent
permitted by law, we accept no responsibility or liability to any person other than
the Client in connection with this Report. We will not be liable for any losses,
claims, damages or liabilities arising out of the actions taken, omissions of or
advice given by any other to the Client.

This Report does not look into the business/commercial reasons behind the
Proposed Transaction nor the likely benefits arising out of the same. Similarly, it
does not address the relative benefits of the Proposed Transaction as compared
with any other alternative business transaction or other alternatives, or whether
or not such alternatives could be achieved or are available.
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VALUATION SUMMARY

On a consideration of all the relevant factors and issues discussed herein, in
terms of the Act, for the purpose of the Proposed Transaction, the Equity Value
per equity share of INR 10 each fully paid up of the Company is INR 231.79 per
'eqdity share on a Fair Value basis as at the Valuation Date of 31® December
2023. '
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SOURCES OF INFORMATION

The valuation was undertaken on the basis of the following information relating
to the Company, furnished to us by the management of the Client and
information available in public domain: '

* Brief description and understanding of the business

- = Audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 315 March
2023 -

* Unaudited provisional consolidated financial statements for the 9 months
- ended 31° December 2023

" Valuation Reports dated 23" January 2024, issued by Niren K. Vikamsey, a
registered valuer, with registration number IBBI/RV/07/2021/14162,

recommending the fair market value of properties.

" Estimated realizable fair market value of other investments as at the
Valuation Date

» : Shareholding pattern as at 31 Decembe; 2023

= Discussions with the managements/representatives of the Client

" Other relevant details
We have also received the necessary explanations, information and
representations which we believed were relevant to the present valuation

"Exercise from the management of the Client and the necessary time to evaluate
the same. '
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BACKGROUND

The Company was incorporated on 25 February 1983 to carry out the business
of trading in commodities. As at the Valuation date, the Company is no longer
.engaged in commodity trading and derives its income from investments in
properties and shares & mutual funds. The Company also has a wholly owned
subsidiary viz. Goldcrest Habitats Pvt. Ltd, which as informed to us by the Client,
does not have any operations as at the Valuation Date.

The equity shares of the Company were previously listed on BSE and were
subsequently delisted with effect from 12! October 2022. As at the Valuation
Date of 31" December 2023, we have been informed that the Company has an
issued equity share capital of INR 56.9 million consisting of 56,89,760 equity
shares of INR 10 each fully paid up

The shareholdi_ng pattern of the Company as at 31° December 2023 is as
follows: ‘

H dFri

Promoter & Promoter Group 5 2,19,934 91.74%
Public 629 ), 8 .26%
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VALUATION STANDARDS

The present valuation exercise has been undertaken based on the ICAl Valuation
Standards ‘issued by The Institute of. Chartered Accountants of India (the
“Standards”).

VALUATION BASE

‘Valuation base means the indication of the type of value and represents the
fundamental premise on which the value will be based.

The Standards define the foilowing'valuation bases:

1) Fair Value _
2) Participant Specific Value
3) Liquidation Value

In the present case, based on our discussions with the management of the Client
and the purpose of the valuation, the present valuation analysis is on a going
concern basis and is not specific to any identified participant. Accordingly, we
have considered a Fair Value base for the present valuation exercise.
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VALUATION PREMISE

Valuation premise refers to the conditions and circumstances how an asset is
deployed. -

The,_Sta'ndards define the following valuation premises:

1) Highest and Best Use
2} Going Concern Value
3) As-is-where-is Basis
4) Orderly Liquidation
5) Forced Transaction

‘In a given set of circumstances, a single premise of value may be adopted while
in some situations multiple premises of value may be adopted.

In the present case, as, the present valuation analysisis on a going concern basis
we have considered a Going Concern Value premise for the present valuation
exercise,
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VALUATION APPROACHES & METHODS

As per the Standards, there are several commonly used and accepted valuation
approaches and methods for determining the value of a business / company,
which can be applied in the present valuation exercise, to the extent relevant
and applicable, such as: ' :
1) Cost Approach
a) Replacement Cost Method
b) Reproduction Cost Method
2) Market Approach
a) Market Price (“MP”) Method
b) Comparable Companies Multiple (“CCM”) Method
c} Comparable Transaction Multiple (“CTM”) Method
'3) Income Approach '
a) Discounted Cash Flow {(“DCF”) Method

Efarhods undar Cost Approads WMethods under Market Approach dethods untlsr Incorme Approwch
ot ’ Market Price (MP) Discountad Cash Slow (HUF}
seticrs Cist Comparable Companies Multipla (CCM)
Comparable Transaction Multipls (CTM)
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Cost Approach

" Replacement ® Derives the value of a business/company by reference to the replacement -
- Cost ' ~ cost of its net assets. Involves valuing an asset based on the cost that a
market participant shall have to incur to recreate an asset with
substantially the same utility (comparable utility} as that of the asset to he
valued, adjusted for obsolescence.

® Generally appropriate for a business/company the value of which is
derived primarily from its underlying assets rather than its earnings. Also
appropriate when assets are intended to be disposed off or when the
business/company no longer meets the going concern criteria.

* As mentioned earlier, the Company derives its income from investments
in properties and shares & mutual funds. Conseqhéntly, the value of the
Company would be derived primarily from its underlying assets rather
than its earnings. We have hence used this method in the present
valuation exercise.

Reproduction ® Derives the value of a business/company by reference to the reproduction
Cost cost of its net assets. Involves valuing an asset based on the cost that a
market participant shall have to incur to recreate a replica of the asset to

be valued, adjusted for obsolescence.

* Generally appropriate for a business/company the value of which is
derived primarily from its underlying assets rather than its earnings. Also
appropriate when assets are intended to be disposed off or when the
business/company no longer meets the going concern criteria.

" In the present case, we have used the above Replacement Cost method
forming part of the Cost Approach as one of the methods. Hence, we
have not used this method in the present valuation exercise.
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Market Approach

: Methodology

Market Price

Based on market prices of shares of the subject business/company from
recognised stock exchanges over an approprlate period. -

Can be adopted only in cases where the subject business’/company's
shares are listed and sufficiently traded on recognised stock exchanges.

In the present case, although the equity shares of the Company were
earlier listed, they are no lenger listed as at the Valuation Date. Hence,
this method cannot.be used in the present valuation exercise.

Comparable
Companies
Multiple

Involves the application of multiples, derived from market prices of
comparable listed companies, to the parameters of the subject
business/company in order to derive a value for the subject
business/company. Causes subjectivity due to non-availability of exactly
comparable listed companies.

As mentioned earlier, the Company does not have any operating
activities other than deriving its income from investments in properties
and shares & mutual funds. Consequently, the value of the Company
would be derived primarily from its underlying assets rather than its
earnings. Hence, we have not used this method in the present valuation
exercise.

Comparable
. Transaction
Multiple

Involves the application of multiples, derived from prices of transactions
in comparable companies, to the parameters of the subject
business/company .in order to derive a value for the subject
business/company. Generally difficult to find comparable transactions
with complete details available in public domain.

As mentioned earlier, the Company does not have any operating
activities other than deriving its income from investments in properties
and shares & mutual funds. Consequently, the value of the Company
would be derived primarily from its underlying assets rather than its
earnings. Hence, we have not used this method in the present valuation
exercise.
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Income Approach

Discounted * Involves deriving the value of the subject business/company by
" Cash Flow - calculating the present value of expected future cash flows. The cash
flows and ‘terminal value’ are those of the Linderlying business of the
subject business/company.

® Inputs to this method require substantial subjective judgements to
be made. .

" Most scientific method — considers time value of money.

® As mentioned earlier, the Company does not have any operating
activities other than deriving its income from investments in
.properties and shares & mutual funds. Consequently, the value of
the Company would be derived primarily from its underlying assets
rather than its earnings. Hence, we have not used this method in
the present valuation exercise.
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VALUATION ANALYSIS

Replacement Cost Method

The replacement cost method is based on the value of the underlying net assets
of the business, either on a book value basis or realizable value basis or
replacement cost basis. This valuation method is mainly used in a case where the
business/company is to be liquidated i.e. it does not meet the ‘going concern’
criteria or in a case where the asset base dominates earnings capability.

- In the present case, as mentioned earlier, the asset base of the Company
dominates its earnings capability.

In the present case, for arriving at the valuation under the Replacement Cost
method, we have considered the unaudited provisional consolidated balance
sheet of the Company as at 31 December 2023, as provided by the Client. Since
the Company has no operating activities other than deriving its income from
investments in properties and shares & mutual funds, such investments in
properties and shares & mutual funds have been considered at their respective
realizable - fair market values. For all other assets and liabilities we have"
considered their respective book values to be representative of their
replacement cost based on discussions with the Client. The Client has informed
us that the capital reserve forming part of the balance sheet of the Company is
not a free reserve and is not available for distribution to equity shareholders. We
have hence excluded such capital reserve for the present valuation exercise. We
have also been informed that as at the Valuation Date, there are no contingent
liabilities or contingent assets that could materially affect the valuation.

Based on the above; the Equity Value per equity share of INR 10 each fully paid
up of the Company is INR 231.79 per equity share on a Fair Value basis as at the
Valuation Date of 31 December 2023.

Wi
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Valuation for the Company based on Replacement Cost
Method

] (INR mfllio)

Fixed Assets 39 39
Investments _ ’ 606 1,158
Cash & Cash Equivalents 176 176
Net Working Capital 15 15
Deferred Tax Liability (41) (41)
Capital Reserve {28) (28)
Net Asset Value 768 1,319
Adjustments:
Appreciation / (Diminution) in tnvestment

ﬁ P'roperties and Shares & Mutual Funds 551

Contingent Liabilities : - -

Number of Equity Shares T ' 5,689,760
Equity Value per Share (IN :

Appreciation/(Diminution} in Investment Properties and Shares & Mutual
Funds

{INR million)

Investment roperties

Shares & Mutval Funds : " arg a7e “{o) )
MNon Current | nvestments. . 27 27 = - -
Total 606 1,322 715 164 551
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VALUATION CONCLUSION

In the ultimate analysis, valuation will have to be tempered by the exercise of
judicious discretion and judgment taking into account all the relevant factors.

Valuation is an art, not an exact science. There will always be factors which are
not evident from the face of the balance sheets but which strongly influence the

value of an asset, and that is where the valuer’s judgment plays a part. The
determination of value is not a precise science and the conclusions arrived at in
many cases will be subjective and dependent on the exercise of individual
professional judgment. This concept is also recognized in judicial ‘decisions.
There is, therefore, no indisputable single fair value. While we have provided our
recommendation of the fair value based on the information available to us and
within the scope and constraints of nur engagement, others may have a different
opinion as to the fair value of equity shares of the Company. The final
responsibility for the determination of the price at which the Proposed
Transaction shall take place will be with the Client who should take into account
other factors such as their own assessment of the Proposed Transaction.

In the light of the above and on a consideration of all the relevant factors and
circumstances as discussed and referred to in this Report, in our opinion, the
Equity Value per equity share of INR 10 each fully paid up of the Company is INR
231.79 per equity share on a Fair Value basis as at the Valuation Date of 31%
December 2023.
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CAVEATS, SCOPE LIMITATIONS AND
DISCLAIMERS

The Report is subject to the caveats, scope limitations and disclaimers detailed
within this Report. The Report is to be read not in parts, but in totality and in
conjunction with the relevant documents referred to in the Report. We had
provided a draft of the Report to the management of the Client. The Report has
been reviewed by the management of the Client and they have confirmed that
the factual information contained in the Report is correct.

Value Estimate and Actual Price ,

It should be understood that the price at which investments are made/price paid
in a transaction between a willing buyer and a willing seller may differ from the
value estimates indicated in the Report due to factors such as the competitive
bidding environment, the motivation of parties, negotiation skills of the parties,
perception of potential synergies, the structure of the transaction or other
factors unique to the transaction. Accordingly, our valuation conclusion may not
necessarily be the price at which the final transaction may take place. The final
transaction price is something on which the parties themselves have to agree.
We also emphasize that our opinion is not the only factor that should be

- considered by the parties in deciding the final transaction price.

Valuation Date

Valuation and results are specific to the purpose of valuation, the valuation base
and the valuation premise. The Valuation Date of 31% December 2023
mentioned in the Report is as agreed per terms of our engagement. [t may not
be valid for any other purpose or as at any other date. Due to possible changes
in market forces and circumétances, the Report can only be regarded as relevant
as at the Valuation Date of 31% December 2023. The Report should be read on
the basis that valuation and results are specific to the Valuation Date and there
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may be potential for later variations in value due to factors that are unforeseen
as at the Valuation Date of 31 December 2023,

The Report is issued on the understanding that the Client has drawn our
attention to all the matters, which it is aware of concerning the financial position

-ofthe Company and any other matter, which may have an impact on our opinion,
on the valuation of the equity shares of the Company, including any significant
changes that have taken place or are likely to take place in the financial position
of the Company, subsequent to the Valuation Date of 31 December 2023. We
have no responsibility to update the Report for events and circumstances
occurring after the date of the Report.

Restriction on Use |
The Report and the informztion contained therein is absolutely confidential. It is
intended only for the sole use and information of the Client and only for the
purpose mentioned viz. compliance with the Act as applicable to the Proposed
Transaction. The results of the valuation and the Report should not be used or
relied by the Client for any other purpose or by any other party for any purpose.
We are not responsible to any other person/party for any decision of such
person/party based on the Report. Any person/party intending to provide
- finance/invest in the shares/business of the Company shall do so after seeking
their own professional advice and after carrying out their own due diligence to
ensure that they are making an informed decision. It is hereby notified that any
reproduction, copying or otherwise quoting of the Report or any part thereof
other than for the purpose set out earlier in the Report, can be done only with
our prior permission in writing. This restriction does not preclude the Client from
providing a copy of the Report to their third-party advisors whose review would
be consistent with the intended use.
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Responsibility of the Valuer

We do not take any responsibility for the unauthorized use of this Report and in

no event shall we be liable for any loss, damages, cost or expenses arising in any
- way from fraudulent acts, misrepresentations or wilful default on part of the

Client, their directors, employees or agents. In no circumstances shall our
: Iiability, including that of our partners, relating to the Services provided in

eonnection with the engagement set out in this Repdrt, exceed the amount paid-

to us in respect of the fees charged by us for these services.

Accuracy of Information

We have applied the necessary levels of efforts, diligence and expertise which
we believed were relevant and applicable to the present valuation exercise.
While our work involved an analysis of financial information and financial
statements, it does rat constitute or include an audit, due diligence, forensic
investigation, review or certification of the historical financial statements of the
Company referred to in the Report. Accordingly, we are unable to and do not
express an opinion on the accuracy of any financial information referred to in
the Report. :

-

In the course of the valuation, we were provided with both written and verbal
information. We have evaluated the information provided to us by the Client
through broad inquiry and analysis (but have not carried out an audit, due
diligence, forensic investigation or review of the Company for the purpose of this
engagement, nor have we independently investigated or otherwise verified the
data prbvided). Also, we have been given to understand by the management of
the Client that they have not omitted any relevant and material factors.
Accordingly, we do not express any opinion or offer any form of assurance
regarding its accuracy and completeness. We assume no responsibility for any
errors in the above information furrished by the Client and their impact on the
present exercise.

Any discfepancies in any table/annexure between the total and the sums of the
amounts listed are due to rounding-off.

e

Page 20

ICON VALUATION LLP | Registered Office: Kaledonia, Unit No. 1B, A Wing, 5% Flcor, Sahar Road, Off Westem Express Highway, Andheri (E}, Mumbai - 400060.
LLPIN: AAC-7924 | Email: info@iconvaluation.in | Tel.: +91 22 6215 4096

80



LRCON

‘VALUATION

Data from External Sources

We have also relied on data from external sources/databases for the present
valuation exercise. These sources/databases are believed to be reliable and
therefore, we assume no fiability for the truth or accuracy of any data, opinions
or estimates furnished by others that have been used in this analysis. Where we
“have relied on data, opinions or estimates from external sources/databases,
reasonable care has been taken to ensure that such data has been correctly
extracted from those sources and/or reproduced in its proper form and context
in relation to the present valuation exercise.

Compliance with Relevant Laws

The Report assumes that the Company fully complies with applicable relevant
laws and regulations. Further, the Report has given no consideration to matters
of a legal nature.-No investigation of the Company’s claim to title of assets has
been made for the purpose of this valuation and the Company’s claim to such
rights has been assumed to be valid. No consideration has been given to liens or
encumbrances against the assets, beyond the loans disclosed in the accounts.
Therefore, no responsibility is assumed for matters of a iegal nature.

The Report is not nor should it be construed as our opining or certifying the
compliance with the provisions of any law/standards including company, foreign
exchange regulatory, accounting and taxation/transfer pricing laws/standards or
as regards any legal, accounting or taxation implications or issues.

Conflict of Interest

We are independent of the Client and have no current or expected interest in
the Client or their assets. The fee paid for our services in no way influenced the
results of o r analysis,
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ABOUT ICON

- ICON VALUATION LLP is a limited liability partnership engaged in rendering
valuation services and is a registered valuer under the Companies (Registered

Valuers and Valuation) Rules 2017 of the Companies Act 2013, in the category of
Securities or Financial Assets.

Mr. Aseem Mankodi and Mr. Devarajan Krishnan, the designated partners of
ICON, have worked on this engagement. In addition to being registered valuers,
both are also Chartered_Accountanfs and have been specializing in the field of
valuations since 2005 and 2008 respectively.
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ICON VALUATION LLP (Registration no. AAC-7924) is registered with limited liability.
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Annexure - 4

- -t
Vivro Financial Services Private Limited
Regd. Office : -
Vivro House, 11, Shashi Colony, Opp. Suvidha Shopping Center,
Paldi, Ahmedabad, Gujarat, India - 380 007
Tel.: +91(79) 4040 4242
www.vivro.net

March 5, 2024 C Private and Confidential

To,

The Board of Directors

Goldcrest Corporation Limited

3" Floor, Devidas Mansion MIDC, Mahape,
Navi Mumbai, Maharashtra, India ~ 400710,

Dear Sir(s) / Madam(s),

Subject: Fairness Opinion Report on the Valuation Report issued by Ilcon Valuation LLF dated March 05,
2024, for the proposed scheme of capital reduction by Goldcrest Corporation Limited

Goldcrest Corporation Limited (‘GCL’, the Company’, ‘you’, ‘your?), is company engaged in the operations
and maintenance of a Software Development Park at Panchsil Tech Park, Pune, and alsa derives its income
from investments in properties, shares & mutual funds. GCL has a wholly owned subsidiary, Goldcrest
Habitats Private Limited (GHPL), which currently does not have any operations. The equity shares of GCL
were earlier listed on BSE Limited (‘BSE") and were subsequently delisted with effect from October 12, 2022.

GCL is proposing a Scheme of Arrangement, providing for, inter alia, capital reduction under Section 66 of
the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Companies Act’) {‘the Transaction), wherein GCL has obtained a Valuation
Report, to determine the fair vafue of its equity shares as on December 31, 2023 {"the Valuation Date’).

Accordingly, GCL has, through an Engagement Letter dated March 01, 2024, appointed Vivro Financial
Services Private Limited, a Merchant Banker registered with SEBI having the Registration Number
INMOOO010122 (*Vivro’, “VFSPL', ‘Merchant Banker’, "we’, “us’, ‘our’, to issue a Fairness Opinion Reportonthe
Valuation Report dated March 05, 2024 (‘the Valuation Report’) issued by Icon Valuation LLP (Registered
Number: {BBI/RV-E/06/2019/107), registered under the Companies Act, 2013 in the category of Securities or
Financial Assets (lcon’, ‘the Valuer’) for the determination of the fair vafue of the equity shares of GCL.

The attached Fairness Opinion Report (‘the Fairness Opinion Report’) has been issued for complying with
the provisions of the Companies Act as mentioned above and shali not be valid for any other purpose,
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Cur Faimess Opinion Report is to be read in conjunction with the scope and purpose, the sources of
information and the assumptions, exciusicns, limitations, and the disclaimers, as have been detailed
hereinafter. This letter should be read in conjunction with the Fairness Opinion Report, Should you require
any further information or explanations, please contact the undersigned.

For, Vivro Financial Services Private Limited

Jayésh Vithlani

Sr. Vice President
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SCOPE, PURPOSE AND USAGE OF THIS FAIRNESS OPINION REPORT

The Board of Directors of the Company is proposing a Scheme of Arrangement, providing for capital
reduction under Section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Forthe aforesaid purpase, GCL has appointed lcon, to submit their Valuation Reportrecommending
the fair value of its equity shares,

The scope of our services is to issue a Fairness Opinion Report on the Valuation Reportofthe Valuer
for complying with the provisions of the Companies Act. The scope of our services does not involve
opining on the faimess or economic rationale of the Scheme per se.

This Fairness Opinion Report is our deliverable an this engagement. The Fairness Opinion Report
has been issued to facilitate GCL in complying with the extant provisions of the regulations, as
mentioned above, and shall not be valid for any other purpose.

The distribution of this Fairness Opinion Report shall be restricted to the Companies, Shareholders
and such other regulatory bodies required to give effect to the Scheme, including but not limited to
the Registrar of Companies and the National Company Law Tribunal.

This Fairness Opinion Report is subject to the scope, assumptions, exclusions, limitations, and

disclaimers detailed hereinafter. As such, the Fairness Opinion Report is to be read in totality, and
hotin parts, in conjunction with the relevant documents referred to herein.

SOURCES OF INFORMATION

We have relied on the following information made available to us by the management of GCL for
the purpose of this Fairness Opinion Report:

Shareholding pattern of GCL as on December 31, 2023;

Valuation Report of by Icon Valuation LLP (Registered Number; IBBI/RV-E/06/2019/107), registered
under the Companies Act, 2013 in the category of Securities or Financiai Assets, dated March 5, 2024;

Valuation Report dated January 23, 2024, issued by M/S Niren Vikamsey, IBB| Registered Valuer -
Land & Building, for the fair valuation of the immovable properties held by GCL;

Valuation Report dated January 23, 2024, issued by M/S Niren Vikamsey, IBBI Registered Valuer -
Land & Building, for the fair valuation of the immovable properties held by GHPL;
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Draft Scheme of Capital Reduction;

Such other information and explanations as required and which have been provided by the
management of the Company, were considered relevant for the purpose of this Fairness Opinion
Report.

The Company has been provided with the opportunity to review the draft Fairness Opinion Report
(excluding our opinion on recommendation of the Valuation Report) as part of our standard
practice to make sure that factual inaccuracy / omissions are avoided.

LIMITATIONS, ASSUMPTIONS, QUALIFICATIONS, EXCLUSIONS &
DISCLAIMERS

This Fairness Opinion Report has been prepared for the purposes stated herein and should not be
relied upon for any other purpose. This Fairness Opinion Report is restricted for the purpose
indicated in the Engagement Letter but does not preclude the management of the Company to
provide a copy of this Fairness Opinion Report to third-party advisors whose review would be
consistent with the intended use. We do not take any responsibility for any unauthorized use of this
Fairness Opinion Repori.

In the course of the Fairness Opinion Report, we were provided with both written and verbal
information. We have, however, evaluated the information provided to us by the Company through
broad inquiry, analysis and review but have not carried out a due diligence or audit of the
information provided for the purpose of this engagement.

This Fairness Opinion Report, its contents, and the results herein (i) are specific to the purpose
agreed as per the terms of our engagement; (ii) are specific to the date of this Fairness Cpinion
Report and other conditions in general and the written and oral information made available to us
by the management of GCL as on date of this Fairness Opinion Report. The events occurring after
this date may affect this Fairness Opinion Report and the assumptions used in preparing it, and we
do not assume any obligation to update, revise or reaffirm this Fairness Opinion Report.

We have not provided any accounting, tax, or legal advice to the Company neither are we required
to in terms of the Engagement Letter.

We have not examined the tax implication of the present transaction neither are we required to in
terms of the Engagement Letter,

We have not revalued any asset, nor physically verified any assets of the Company neither are we
required to in terms of the Engagement Letter,
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This Fairness Opinion Report assumes that the Company is fully compliant with relevant laws and
regulations applicable in their area of operations. Further, this Fairness Opinion Report has given no
consideration to matters of a legal nature, including issues of legal title and compliance with local
laws, and litigations and other contingent liabilities that are not recorded / reflected in the
financials provided to us and not relevant or applicable to the subject matter of our analysis.

We are independent of the Company and hold no specific interest in the Company or its assets, nor
do we have any conflict of interest with the Company.

The fee for this engagement is not contingent upon the resuits reported and the conclusion arrived
at by us.

This Fairness Opinion Report is furnished on a strictly confidential basis. Neither this Fairness
Opinion Report nor the information contained herein may be reproduced or passed to any person
or used for any purpose ather than stated abave.

VALUER'S RECOMMENDATION

The registered valuer has used the Replacement Cost Method under the Cost Approach to arrive at
the fair value of the equity shares of GCL. On the basis of all the relevant factors and circumstances
as discussed and outlined in the Valuation Report dated March 05, 2024, the Valuer has concluded
the following:

“In light of the above and on a consideration of all the relevant factors and circumstances as
discussed and referred to in this Report, in our opinion, the Equity Value per equity share of INR 10
each fully paid up of the Company is INR 231.79 per equity share on a fair value basis as at the
valuation date of 3% December 2023,
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CONCLUSION

We have perused the Valuation Report and have considered the justification as mentioned therein
in arriving at the Fair Vaiue of the equity shares. Pursuant to and subject to the foregoing, we are of
the opinion that the Fair Value of the equity shares, as recommended by Icon Valuation LLP
(Registered Number: IBBi/RV-E/06/2019/107), in their Valuation Report dated March 05, 2024 for the
proposed capital reduction, is fair.

For, Vivro Financial Services Private Limited

= 3
|| | AHMEDABAD | ]
AR\ iz )
W 7
\ 3

Jayésh Vithlani

Sr. Vice President
Date: March 5, 2024
Place: Ahmedabad
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Annexure - 5

Valuation Report

For Determining the Fair Equity Share Exchange Ratio pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement of
Goldcrest Global Trading Private and Goldcrest Corporation Limited

Valuation Date: December 31, 2023

Report by:

Mayur Popat
Registered Valuer
Securities and Financial Assets
+91 3000334511

mayurpopat@inmaandco.com
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MAYUR POPAT Contact No - +91 265 3570322
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT, ICAI M. No. 132407 Mobile Na :- +91 8000334511
REGISTERED YALUER - SFA, 1BBI Reg. No.-IBBi/RV/006/2819/173 Email :- mayurpopal@jnmaandco.com
INSOLVENCY PROFESSIONAL - IBBI Reg. Ko.- IBBI/IPA-O01/P-P-01918/2020-2021/13044

Date - March 5, 2024

To, To,

The Board of Directors, The Board of Directors,
Goldcrest Global Trading Private Limited, Goldcrest Corporation Limited,
34 Floor, Devidas Mansion, 3 Floor, Devidas Mansion,
Mereweather Road, Mereweather Road, Colaba,
Colaba, Tajmahal, Mumbai - 400001 Mumbai — 400001

Maharashtra, India. Maharashtra, India.

Dear Sir/Madam,

Subject: Recommendation of fair equity share exchange ratio for the proposed Scheme of
Arrangement of Goldcrest Global Trading Private Limited and Goldcrest Corporation
Limited

We refer to the Engagement Letter dated February 5, 2024, whereby, I Mayur Popat, Chartered
Accountant; have been appointed by Goldcrest Global Trading Private Limited and Goldcrest
Corporation Limited to issue a report containing recommendation of fair equity share exchange ratio
for the proposed amalgamation of Goldcrest Global Trading Private Limited (“Transferor Company”
or “GGTPL”) into and with Goldcrest Corporation Limited {(“Transferee Company” or “GCL”) on
going concern basis with effect from the Appointed Date of April 1, 2024 (“Proposed Amalgamation™).

For the sake of brevity, the management of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company are
hereinafter collectively referred to as the ‘Management’ and the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company are hereinaller colleclively referred to as Lhe ‘Cowmpanies’.

Please find enclosed the report detailing our recommendation of fair equity share exchange ratio for
the Proposed Amalgamation. We have provided the valuation opinion in the capacity of Registered
Valuer in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules issued thereunder
("Companies Act”}.

Based on our study and analytical review procedures, and subject {o the limitations expressed
within this report and based on our opinion on the relative fair value of equity shares of the
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, I consider that the fair equity share exchange
ratio would be as follows:

“1539 (One Thousand Five Hundred and Thirty-Nince) fully paid-up equity shares of Rs. 10/~ (Rupees Ten
Only) each of the Transferee Company shall be issued and allotted for every 149 (One Hundred and Forty-
Nine) fully paid-up equity shares of Rs. 10/~ eacli held in: the Transferor Company.”

The aforesaid fair equity share exchange ratio has been determined after considering and factoring
the effect of the impending capital reduction proposal of the Transferee Company as proposed in
the Scheme of Arrangement (“Scheme™).
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MAYUR POPAT Contact No - +91 265 3570322
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT, ICAI M. No. 132407 Mobile No :- +¢1 800033451
REGISTERED VALUER - SFA, BB Reg. No.-IBBI/RV/004/20%/11173 Email ;- mayurpopat@jnmaandea.com
INSOLVENCY PROFESSIONAL - IBEI Reg. No.- IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01918/2020- 2021113045

[n rendering the aforementioned services, we reviewed and relied upon various documents,
materials and information provided by the Management of both the Companies. Given the limited
and specific purpose of this report, the financial information presented in this report may be
incomplete and contain departures from generally accepted accounting principles.

This report is subject to the scope, assumptions, axclusions, limitations and disclaimers detailed
hereinafter. As such, the report is to be read in totality, and not in parts, in conjunction with the
relevant documents referred to therein,

To the best of our knowledge and information available, we confirm that we do not have any
financial interest or conflict with the Companies or any of its Board of directors. Qur fees for this
valuation are based upon our normal billing rates and are in no way contingent upon the results
of our findings. We have no responsibility to update this report for events or circumstances
occurring subsequent to the date of this report. This report is not to be copied or made available
to any persons without our express written consent.

We are pleased to present this Valuation Report, which we hope will be of adequate use and help
in taking appropriate decision for the purposes to which this report is brought out.

We take this opportunity to thank Management, without whose co-operation; it would not have
been possible to complete this assignment in time.

Yours faithfully, —

- -
—

Mayur Popat
Registered Valuer - Securities and Financial Assets (IBBI)
Registration No. IBBI / RV / 006 / 2019 / 11173

Date: March 5, 2024
Place: Vadodara

425, Lotus Elite, Besides 0514 Hypermaiicel, Golri Sevasi Road, Vadedara - 390020
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1. Background of the Companies

11 Goldcrest Global Trading Private Limited or GGTPL or Transferor Company

L11.  The Transferor Company is a private limited company incorporated on February 03,
1994 under the provisions of the Compauies Act, 1956 and Lhe regislered office of the
Transferor Company is situated at Devidas Mansion, 3rd Floor, Mereweather Road,
Colaba, Mumbai-<400001, Maharashtra, India. The Corporate Identity Number of the
Transferor Company is U74999ME 1994PTCO76391.,

112 The Transferor Company was incorporated with an object to primarily engage in the
business of commodity trading. The main object as set out in the Memorandum of
Association is as under: ’

1. “Tocarry on the business of buying, sclling, reselling, importing, exporting, transporting,
storing, developing, promoting, marketing or supplying, trading, dealing in any manner
whatsoever, in the goods on retail as well as on wholesale basis in India or globally.

2. To carry on the business as exhibitors of various goods, services and merchandise and to
undertake the necessary activities fo promote sales of goods, services and merchandise
matifictured/dealt with/provided by the Company, in Indin or globally.

3. Toact as a broker, trader, agent, C&F agent, shipper, commission agent, distributor,
represeniative, franchiser, consultani, collaborator, stockiest, liasioner, job worker, export
house of goods, merchandise and services of all grade, specifications, descriptions,
applications, modalitics, fashions including by-products, spares or accessories thereof, on
retail as twell ws on wholesale basis, in India or globally.

1.1.3. Board of Directors {(as on date of this repori)

i e Z5
Nita Tushar Tann, 00170591
Anupa Tanna Shah 01587901

1.1.4, apital structure as on December 31, 2023

2

w uthorized Capital

29,00,000 Class A carrying voting rights Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- 2,90,00,000/ -
each :

25,000 Class B carrying Nosi-voting rights Equity Shares of Rs. 2,50,000/ -
10/- each

12,75,000 Preference Shares of Rs. i0/ - 1,27,50,000/ -
40,000 Unclassified Shares of Rs. 10/ - 4,000,000/ -
Total 4,24,00,000/-
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital
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51,832 Class A carrying voting rights Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- 5,18,320/ -
each
18,557 Class B carrying Non-voting rights Equity Shares of Rs. 1,85,570/ -
10/- each .
Total 7.03,890/-

1.1.5. Shareholding pattern as on December 31, 2023

P

Class A” carrying voking rights equity

shares

Hansa Tulsidas Tanna 4,107 7.92%
Tushar Tulsidas Tanna (HUF) 6l 0.12%
Nita Tushar Tanna 34,137 65.86%
Apupa Tanna Shah 1,884 3.63%
Namrata Tanna 1,884 3.63%
Perique Properties LLP 9,626 18.57%
Fliessen Real Estate LLP 133 0.26%

Total of “Class A” 51,832 100%

i

Class B” carrying non-voting rights

equity share
Nita Tushar Tanna : 18,557 100%
Total of “Class B” 18,557 100%

1.2. Goldcrest Corporation Limited or GCL or Transferee Company

121, The Transferee Company, an unlisted public company, was incorporaled on February
25, 1983, under Lhe provisions of lhe Companies Adl, 1956, in the name and style of
‘Amulya Holdings Limited’. Subsequently, the name of the Transferee Company was
changed to “Goldcrest Finance (India) Limited” on June 24, 1985 and from “Goldirest
Finance (India) Limited” to Goldcrest Corporation Limited on October 18, 2013. The
Registered Office of the Transferee Company is presently situated at 3rd Floor, Devidas
Mansion, Mereweather Road, Colaba, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400001, Maharashtra,
India. The Corporate Identification Number of the Transferee Company is
U74999MH1983PLC029408.

1.2.2. The Transferee Company was incorporated with an object to primarily engage in the
business of maintenance of & Software Development Park and trading in shares and
securities. The main object as set out in the Memorandum of Assaciation is as under:
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1.2.3.

1.24.

“(w) To undertake the business as general traders and merchants, and buy, sell, trade, exchange,
export, import, deal in goods, things, commodities, contracts of all types, deexcal, barter, swap,
borrow, lend, assure underwrite, guarantee, give comfort for pledge, hypothecate, charge,
mortgage, procure for or arrange placement of or otherwise engage in India or abroad in trade
and investment instruments of all kinds and types, whether securitized or not, including shares,
stocks, securities, debentures, bonds cuwilative, convertible preference shaves, certificates of
deposits, commercial paper, participation certificates, bills of exchan e, letter of credif,
promissory notes, cheques, whether negotiable or not, currencies, drafts, travellers cheques,
factoring of debt, all kind of units, coupons, warrants, options and such other derivatives, issued
or to be issucd by companies, government co-operations, banks, co-operaiives flims,
organizations, mutual benefit socicties in India or abroud, to deal in any cormmodity market,
comnmodity exchange, spot exchange, for itself or for others, transaction in the nature of hedging,
spoi trading, forward commodity contracts, rate swaps, commodity future/swaps, cormmmodivy
options, futrres and options and in derivatives of all the commodities, whether for the purpose
of trading, investment, hedging, arbitrage, or amy other purpose, whether in India or abroad and
trade in either as principal, broker, agent, dealer, stockist, trader, consignee or any other capacity
and to acquire membership, dealershiy, licenses, permits, registrations or such other positions
in and of stock, share, securities, debt, commodity, foreign exchange, bullion, metals, oil

 including crude ofl, gas including natural gas, gems and precious stones, grains and pulses,

[futures and options, merchant banking, financial and leasing, hire purchase, currencies, credit,
savings and loans, veal estate, antigques. icons and such other associations, exchanges,
organizalion and bourses in India and abroad.

{b) To acquire, subscribe, purchase, ltold, sell, divest or otherwise deal in securities, financial
instruments, financial products, shares, scripts, slocks, equity/index linked securities, units,
bonds, commercial papers, acknowledgements, deposits, notes, cbligations, warrants,
government securities, loans, loan certificates, all kinds of devivatives including interest
derivatives, futures, forwards, options, cails, swaps, rights or inferest in securities, foreign
currencics, carbon credits, financiol securities and any other securities issued by any entity
whether for the purpose of hedging, arbitrage or for any other purpose.”

Board of Divectors (as on the date of titis repo

Nita Tushar Tanna 001

7

Anupa Tanma Shah 01587901
Namrata Tushar Tanna 02753244

Capital struciure as on December 31, 2023

Authorised Capi

1,01,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 10,10,00,000

10,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 100/ - each 10,00,00,000
Total 20,10,00,000/-

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

36,89,760 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each fully paid-up 5,68,97,600
Total 5,68,98,000
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1.2,5. Shareholding patiern as on December 31, 2023

?ii‘

] Resi ént Individuals

3,28,478 .

Corporate Promoter Under Same 8,41,610 14.79%
Management
TEPF 92,474 1.63%
Bodies Corporate 43,577 0.77%
Promoter 43,78,324 76.95% ;
N.R.L (non-repat) 1,200 0.02%
N.R.I (Repat) 3,770 0.07%
Hindu Undivided Family : 327 0.01%

Total 56,89,760 100%

2, Purpose of valuation and appointing anthority

21.3. We have been informed that the Management of the Companies, that they are
contemplating a Scheme of Arrangement which provides for:

a. Capital reduction of the Transferse company; and
b. Post such capital reduction, amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the
Transferee Company on going concern basis.

~
o
]

The Scheme will comply with the provisions of section 230 to 232 of the Campanies
Act, 2013 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

2.1.3. We have been informed that as consideration for the Proposed Amalgamation, the
Transferee Company will issue its shares to the equity shareholders of the
Transferor Company. Therefore, we have been requested by the Management Lo
undertake a valuation exercise for determining the relative fair value of equity
shares of both the Companies (after giving effect of capital reduction) and basis
such relative fair value, recommend a fair equity share exchange ratio for the
consideration of the Board of Directors of the Companies.

214. We would like to emphasis that certain limited terms of the Proposed
Amalgamation are stated in our report, however, the detailed terms of the
Proposed Amalgamation shall be more fully described and explained in the
Scheme document to be submitted with the relevant authorities in relation to the
Proposed Amalgamation.

215, Our scope does not extend to valuation of the equity shares of the Transferce
Company for the purposes of capital reduction.

3. Natute and sources of information
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This valuation report has been the result of output from various internal {Management) as
well as external sources (information available in public domain). The below summarises
the broad summary of data obtained and replied upon:

1. Memorandum of Association (MOA) and Articles of Association (AOQA) of the

Companies.

Capilal Structure of the Companies as on December 31, 2023,

Lisl of direclors of the Companies as on December 31, 2023,

Annual Report / Audited Financial Statements of the Companies for the financial year

ended March 31, 2023,

5. Annual Report / Audited Financial Statements of Fliessen Real Estates LLP for the
financial year ended March 31, 2023.

6. FProvisional financials of the Transferor Company and Transferee Company as on
December 31, 2023. '

7. Provisional financials of Fliessen Real Estates LLP as on December 31, 2023,

8. Valuation report from SSPA & Co. for fair value per equity share of the Transferee
Company as on December 31, 2023.

9. Valuation reports issued by M/s. Niren K Vikamsey dated January 23, 2024 for Building
at Panchshil Tech Park, Pune and Land at Alibaug, Maharashtra.

10. Management Representation Letter as provided by the Management.

11. Draft Scheme of Arrangement.

12. Shareholding pattern of the Comparnies as on December 31, 2023,

13. Other relevant information, explanations and data provided by the Management of the
Companies.

R

The Management have been provided with the opportunity to review the draft report (excluding
the fair value and fair equity share swap ratio) to ensure that the factual inaccuracy /omission is
avoided in the report.

4. Valuation Bases

Valuation Standards

Our analysis and report are in conformity with the “ICAI Valuation Standards” (IVS) issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). In addition to the general standards /
guidelines of the IVS, our report specifically complies with ICAI Valuation Standard 102 -
Valuation Bases (IVS 102), ICAI Valuation Standard 103 ~ Valuation Approaches and Methods
(IVS103), ICAI Valuation Standard 201 - Scope of Work, Analyses and Evaluation (IVS 201), ICAI
Valuation Standard 202 - Reporting and Documentation (IVS 202) and ICAI Valuation Standard
301 - Business Valuation (IVS 301).

Basis and Premise of Valnation

Valuation of the Equity Shares of the Companies as on the Valuation Date is carried out in
accordance with ICAI Valuation Standards ('ICAL VS'), considering 'relative value’ base and
‘going concern’ premise. Valuation base means the indication of the type of value being used
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in an engagement. Any change in the Valuation base, or the Valuation premise could have
a significant impact on the Valuation outcome of the Companies.

Basis of Valuation

Basis of Valuation means the indication of the type of value being used in an
engagement. Fair Value as per ICAI VS is defined as under:

‘Fair value is the price that would be veceived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the valuation dute.”

Premise of Valuation

Premise of Value refers to the conditions and circumstances how an asset is
deployed. Valuation of the Companies is carried out on a Going Concern Value
premise which is defined under ICAT VS as under:

‘Going concern value is the value of  business enterprise that is expected to continue to
operate in the future. The intangible elements of going concern valiie result from fuctors such
us huving u trained work force, an operational plant, the necessary licenses, systems, and
procedures in place, etc,’

This valuation was performed on the premise that the Company will continue to operate as
a going concern. IVS 102 defines “going concern value’ as “the value of a business enterprise
that is expected to continue to operate in the future.”

5. Valuation Approach

In connection with this exercise, we have adopted the following procedures to carry out the
valuation:

¢ Discussion with the Management

s Analysis of the information

e Selection of appropriate valuation methodology/ (ies) after deliberations

¢ Determination of refative value of the Equity Shares of the Companies

* Arriving at Fair Value of Equity Shares of the Companies

¢ Determination of fair equity share exchange ratio based on fair value of equity

shares of the Companies

6. Methodologies of Valuation

The following approaches arc generally used for determining the fair value of Equity
Shares:

a) Income Approach - primarily through the Discounted Cash Flow Method

This approach of valuation considers the expected income/cash flows the business is
expected to generate and is most appropriate in case of a going concern. Under this
approach of valuation, the widely accepted methods is discounted cash flow (“DCE")
melhod.
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The DCF method involves determination of projected free cash flows from business
operations which are discounted at an appropriate discount rate to derive the present
value, The sum total of present value of such projected free cash flows gives the
enterprise value which is appropriately adjusted to arrive at the value of business for
shareholders. Such business value is divided by the outstanding number of shares to
obtain the value per share.

'The steps involved and mechanism to calculate variables used under this method is as
bhelow:

o  Estimating the future [ree cash flows which are derived from the financial
projections of the company. The future free cash flows consist of the cash flows for
the explicit period and also of perpetuity period.

o Free cash flows are the cash flows expected to be generated by the company that are
available to all providers of the company's capital.

o Thecash flows are determined by deducting from the earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization {EBITDA) two items (i) cash taxes and ii) other non-
cash charges. The cash flow so derived is adjusted for change in working capital
requirements and capital expenditure to derive the free cash flows.

o Appropriate discount rate is applied to future cash flows to obtain the present value
of such cash flows. This discount rate should reflect the opportunity cost of the
capital

o  providers ie. weightage average cost of capital consisting of weightage cost of equity
and cost of debt.

©  To the sum of Lhe present value of the cash flows f(or Lhe explicil period and for Lthe
perpetuity, adjustments are made for loan funds, surplus assets, value of
investments and contingent liabilities, after considering the tax impact wherever
applicable.

o The value as arrived above is divided by the outstanding number of Equity Shares
to arrive at the value per share.

b) Cost Approach - Replacement Cost Method and Reproduction Cost Method

The cost approach values the underiying assets of the business to determine the
business value. This valuation method carries more weight with respect to holding
companies than operating companies. Also, asset value approaches are more relevant
to the extent that a significant portion of the assets ate of a nature that could be
liquidated readily if so desired.

Replacement Cost Method:
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It is also known as ‘Depreciated Replacement Cost Method” and involves valuing an
asset based on the cost that a market participant shall have to incur to recreate an asset
with substantially the same utiity (‘comparable utility”) as that of the asset to be
valued, adjusted for obsolescence.

Reproduction Cost Method:

This method involves valuing an asset based on the cost that a market participant shall
have to incur to recreate a replica of the asset to be valued, adjusted for obsolescence.

. €} Market Approach - Market Price Method, Comparable Companies Multiple Method
and Comparable Trangsaction Method

Market approach is a valuation approach that uses prices and other relevant
information generated by market iransactions involving identical or comparable (i.e.,
similar) assets, liabilities or a group of assets and liabilities, such as a business.

Mazket Price Method

Under this method the traded price obscrved over a reasonable period is considered
while valuing assets which are traded in the active marlket. Also the market where the
trading volume of asset is the highest when such asset is traded in more than one active
market is selected.

Comparable Companies Multiple Method
Also known as Guideline Public Company Method, this method involves valuing an
asset based on market pmitiples derived from prices of market comparables traded on

aclive markel.

Comparable Transaction Method

Comparable Transaction Multiple Method, also known as ‘Guideline Transaction
Method” involves valuing an assel based on transaction multiples derived from prices
paid in transactions of asset to be valued /market comparables (comparable
transactions).

7. Selectian of Valuation Method

The application of a particular method of vaiuation depends on the purpose for which the
valuation is done. Although different values may exist for different purposes, it cannot be
too strongly emphasized that a valuer can only arrive at one value for one purpose.

¢ Market Appreach

Since the valuation is being carried out in respect of the Companies and the shares
of the any of the company are not listed on any stock exchanges, the market price
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of the same is not availabie and hence the Market Price Method has not been
considered.

There are no directly comparable listed companies comparable in operational
size, business characteristics and scale of operations as compared to Transferce
Company and Transferor Company. Also, Comparable Multiple method is
mostly driven by market sentiments which may not be accurate. We have
therefore not considered Comparable Companies Multiple Method for valuation
analysis.

There are nc comparable transactions that were closed within the same industry
as the any of the company and accordingly, Comparable Companies Multiple
Method has not been considered.

* Asset Approach
Asset /Cost approach is appropriate for valuing companies that belong to certain
industries which are asset-heavy such as investments, immovable properties, etc.

In the present case, Transferee Company derives its income from the Operation
and Maintenance of a Software Development Park. Fair value of such investment
property and land at Alibaug has been considered based on Valuation report
dated January 23, 2024 issued by M/s. Niren K Vikamsey. Since it has no other
significant business operations, the Net Assets Value ('NAV”") Method has been
adopted considering the book value/ fair value of the assets wherever applicable,
owned by the Company and the attached liabilities as at the Valuation Date.
Considering the above, we have thought fit to use NAV Method under Cost
Approach to arrive at the value of equity shares of the Company as on the
Valuation Date.

As the Transferor Company has heavy investments in immovable properties, and
in such a situation, it is our considered opinion that Replacement Cost Method is
the most appropriate method of valuation.

Thus, i such a situation, it is our considered opinion that Replacement Cost
Method is the most appropriate methiod of valuation and we have conducted the
valuation exercise of the Transferee Company and Transferor Company
accordingly.

* Income Approach

Transferee Company has no other significant business operations except
Operation and Maintenance of a Software Development Park ie. Panchshil
Tech Park, Pune, Maharashtra. Since, the Management has not drawn a long-
term business plan and thereby no projections have been shared with us, the
Income Approach has not been applied for the present valuation exercise.
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We have also been informed by the Management that the Transferor Company
does not have any specific business plans wherein the cash flow / income streams
can reasonably be estimated for. Due to the Tack of visibility of definite stream of
future cash flows, where the income camnot be estimated reliably, it would be
rather difficult to project future income pattern and therefore, we have
considered it prudent to not determine the valuation under the Discounted Cash
Flow Method for valuation of the Transferor Company.

It is pertinent to note that the fair value per equity share derived under each method applied as
above would be different owing to the different principles and technigues involved under each
method. However, for the purposes of recommending a fair equity share exchange ratio, it is
necessary to arrive at a single vatue for the equity shares of the Companies. It is however important
to note that in doing so, we are not attempting to arrive al the absolute values of the equity shares
of each company but to work out a relative value per share appropriate under the given
circumstances. '

For this purpose, it is necessary to give appropriate weightage to the values arrived at under cach
method so as to derive the fair equity share exchange ratio.

However, iri the given case, as the fair value per share of the Transferor Company and Transferee
Company has been derived only based on the asset / cost approach, as stated above and as such
no weightage average value needs to be discovered.

8. Significant assumptions, if any

The aforesaid fair equity share exchange ratio has been determined after considering and
factoring the effect of the impending capital reduction proposal of the Transferee Company
as proposed in the Scheme.

In an unlikely scenario of the capital reduction proposal not being finally implemented, for
any reason whatsoever, before coming into effect of this Scheme, then the fair equity share
exchange ratio shall be the same as stated below as the impeding capital reduction, does not
have any impact of the fair equity share exchange ratio.

9, Fair value of equity shares and fair equity share exchange ratio

Based on the foregoing discussion including the relative fair value of equity shares of both
Companies using the valuation approach and methods as referred in this report, the
statutory requirement of issue of shares by the Transferee Company at a price not below the
face value of such shares, I consider that the {air equity share exchange ratio would be as
follows:

“1539 (One Thousand Five Hundred and Thirty-Nine) fully paid-up equity shares of Rs. 10/~ (Rupees
Ten Only) each of the Transferee Company shall be issued and allotted for every 149 (One Hundred

e and Forty-Nine) fully paid-up equity shares of Rs. 10/- each held in the Transferor Company.”
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Valuation 2,407 233,
Total shares of the company 70,389 53,44,455
Final valuation of the Company 16,93,99.876 1,24,52,58,015
Value per share 2,407.00 233.00
Fair Equity Share Exchange Ratio 1,539.24 149.00

Ratio for every 149 shares held in GGTPL, Shareholdess will receive 1539 shares of GCL

Kindly refer Annexure 1 for workings relating to fair equity share exchange ratio.

10, Intended users of the valuation

The purpose of this Valuation Report is to recommend fair equity share exchange ratio for the
Proposed Amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company. It can
be submitted to any authority or persons, to the extent mandatorily required under the
applicable laws of India, and may be produced before judicial, regulatory or government
authorities, in connection with the Proposed Amalgamation.

This report has been provided to the Companies and has been prepared solely for the
putpose of providing selected information on a confidential basis.

Possession of this report does not imply a permission to publish the same or any part thereof.
No part of this report is to be communicated to the public by means of advertising, news
teleases, sales and promotions or any othcr media without a prior written consent and
approval by us.

11.  Disclosure of valuer’s interest or conflici, if any

To the best of our knowledge and information available, we confirm that we do not have
any financial interest or conflict with the Companies or any of its Board of directors for
recommending the fair equity share exchange ratio.

12.  Valuation standards followed and valuation analysis

We have followed and complied with ICAI Valuation Standard 102 -Valuation Bases (IVS
102), ICAIL Valuation Standard 103 - Valuation Approaches and methods (IVS 103), ICAI
Valuation Standard 201 - Scope of Work, Analyses and Evaluation (IVS 201), ICAI Valuation
Standard 202 - Reporting and Documentation (IVS 202) and ICAI Valuation Standard 301 -
Business Valuation (IVS 301). As per Valuation Standard 102 -Valuation Bases (IVS 102), We
have taken Fair Value as Valuation base and Going Concern Value as Premise of Value.

13. Caveats, limitations and disclaimers
13.1. Restriction on use of Valuation Report

This valuation report has been prepared for the purposes stated herein and should not be relied
upon for any other purpose. Our dlient is the only authorized user of this report and is restricted
for the purpose indicaled in the engagement leller. We do not lake any responsibilily for the
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13.2.

13.3.

134.

13.5.

13.6.

unauthorized use of this report. The Report should not be copied or reproduced without
obtaining our prior wriiten approval for any purpese other than the purpose for which it is
prepared. Further our report is in accordance with ICAI Valuation Standards 2018.

Our Responsibility

Weowe responsibility only to our client that has appointed us under the terms of the en gagement
letter. We will not be liable for any losses, claims, damages or liabilities arising out of the actions
taken, omissions or advice given by any other person. In no event shall we be liable for any loss,
damages, cost or expenses arising in any way from fraudulent acts, misrepresentations or wilful
default on part of the client or companies, their directors, employees or agents.

The decision to carry out the transaction {including consideration thereof) lies entirely with the
Management/the Board of Directors and our work and our finding shall not constitute a

recommendation as to whether or not the Management/the Board of Directors should carry out
the transaction.

Declaration of independence

We are independent of the Companies and have no current or expected interest in the Com panies
or their assets. The fee paid for our services in no way influenced the results of our analysis.

Accuracy of Information

While our work has involved an analysis of financial information and accounting records, our
engagement does not include an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards
of the clients' existing business records. Accordingly, we express no audit opinion or any other
form of assurance on this information. Accordingly, we assume no responsibility and make no
representations with respect to the accuracy or completeness of any information provided by
and on behalf the client. Our repost is subject to the scope and limitations detailed herein As
such the report is to be read in totality, and not in parts, in conjunction with the relevant
documents referred to herein and in the context of the purpose for which it is made.

Inspections and/or investigations undertaken

We had discussions, interactions and virtual meetings with representatives of the management
of the Company for carrying out valuation and have discussed assumption, financial
statements and other relevant details provided by the Company and the assumptions implicit
as made by the management have been reviewed and accepted for the purpose of this

valuation. We have not conducted any physical inspections of real assets, factory sites, stocks,
elc. as a part of our evaluation,

Achievability of the foxecast results
We do not provide assurance on the achievability of the results forecast by the

management/owners as evenls and circumstances do not occur as expected; differences
between actual and expected results may be material. We express no opinion as to how closely
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the actual results will correspond to those projected/forecast as the achievement of the forecast
results is dependent on actions, plans and asszmptions of management of the Companies.

13.7. Post Valuation Date Events

The user to which this valuation is addressed should read the basis upon which the valuation has
been done and be aware of the potential for later variations in value due to factors that are
unforeseen at the valuation date. Due to possible changes in market forces and circumstances,
this valuation report can only be regarded as relevant as at the valuation date.

13.8. Range of Value Estimate

The valuation of companies and businesses is not a precise science and the conclusions arrived
at in many cases will be subjective and dependent on the exercise of individual judgment. There
i5, therefore, no indisputable single value and we normally express our opinion on the value as
falling within a likely range. Whilst we consider our recommendation of the fair value to be both
reasonable and defensible based on the information available to us, others may place a different
value on the companies.

13.9. Reliance on the representations of the clients, their management and other third parties

The Companies and their management warranted to us that the information they supplied was
complete, accurate and true and correct to the best of their knowledge. We have relied upon the
representations of the owners/clients, their management and other third parties concerning the
financial data, operational data and maintenance schedule of all plant-machinery-equipment-
tocls-vehicles and any other investments in tangible assets except as specifically stated to the
contrary in the report.

We shall not be liable for any loss, damages, cost or expenses arising from fraudulent acts,
misrepresentations, or wilful default on part of the Companies, their directors, employee or
agents. The Management has represented that the Companies have clear and valid title of assets.
No investigation on the Companies’ claim to Htle of assets has been made for the purpose of this
vajuation and their claim to such rights has been assumed to be valid.

13.10. No procedure performed to corroborate information taken from reliable extesnal sources

We have relied on data from external sources also to conclude the valuation. These sources are
believed to be reliable and therefore, we assume no hiability for the truth or accuracy of any data,
opinions or estimates furnished by others that have been used in this analysis. Where we have
relied on data, opinions or estimates from exiernal sources, reasonable care has been taken Lo
ensure that such data has been correctly extracted from those sources and /or reproduced in its
proper form and context.

13.11, Compliance with relevant laws
The report assumes that the client complies fully with relevant laws and regulations applicable

in its area of operations and usage uniess otherwise stated, and that the companies will be
managed in a competent and responsible manner. Further, as unless specifically stated to the
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contrary, this report has given no consideration to matters of a legal nature, including issues of
legal title and compliance with local laws, and litigations and other contingent Habilities that are
not recorded/reflected in the Financial Statements and other information provided to us. Our
report is not, nor should it be construed as we are opining or certifying the compliance of the
proposed transaction with the provisions of any law including companies, competition, taxation
and capital market retated laws or as regards any legal implications or issues arising in India or
abroad.

13.12. Multiple factors affecting the Valuation Report

The vatuation report is tempered by the exercise of judicious discretion by us as valuer, taking
into account the relevant factors. There will always be several factors, e.g. management
capability, present and prospective competition, yield on comparable securities, market
sentiment, etc. which may not be apparent from the Financial Statements but could strongly
influence the value of the Companies.

13.13. Subsequent events

Events occurring after the date hereof may affect this report and the assumptions used in
preparing it, and we do not assume any obligation to update, revise or reaffirm this Report. An
analysis of such nature is necessarily based on the prevailing stock market, financial, economic
and other conditions in general and industry trends in particular as in effect on, and the
information made available to us as of, the date hereof and thus effects of subsequent events are
not generally factored in the valuation exercise.

13.14. Future services including but not limited fo Testimony or attendance in courts/ tribunals/
authorities for the opinion of value in the Valuation Report

We are fully aware that based on the opinion of value expressed in this report, we may be
required to give testimony or attend court / judicial proceedings with regard to the subject assels,
although it is out of scope of the assignment, unless specific arrangements to do so have been
made in advance, or as otherwise required by law. In such event, the party seeking our evidence
in the proccedings shall bear the cost/professional fee of attending court / judicial proceedings
and my / our tendering evidence before such authority under the applicable laws,

13.15. Information provided with respect to valuation

In the course of the valuation, we were provided with both written and verbal information. We
have however, evaluated the information provided to us by the Companies through broad
inquiry, analysis and review but have not carried out a due diligence or audit of the information
provided for the purpose of this engagement. Cur conclusions are based on the assumptions,
forecasts and other information given by/on behalf of the Companies.

We do not make any representation or warranty, express or implied, as to accuracy,
reasonableness or compieteness of the information, based on which the valuation is carried out.
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Ammexure 1

Summary working of Calculation of fair equity share exchange ratio for issue of Equity Shares
{factoring the effect of the impending capital reduction proposal of the Transferee Company)

GOLDCREST CORPORATION LIMITED
NET ASSETS VALUE METHOD
VVALUATION AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2023

TAmount . .
Non-current assets .
Property, Plant & Equipment 2,04,97,216
Fair Value of Investment Properties 71,56,73,249
Capital Advances 75,00,000
ROU Assets 1,84.80,037
Fair Value of Investments in Financial Securities 41,74,81,665
Current assets
Trade receivables 83,64,053
Other current assets 16,350,424
Other non-current assets 27,46,445
Other non-current financial assets 2,97,10,998
Cash and cash equivalenis 18,18,30.048
Short term loans and advances 5,05,04,933
Total current assets 27,48,06,901
Current liabilities
Trade payables 1,89,075
Other current financial liabilities 97,88,574
Other non-current financial labilities 5,36,87,140
Short-term provisions 75,19,649
Long-term provisions 34,67,5975
Total current liabilities (7.46,52,013)
Deferred tax liabilities (4,08,13,436)
Lease Liabilities (1,63,16,590)

1,32,26,57,029

Number of equity shares _ 56,89,76()
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No. of Shares 56,89,760
Total Valuation 1,32,26,41,610
No. of shares bought back 3,45,305
Price per share 233
Total Consideration 8,04,56,065
Valuation post capital reduction 1,24,21,85,545
No. shares post reduction 53,44,455
Value per share (exit price offered to sharecholders) 233
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Replacement Value under Net Assets Method
Goldcrest Global Tradm 0 _anate Ln_mted

1 Non-Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment

(b} Non-current investment

18,08,00,061

20,96,20,074

(<) Long term loans and advances

(e) Other Non-current Assets

1,54,23,538

1,54,23,538

Tetal Non-Current Assets

19,62,23,599

22,50,43,612

II | Current Assets

(a) Current Investinents

(b) Trade Receivables

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

22,70,976

22,70,976

(d) Loans & Advances

Total Current Assets

22,70,976

22,70,976

m Total Assets (I +IT)

19,84,94,575

22,73,14,588

IV | Non-Current Liabilities

(a) Provisions

(b} Delerred Tax Liabilities (Nel)

Total Non-Current Liabilities

Vv Current Liabilities

{a) Short term borrowings

58,00,000

58,00,000

(b) Trade Payables:

(A) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises: and

other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises

(B) total outstanding dues of creditors

4,93,91,071

4,93,91,071

(b) Other current liabilities

27,223,642

27,223,642

Total Current Liabilities

5,79,14,712

5,79,14,712

VI Total Liabilities (IV + V)

5,794,712

5,79,14,712

VII | Net Asset Value {fII - VI)

14,05,79,862

Net Replaceable Value of Net Assets (I11 - VI)

16,93,99,876

VIII | Preference Shareholders Claims

=

Shareholders (VII - VII)

Replaceable Value available to the Equity

14,05,79,862

16,93,99,876

Value of INR 10/- each)

Total no. of outstanding Equlty' Shares {Face

70,389

70,389

Fair Value per Equity Share - as per
Replacement Value method (IX/ X)

1,997.19

2,406.62
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Neote 1 Non - Current Investments

1 | capital 16,660 16,660
Avanti Flectronic City Project LILF - Current

2 | capital 1,19,58,628 1,19,58,628

3 | Fliessen Real Estates LLP - Capital Account 50,006 15,49,656

4 | Golderest Corporation Limited 16,87,74,767 19,60,95,130

Total | 18,08,00061 | 20,96,20,074
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Replacement Value under Net Assets Method
FLIESSEN REAL ESTATES LLP

Contact No - +91 265 3570322
Mobite No :- +91 8000334511

Email :- mayurpopat@jnmaandco.com

I Non-Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment

i)  Tangible Assets

ii)  Capital work in progress

58,18,207

6,43,95,660

(b) Non-current investment

50,000

3,20.081

(c) Long term loans and advances

(e) Other Non-currenl Assels

Total Non-Current Assets

58,68,207

6,47,15,741

I | Current Assets

(a) Current Investments

(b) Trade Receivables

(<} Cash and Cash Equivalents

1,01,405

101,405

(d) Loans & Advances

Total Current Assets

1,01,405

1,01,405

111 Total Assets (I +11Ij

59,69,612

6,48,17,146

IV | Non-Current Liabilities

(a) Provisions

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

Total Non-Current Liabilities

V | Current Liabilities

(a) Short term borrowings

28,25,000

28,25,000

(b) Trade Payables

5,900

5,900

{b) Other current liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

28,30,900

28,30,900

VI Total Liabilities (IV +V)

28,30,900

28,30,900

VII | Net Asset Value (11I - VI)

31,38,712

6,19,86,246

Net Replaceable Value of Net Assets

Note 3 Capital work in progress in Fliessen as on December 31, 2023

Land Area Square
Gut No. (Gunta) Address Acre | meter Rate | FMV
111A/4/2 144 | Mushet, Alibaug, Raigad 3.6 14569 | 3,350 4,88,05,132
20 46 | Chondi, Alibaug, Raigad 1.15 4654 | 3,350 1,55,90,525
6,43,95,660
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Annexure 6

GOLDCREST CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: U74999MH1983PLC029408
Registered Office: 3rd Floor, Devidas Mansion, Mereweather Road, Colaba, Mumbai,Maharashtra - 400001, India

Email: office@goldcrestgroup.com

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF GOLDCREST CORPORATION LIMITED AT ITS MEETING
HELD ON MARCH 5, 2024, AT 11 AM AT 3RD FLOOR, DEVIDAS MANSION, MEREWEATHER ROAD, COLABA, MUMBAI,
MAHARASHTRA- 400001, INDIA, ON EFFECT OF THE SCHEME ON EACH CLASS OF SHAREHOLDERS, KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL, PROMOTERS, NON-PROMOTER SHAREHOLDERS, LAYING OUT IN PARTICULAR THE SHARE EXCHANGE

RATIO.

1. Background

1.1.

1.2.

The Scheme of Arrangement between Goldcrest Global Trading Private Limited (“Transferor Company”) and Goldcrest Corporation
Limited (“Transferee Company”) and their respective shareholders pursuant to Sections 230 read with Section 232 and other relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 was approved by the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company and Transferee Company
vide Board resolution dated March 5, 2024.

As per Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, a report adopted by the directors explaining effect of compromise and
arrangement on each class of shareholders, key managerial personnel, promoters, and non-promoter shareholders laying out the
share exchange ratio (“Report™). At the Board Meeting, following documents were placed before the Board of Directors for their
consideration:

a. Draft of proposed Scheme of Arrangement;

b. Audited financial accounts for the period ended March 31, 2023 of the Transferor Company and Transferee Company;

c. Provisional financial accounts for the period ended December 31, 2023 of the Transferor Company and Transferee Company;
d. Valuation report dated March 5, 2024 obtained from registered Valuer, Mayur Popat for determining the share exchange ratio;

e. Valuation report dated March 5, 2024 from independent valuers, SSPA & CO. and ICON Valuation LLP (Registered Valuers)
for recommending the exit price;

f. Fairness opinion dated March 5, 2024 provided by independent merchant banker, Vivro Financials Services Private Limited;

g. Certificate dated March 5, 2024 issued by the Statutory Auditors of the Company confirming that the Accounting treatment for
the proposed scheme is in accordance with section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. Rationale of the Scheme:

2.1.

This Scheme between the Companies (as defined hereinafter) is being undertaken as part of the restructuring plan to simplify the
holding structure through consolidation of the group company and to reduce the paid-up share capital of the Transferee Company held
by the Relevant Shareholders (as defined hereinafter). The Scheme is expected to achieve various objectives, including:

h. The Transferee Company has sufficient reserves and cash and intends to reduce its paid-up equity share capital, by paying off to
the Relevant Shareholders, in order to maximize the value of such shareholders. The Transferee Company had delisted its shares
from BSE in 2022, under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (“SEBI
Delisting Regulations”) pursuant to which, the promoters of the Transferee Company had provided an exit opportunity to the
Relevant Shareholders of the Transferee Company, under the SEBI Delisting Regulations at a price of INR 200/-(Rupees Two
Hundred Only) per share for a face value of INR 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) per each paid up equity share. Post the delisting and
exit offer which concluded on August 2022, residual shareholders who still had not tendered the equity shares were allowed to
tender the shares during the exit window which was open till October 12, 2023. The shareholding of public shareholders reduced
from 27.14% to 8.26%. The Transferee Company has a total of 637 shareholders. Out of these, around, 631 shareholders, i.e
approximately, 99.06% of the total shareholders hold less than 1,00,000 equity shares of the Transferee Company (“Relevant
Shareholders”). Out of these, around 353, i.e., approximately, 55.94% of the total Relevant Shareholders hold less than or
equal to 100 equity shares of the Transferee Company individually. Of the above, around 262, i.e., approximately 41.52% of
Relevant Shareholders currently hold less than or equal to 10 equity shares of the Transferee Company individually. Hence, a
very moderate shareholding of the Transferee Company is scattered amongst a very dense number of shareholders.

i. Post delisting, the Transferee Company’s equity shares cannot be traded on any of the stock exchanges in India. Since there is no
trading platform available to the sharcholders, the equity shares of the Transferee Company have lost its marketability. In view
of this, the proposed Capital Reduction is considered to monetize/ liquidate the investment made by the Relevant Shareholders
in the equity share capital of the Transferee Company which is otherwise not marketable/tradeable. It will give an opportunity
to the Relevant Shareholders of the Transferee Company to exit from the Transferee Company at a fair exit price.

J- The Capital Reduction shall also enable the Transferee Company to save administrative and other costs associated with having

a large number of shareholders.

k. The proposed Amalgamation will lead to greater efficiency in overall combined business including economies of scale, efficiency
of operations, cash flow management and unfettered access to cash flow generated by the combined business which can be
deployed more efficiently for the purpose of development of businesses of the combined entity and their growth opportunities,
eliminate inter corporate dependencies, minimize the administrative compliances and to maximize shareholders value.

1. It will provide for more productive and optimum utilization of various resources by pooling of the managerial, technical and
financial resources of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company which will fuel the growth of the business and help
effectively address the growing competition.
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m. It will result in economies of scale, reduction in overheads including administrative, managerial and other expenditure,
operational rationalization, organizational efficiency and optimal utilization of resources by elimination of unnecessary
duplication of activities and related costs which will in turn promote maximization of stakeholders value.

n. It will result in reduction in the multiplicity of legal and regulatory compliances required at present to be separately carried out
by the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company.

2.2. This Scheme would be in the interest of the Companies, their respective shareholders, creditors, employees, and other stakeholders
and will not be prejudicial to the interest of any concerned shareholders or creditors or general public at large.

Effectiveness of Scheme is conditional upon fulfilment of the actions specified in the Scheme which inter alia include:

3.1.  The Scheme being approved by the requisite majorities in number and value of such classes of persons including the shareholders and/
or creditors of each of the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company as may be required under applicable laws.

3.2. The Scheme being sanctioned by the Hon’ble Tribunal under Sections 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and/or other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

3.3.  Certified copies of the orders of the Hon’ble Tribunal sanctioning this Scheme is being filed with RoC by each of the Transferee
Company and the Transferor Company.

Effect of the Scheme on each class of shareholders and Key Managerial Personnel and promoter shareholders

Sr. No. | Category of the Effect of the Scheme on Stakeholders
stakeholder
i Shareholders (Promoter |i. The Transferee Company has sufficient reserves and cash and intends to reduce its paid-up share

and Non-Promoter) capital, which is no longer required, by paying off to the Relevant Shareholders at the value
determined as per the valuation carried out by independent valuers, SSPA & CO. (Chartered
Accountants) and Icon Valuation LLP, Independent Registered Valuers. On the Scheme becoming
effective, the Promoter shareholding percentage would stand increased in the Transferee Company.

ii. Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in consideration of the Amalgamation, the Transferee
Company shall allot equity shares, credited as fully paid-up, to the members of Transferor
Company, holding fully paid up equity shares in Transferor Company and whose names appear
in the register of members of Transferor Company and / or whose name appears as the beneficial
owner of the Transferor Company shares in the records of the depository on a specific record date
and at a specific record time, or to such of their respective heirs, executors, administrators or other
legal representative or other successors in title.

=

iii. The equity shares of the Transferee Company to be allotted to the members of Transferor
Company shall be allotted in the following manner: “7,539 (One thousand five hundred thirty-
nine) fully paid-up equity shares of Rs. 10/- each of the Transferee Company shall be issued and
allotted for every 149 (One hundred forty-nine) fully paid-up equity shares of Rs. 10/- each held

in the Transferor Company” (“Share Exchange Ratio”).

iv. The shares allotted to shareholders of Transferor Company by the Transferee Company as set out
above shall rank pari-passu in all respects with the then existing equity shares of the Transferee
Company.

v. The promoters of the Transferee Company shall continue to remain the promoters, even after the
effectiveness of the Scheme.

Vi.

—

Post the effectiveness of the Scheme, the promoters of Transferor Company shall become
promoter shareholders of Company.

vii. Further, the Transferor Company does not have any non-Promoter shareholders.

il Key Managerial i. The KMPs of the Transferee Company shall continue as Key Managerial Personnel of the
Personnel (“KMPs”) Transferee Company after effectiveness of the Scheme. Please refer to point (1) above for details
regarding the effect of the Scheme on such KMPs who are also shareholders of the Transferee
Company. Other than the above, the KMPs are not affected pursuant to the Scheme.

ii. Post Amalgamation the Transferor Company shall stand dissolved without winding up and
accordingly, they are not required to appoint any KMP.

—-

iii Director(s) The Director(s) of the Transferee Company shall continue as Director(s) of the Transferee

Company after effectiveness of the Scheme.

ii. Please refer to point (1) above for details regarding the effect of the Scheme on such Director(s)
who are also shareholders of the Transferee Company.

=

iii. Upon the effectiveness of the Scheme, the Transferor Company shall stand dissolved without
winding up and accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company shall cease to

exist.

iv. Other than the above, the Director(s) are not affected pursuant to the Scheme.
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v Employees i. Under the Scheme, no rights of the staff and employees of the Transferee Company are being
affected.

ii. On the Scheme becoming effective, the employees of the Transferor Company who are in
employment as on the Effective Date (as defined in the Scheme) shall become and shall be deemed
to have become the employees of the Transferee Company, without any interruption or break of
service and on terms and conditions no less favorable than those applicable to them with reference
to their employment in the Transferor Company on the Effective Date. In the circumstances, the
rights of the staff and employees of the Transferor Company would in no way be affected by the
Scheme.

v Creditors i. Under the Scheme, no arrangement is sought to be entered into between the Transferee Company
and its creditors. The interest of the creditors of the Transferor Company shall not be impacted in
any manner.

ii. Under the Scheme, there is no arrangement with the creditors of the Transferor Company. Upon
effectiveness of the Scheme and as provided in the Scheme, the creditors of the Transferor
Company shall become the creditors of the Transferee Company. No compromise is offered under
the Scheme to any of the creditors of the Transferor Company. The liability of the creditors of
the Transferor Company, under the Scheme, is neither being reduced nor being extinguished. The
creditors of the Transferor Company would in no way be affected by the Scheme.

vi Depositors, Deposit i. NotApplicable. As on date the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company do not have any
Trustee Depositors and Deposit trustee.

vii | Debenture holders, i. NotApplicable. As on date the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company do not have any
Debenture trustee Debenture holders / Debenture trustee.

5. Conclusion

While deliberating on the Scheme, the Board has considered its impact on each of the shareholders, KMPs, creditors and employees. In the
opinion of the Board, the Scheme is in the best interest of the shareholders, KMPs, Creditors and employees of the Transferee Company and
there will be no prejudice caused to them in any manner by the Scheme.

The Board has adopted this Report after noting and considering the documents and information set forth in this Report.

For Goldcrest Corporation Limited

Anupa Tanna Shah
DIN 01587901
Managing Director

Place-Mumbai
Date- 5" March 2024
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Annexure 7

GOLDCREST GLOBAL TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
3rd Floor, Devidas Mansion, Mereweather Road, Colaba, Mumbai-400039.
CIN: U74999MH1994PTC076391
Phone: 22837489/90
Email: office@goldcrestgroup.com

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF GOLDCREST GLOBAL TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED AT ITS
MEETING HELD ON MARCH 5, 2024, AT 10AM AT 3RD FLOOR, DEVIDAS MANSION, MEREWEATHER ROAD, COLABA,
MUMBAI, MAHARASHTRA - 400001, INDIA , ON EFFECT OF THE SCHEME ON EACH CLASS OF SHAREHOLDERS, KEY
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, PROMOTERS, NON-PROMOTER SHAREHOLDERS, LAYING OUT IN PARTICULAR THE
SHARE EXCHANGE RATIO.

1.
1.1.

1.2

Background

The Scheme of Arrangement between Goldcrest Global Trading Private Limited (“Transferor Company”) and Goldcrest Corporation
Limited (“Transferee Company™) (““ collectively defined as the Companies”) and their respective shareholders pursuant to Sections
230 read with Section 232 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 was approved by the Board of Directors of the
Transferor Company and Transferee Company vide Board resolution dated March 5, 2024.

As per Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, that a report is required to be adopted by the directors explaining effect of
compromise and arrangement on each class of shareholders, key managerial personnel, promoters, and non-promoter shareholders
laying out the share exchange ratio (“Report™). At the Board Meeting, following documents were placed before the Board of Directors
for their consideration:

a. Draft of proposed Scheme of Arrangement;
b.  Audited financial accounts for the period ended March 31, 2023 of the Transferor Company and Transferee Company;
c. Provisional financial accounts for the period ended December 31, 2023 of the Transferor Company and Transferee Company;

d.  Valuation report dated March 5, 2024 obtained from registered Valuer, Mayur Popat for determining the share exchange ratio

2. Rationale of the Scheme:

2.1.

This Scheme between the Companies is being undertaken as part of the restructuring plan to simplify the holding structure through
consolidation of the group company and to reduce the paid-up share capital of the Transferee Company held by the Relevant
Shareholders (as defined hereinafter). The Scheme is expected to achieve various objectives, including:

a. The Transferee Company is has sufficient reserves and cash and intends to reduce its paid-up equity share capital, by paying
off to the Relevant Shareholders, in order to maximize the value of such shareholders. The Transferee Company had delisted
its shares from BSE in 2022, under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021
(“SEBI Delisting Regulations”) pursuant to which, the promoters of the Transferee Company had provided an exit opportunity
to the Relevant Shareholders of the Transferee Company, under the SEBI Delisting Regulations at a price of INR 200/-(Rupees
Two Hundred Only) per share for a face value of INR 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) per each paid up equity share. Post the delisting
and exit offer which concluded on August 2022, residual shareholders who still had not tendered the equity shares were allowed
to tender the shares during the exit window which was open till October 12, 2023. The shareholding of public shareholders
reduced from 27.14% to 8.26%. The Transferee Company has a total of 637 shareholders. Out of these, around, 631 shareholders,
i.e approximately, 99.06% of the total shareholders hold less than 1,00,000 equity shares of the Transferee Company (“Relevant
Shareholders™). Out of these, around 353, i.e., approximately, 55.94% of the total Relevant Shareholders hold less than or
equal to 100 equity shares of the Transferee Company individually. Of the above, around 262, i.e., approximately 41.52% of
Relevant Shareholders currently hold less than or equal to 10 equity shares of the Transferee Company individually. Hence, a
very moderate shareholding of the Transferee Company is scattered amongst a very dense number of shareholders.

b. Post delisting, the Transferee Company’s equity shares cannot be traded on any of the stock exchanges in India. Since there is no
trading platform available to the shareholders, the equity shares of the Transferee Company have lost its marketability. In view
of this, the proposed Capital Reduction is considered to monetize/ liquidate the investment made by the Relevant Shareholders
in the equity share capital of the Transferee Company which is otherwise not marketable/tradeable. It will give an opportunity
to the Relevant Shareholders of the Transferee Company to exit from the Transferee Company at a fair exit price.

c. The Capital Reduction shall also enable the Transferee Company to save administrative and other costs associated with having
a large number of shareholders.

d. The proposed Amalgamation will lead to greater efficiency in overall combined business including economies of scale, efficiency
of operations, cash flow management and unfettered access to cash flow generated by the combined business which can be
deployed more efficiently for the purpose of development of businesses of the combined entity and their growth opportunities,
eliminate inter corporate dependencies, minimize the administrative compliances and to maximize shareholders value.

e. It will provide for more productive and optimum utilization of various resources by pooling of the managerial, technical and
financial resources of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company which will fuel the growth of the business and help
effectively address the growing competition.

f. It will result in economies of scale, reduction in overheads including administrative, managerial and other expenditure,
operational rationalization, organizational efficiency and optimal utilization of resources by elimination of unnecessary
duplication of activities and related costs which will in turn promote maximization of stakeholders value.
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g. It will result in reduction in the multiplicity of legal and regulatory compliances required at present to be separately carried out
by the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company.

2.2.  This Scheme would be in the interest of the Companies, their respective shareholders, creditors, employees, and other stakeholders
and will not be prejudicial to the interest of any concerned shareholders or creditors or general public at large.

Effectiveness of Scheme is conditional upon fulfilment of the actions specified in the Scheme which inter alia include:

3.1

3.2.

3.3.

The Scheme being approved by the requisite majorities in number and value of such classes of persons including the shareholders and/
or creditors of each of the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company as may be required under applicable laws.

The Scheme being sanctioned by the Hon’ble Tribunal under Sections 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and/or other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Certified copies of the orders of the Hon’ble Tribunal sanctioning this Scheme is being filed with RoC by each of the Transferee
Company and the Transferor Company.

Effect of the Scheme on each class of shareholders and Key Managerial Personnel and promoter shareholders

Sr.
No.

Category of th
stakeholder

e | Effect of the Scheme on Stakeholders

i

Shareholders (Promoter
and Non-Promoter)

—

ii.

iii.

iv.

vi.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in consideration of the Amalgamation, the Transferee
Company shall allot equity shares, credited as fully paid-up, to the members of Transferor
Company, holding fully paid up equity shares in Transferor Company and whose names appear
in the register of members of Transferor Company and / or whose name appears as the beneficial
owner of the Transferor Company shares in the records of the depository on a specific record date
and at a specific record time, or to such of their respective heirs, executors, administrators or other
legal representative or other successors in title.

The equity shares of the Transferee Company to be allotted to the members of Transferor Company
shall be allotted in the following manner: “1,539 (One thousand five hundred thirty-nine) fully
paid-up equity shares of Rs. 10/- each of the Transferee Company shall be issued and allotted
for every 149 (One hundred forty-nine) fully paid-up equity shares of Rs. 10/- each held in the
Transferor Company” (“Share Exchange Ratio”).

The shares allotted to shareholders of Transferor Company by the Transferee Company as set out
above shall rank pari-passu in all respects with the then existing equity shares of the Transferee
Company.

The promoters of the Transferee Company shall continue to remain the promoters, even after the
effectiveness of the Scheme.

Post the effectiveness of the Scheme, the promoters of Transferor Company shall become
promoter shareholders of Company.

Further, the Transferor Company does not have any non-Promoter shareholders.

il

Key Managerial
Personnel (“KMPs”)

ii.

The KMPs of the Transferee Company shall continue as Key Managerial Personnel of the
Transferee Company after effectiveness of the Scheme. Please refer to point (1) above for details
regarding the effect of the Scheme on such KMPs who are also shareholders of the Transferee
Company. Other than the above, the KMPs are not affected pursuant to the Scheme.

Post Amalgamation the Transferor Company shall stand dissolved without winding up and
accordingly, they are not required to appoint any KMP.

il

Director(s)

ii.

iii.

iv.

The Director(s) of the Transferee Company shall continue as Director(s) of the Transferee
Company after effectiveness of the Scheme.

Please refer to point (1) above for details regarding the effect of the Scheme on such Director(s)
who are also shareholders of the Transferee Company.

Upon the effectiveness of the Scheme, the Transferor Company shall stand dissolved without
winding up and accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company shall cease to
exist.

Other than the above, the Director(s) are not affected pursuant to the Scheme.

Employees

ii.

Under the Scheme, no rights of the staff and employees of the Transferee Company are being
affected.

On the Scheme becoming effective, the employees of the Transferor Company who are in
employment as on the Effective Date (as defined in the Scheme) shall become and shall be deemed
to have become the employees of the Transferee Company, without any interruption or break of
service and on terms and conditions no less favorable than those applicable to them with reference
to their employment in the Transferor Company on the Effective Date. In the circumstances, the
rights of the staff and employees of the Transferor Company would in no way be affected by the
Scheme.
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v | Creditors i.  Under the Scheme, no arrangement is sought to be entered into between the Transferee Company
and its creditors. The interest of the creditors of the Transferor Company shall not be impacted in
any manner.

ii. Under the Scheme, there is no arrangement with the creditors of the Transferor Company. Upon
effectiveness of the Scheme and as provided in the Scheme, the creditors of the Transferor
Company shall become the creditors of the Transferee Company. No compromise is offered under
the Scheme to any of the creditors of the Transferor Company. The liability of the creditors of
the Transferor Company, under the Scheme, is neither being reduced nor being extinguished. The
creditors of the Transferor Company would in no way be affected by the Scheme.

vi | Depositors, Deposit i.  Not Applicable. As on date the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company does not have
Trustee any Depositors and Deposit trustee.
vii | Debenture holders, i.  Not Applicable. As on date the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company does not have
Debenture trustee any Debenture holders / Debenture trustee.
5. Conclusion

While deliberating on the Scheme, the Board has considered its impact on each of the shareholders, KMPs, creditors and employees. In the
opinion of the Board, the Scheme is in the best interest of the shareholders, KMPs, Creditors and employees of the Transferor Company and
there will be no prejudice caused to them in any manner by the Scheme. The Board has adopted this Report after noting and considering the
documents and information set forth in this Report.

For Goldcrest Global Trading Private Limited

Anupa Tanna Shah
DIN 01587901
Director

Place-Mumbai
Date- 5" March 2024
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GOLDCREST CORPORATION LIMITED -
CIN : U74995MH1983PLC029408

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024 - Standalone

Annexure - 8

" (Rupees in Lakhs)

. As at As at
Particulars Note No 31 March 2024| 31 March 2023
ASSETS
(1} Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant & Equipmant 3 224.92 124.41
{b) Invesiment Property 4 1,470.48 1,501.18
{c) Right of use Assets g 150.03 234.0%
(d) Financial Assets
() Investments ] 19828 238.78
(iiy Other Financial Assets 7 315.75 297.11
(e} Other Non-current Assets 8 196.55 102.45
Total Non-Current Assets 2,556.01 2,497.94
{2) Current Assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i} Current Investments =] 4,214.65 2,981.72
(i) Trade Receivables 10 46.55 14.79
(iil) Cash and Cash Equivalenis 1,239.14 1,116.25
(iv) Bank batances other than (jii) above 1 190,00 454.90
(v) Loans 12 971.07 821.62
{vi} Other Financial Assets 13 39.41 23.06
(b} Other Current-Assets 14 80.10 5.26
Total Current Assets 6,780.92 5,423.61
TOTAL ASSETS 9,336.93 7,821.55
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(&) Equity Share Capital 15 568.98 568.98
{b) Other Equity 16 7,382.66 £,091.17
Total Equity 7,951.63 6,660.14
Liabilities
{1) Non-Current Liabilities
{2) Financial Liabilities
(I} Lease Liabilities 5 125.62 62.62
(iiy Other Financials Liabilities 17 536.87 536.87
{b) Provisions 18 28.10 32.43
(c} Deferred Tax Liabilities {Net) 19 485.27 255.33
Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,179.86 931.25
(2) Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Lease Liabilities 5 23.11 148.73
(i) Trade Payables :
{A) total outstanding dues of micro enterptises and small
enterprises: and 20 - . -
(B} total cutsanding duss of creditors other than micro
enterptises and small enterprises 65.97 57.43
{iif) Other Finansial Liabilities 21 113.64 122.84
{b) Provisions 22 272 1.15
Total Current Liabilities 205.44 330.15
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 9,336.93 7,921.55

“The accompanying nates form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.”

For Ramesh M. Sheth & Associates
Firm RAegistration Na. : 111883wW

Charterad Accountants

Mumbai
24 August, 2024

For and behalf of the Board

T dons -

Nita T, Tanna - Chairperson Anupa Tanna Shah - Managing Director

DIN : 00170591 DIN : 1587901
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GOLDCREST CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN : U74999MH1983PLC029408

Statement of Profit & Loss for the Year Ended 31 March 2024 - Standalone

( Rupess in Lakhs except equity shares and per equity share data)

For the| For the
Particulars Note No Year Ended Year Ended
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
I. Revenue From Operations 23 1,585.94 1,129.69
11, Other Income 24 1,009.04 124.81
IIl. Total Income (I + 1) 2,594.98 1,254.50
IV. Expenses :
Employee Benefit Expense 25 233.70 225.91
Finance Costs 5 12.83 16.96
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 3-4 67.45 60.69
Depreciation on Right to use of Assets 5 83.99 83.99
Qther Expenses 26 464.01 485.57
Totzl Expenses (IV) 861.98 873.12
V.Profit / (loss) Before Tax (U - IV) 1,732.99 381.38
V1. Tax Expense:
1) Current Tax 250.00 165.10
2) Deferred Tax 185.94 (86.74)
Total Tax Expense {VI) 439.94 78.36
VII. Profit / (Loss) for the Period (V-VI) 1,293.06 303.01
VIIl.Other Comprehensive Incerme (OCI) (1.17) 0.57
A - ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans (1.57) 0.76
(ii} Changes in fair value in equity instruments - -
(iii} Income tax effect relating to remeasurement of the defined
benefit plans 0.40 (0.19)
B - Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
IX.Total Comprehensive Income for the period 1,251.88 303.58
X. Earnings per Equity Share:
1} Basic 22.73 5.33
2) Diluted 22.73 5.33
Weighted average equity shares used in cormnputing earnings per equity
share ’
1) Basic 5,688,760 5,689,760
2} Diluted 5,689,760 5,689,760

"The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements."

For and behalf of the Board

For Ramesh M. Sheth & Associates
Firm Registration No. ; 111883W Yl - “f j)W
Chartered Accountants /CL -

Nita 7. Tanna - Chairperson
DIN : Q0170581

Me - g
(Partner) { oy { AUDITORS !1%
M.No.101598 ‘(fﬂw No. 1015880 83 1
m‘{é&"\x ,-5
; W7
Mumbai gy e %

3

24 August, 2024
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Anupa Tanna $hah - Managing Director
DIN : 1587901




GOLDCREST CORPORATION LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement - Standalone

{Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cashflows from Operating activities
A) [Net Profit before tax 1,732.59 381.38
Add:
Finarcial expensas 12.83 16.96
Depreciation 151.44 144.67
Interest Received {151.87) {120.26)
Dividend Received {21.93) (22.41)
Gratuity paid during the year {3.79) -
Fair Value Gain / Loss on Financial Instruments (FVTPL) (856.39) {4.55)
Provision for Gratuity {0.54) 2.99
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets 3.46 -
Qperating Profit before Working Capital changes 866.20 398.79
Add :
{Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables (31.78) 24.84
(Increase) decrease in other assets (168.94) {8.10)
Increase/ {decrease) in {rade payables 8.54 {14.70)
Increase/ (decrease) in other liabilities [9.20} 375
(201.36} 65.7%
Cash generated from operations before taxes 664.84 464.58
Less: Income taxes paid, net {250.00) {165.10)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 414.84 299.48
B) |CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase on property, plant & equipment {151.72) (3.73)
Proceeds from property, plant & equipment 11.00 0.20
(Purchase) / sale of Non current Investments 40.50 (187.50)
(Purchase) /sale of current investments {376.54) 24,72
(Increase) / Decrease in Fixed Deposits 264.90 246.49
Interest received 133.53 ic3.12
Dividend received 21.93 22.41
Net cash flow from investing activities (B) {56.40) 205.70
C) [CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment for lease liabilties (75.45) (73.00}
{Increase)Decrease in Non current Loans and Advances (10.65} {9.93}
{Increase)/Decrease in current Loans & Advances {149.45} {161.86}
Net cash from financing activities  {C) {235.55) (244.79)
Net increase /(decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C) 122.88 260.39
Cash & Cash equivalents as at beginning of period 1,116.25 855.86
Cash & Cash equivalents as at closing of petiod 1,235.14 1,116.25
Net increase/(decrease) as disclosed above 122.88 260.39
Figures in brackets Indicate outflow
Componenents of Cash & Cash Equivalent
Balance with Banks 48453 372.00
Balance with Bank in unpaid dividend account 2.33 4,51
Cash on Hand 0.06 0.41
Other Bank Balances - Fixed Deposits fess than three months 752,22 739.34
Total Cash & Cash equivalents as at closing of period 1,239.14 1,116.25

Note:- The opening and clesing balance of cash & cash equivalent for previous year is regrouped to allign with cash & cash

/ ()()RPOABY)

equivalent of current year.

For and behalf of the Board

‘YLAX&:TZ)DW

For Ramesh M. Sheth & Assoociates
Firm Registration Ne. : 111883W

\ L e Nita T. Tanna - Chairperson
- ﬁ',- ¥ @ .. DIN : 00170591
- : ”\ \
o ¢ AUDITORS
TR '?9’595}}-
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Anupa Tanna Shah - Managing Director:
DIN : 1587901
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NOTE: 4
INVESTMENT IN PROPERTY

The changes in the carrying value of Invesiment in property for the year ended 31 March 2024 are as follows:

{ Rupess in Lakhs )

Particulars Land Building Investment
At cost

Leasehold Land at Aamby Valley City-Flot No.85 101.79 - 101.79
Building at Panchshil Tech Park - 1,599.43 1,595.43
Balance as at 1 April 2022 101.79 1,599.43 1,701.22
Additions - - -
Disposals / Adjustments - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 101.79 1,599.43 1,701.22
Additions - - -
Disposals / Adjustments - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 101.79 1,599.43 1,701.22
Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Balance as at 1 April 2022 - 169.43 169.43
Depreciation expense - 30.61 30.61
Disposals ) - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 - 200.04 200.04
Depreciation expense - 30.70 30.70
Disposals - - -
Balance as at 31st March 2024 - 230.74 230.74
Carrying amount

Balance as at 31 March 2023 10179 1,399.39 1,501.18
Balance as at 31 March 2024 101.79 1,368.69 1,470.48

(a) Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment property for the year ended 31 March 2024 are as_

follows:

( Rupess in Lakhs )

Particulars

Year Ended
31 March 2024

Year Ended
31 March 2023

Income from Operation & Maintenance of Software

Development Park 1,160.27 1,262.81
Total Income from Properties 1,160.27 1,262.81
Less : Direct Operating Expenses

Repairs and Maintenance 63.11 78.38
Housekeeping Expenditure 70.16 65.20
Electricity Expenses 31.67 24.64
Property / Municipal Tax/Land Tax/N.A, Tax 29.93 28.31
STP Charges 6.00 6.00
Profit arising from Investment properties before depreciation 959.41 1,060.28
Less:

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 119.97 120.39
Total Income form Investment Properties 839.44 939.89

(b} Fair Value of Investment Property ("Approx"} for the year ended 31 March 2024 are as follows :

{ Rupess in Lakhs )

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Investment in Properties

8,546.12

8,546.12

Estimation of Fair value:

The fair value of investment property has been determined by external, independent property registered valuer and recent
experience in the location and category of the property being valued. The best evidence of fair value is current price in an

active market for similar properties.

investment in property includes leasehold land at Aamby Vailey City Lonawala.The court has appointed a receiver for this
property. The court has debarred anyone from entering into the premises. In such circumstances, the management is
unable to obtain a Valuation Report from a registered valuer. The fair market vaiue of the property is estimated by the

management at its equivalent cost.
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Notes forming a part of the financial statements
NOTE : 5

LEASES

Following are the changes in the carrying value of the right of use assets for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Particulars ( Rupess in Lakhs )
Balance as at 1 April 2023 234.01
Recognizing right-to-use asset using the modified retrospective method as per Ind AS 116

Addition during year -
Deletion during year -
Depreciation (83.99)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 150.03

Following are the movement in lease liability during the year ended 31 March 2024

Particulars { Rupess in Lakhs }
Balance as at 1 April 2023 211.35
Addition during year -
Deletion during year -
Add Finance Cost accrued during the year 12.83
Less Cash Outflow towards lease liabilities {75.45)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 148.73

Following are the breakups of current and non-current lease liabilities as at 31 March 2024

Particulars { Rupess in Lakhs )

Current Lease Liabilities 23.11
Non-Current Lease Liabilties 125.62
Total 148.73

Lease liabilities =
A maturity analysis of lease liabilities as of 31 March 2024 is set forth below:
Undiscounted future minimum lease payments

Particulars ( Rupess in Lakhs )
Not later than one year 78.02
Later than one year and not later than five years 83.30
Later than five years -
Discounting effect {12.59)
Total Lease Liabilities 148.73
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Following are the changes in the carrying value of the right of use assets for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Particulars { Rupess in Lakhs )
Balance as at 1 April 2022 198.12
Recognizing right-to-use asset using the modified retrospective method as per Ind AS 116

Addition during year 119.88
Deletion during year -
Depreciation (83.99)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 234.01

Following are the movement in lease liability during the year ended 31 March, 2023

[Particulars {Rupess in Lakhs )
Balance as at 1 April 2022 202.61
Addition during year 64.77
Deletion during year -
Add Finance Cost accrued during the year 16.96
Less Cash Qutflow towards lease liabilities (73.00)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 211.35

Following are the breakups of current and non-current lease liabilities as at 31 March 2023

Particulars ( Rupess in Lakhs )
Current Lease Liabilities 148.73
Non-Current Lease Liabilties 62.62
Total 211.35

Lease liabilities —
A maturity analysis of lease liabilities as of 31 March 2023 is set forth below:
Undiscounted future minimum lease payments '

Particulars -

{ Rupess in Lakhs )

Not later than one year

75.45

Later than one year and not later than five years

161.33

Later than five years

Discounting effect

Total Lease Liabilities
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements

( Rupess in Lakhs )

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Note- 6

Non-current Investments

Unguoted
{(a) Investment in Equity instruments
i.In Subsidiary
Goldcrest Habitats Pvt Ltd.
10,000 (10,000} Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each Fully paid up
Investment in Equity instruments-others Related parties

ii.in_ Associates

Goldcrest Solutions Pvt. Lid.(Face Value of Rs. 10/- each)
0 (12,50,000} Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each Fully paid up

(b) Invesiment in Partnership firm:
Goldcrest Selutions LLP - Fixed Capital Account

(¢} Investment in Compulsory convertible Preference Shares

In Others
Deskfactars Technologies Pvt. Lid.

67 (67) Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares face value Rs.10/-
each fully paid up

1.00

147.00

50.28

1.00

187.50

50.28

Aggregate amount of unquoted investment

198.28

238.78
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements

{ Rupess in Lakhs )

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Note -7

Other Financial Assets

Security Deposits

- Related Parties 280.37 262.03

- Others 35.38 35.08
Total 315.75 297.11
Note - 8
Other Non-current Asseis
Capital Advances - 75.00
Advance for property

- Related Parties 151.00 -
Receivable from Revenue Authorities (TDS Receivables) 45.55 27.45
Total 196.55 102.45
Note -9
Current Investments
(In accordance with Ind-As 109, management has considered investment
in shares & securities as short term in nature)

(&) Investment in equity instruments (fully paid up)-FVTPL

Quoted 3,068.45 1,986.96
(b} Investment in Mutual Funds-FVTPL

Quoted 1,072.71 650.74
{c) Investment in Government & Trust Securities-FVTPL

Treasury Bill - 344.02
( Pledged with Ved Brothers for Margin)

{d) Invesiment in Partnership firm:

Golderest Solutions LLP - Current Account 73.50 -
Aggregate amount of quoted investment 4,214.65 2,981.72
Aggregate amount of unquoted investment 73.50 -
Total 4,288.15
Note - 10
Trade Receivables
Trade Receivables

Unsecured, considerad good 46.55

{Refer Note No. 30A for Ageing Schedule)

Total 46.55 14.79
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements

( Rupess in Lakhs )

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Note - 11 ]
Cash & Cash Equivalents

Balance with Banks 484 .53 372.00
Balance with Bank in unclaimed dividend account 2.33 4,51
Cash on Hand 0.06 0.41
Fixed Deposits less than three months 752.22 739.34
Total 1,239.14 1,116.25
Bank balance otherthan above
Fixed Deposits more than three months 190.00 454.90
Total 190.00 454.90
Note- 12
Loans
Loans considered goods, unsecured
Loan to Related Parties 848.13 683.62
Others 118.00 138.00
966.13 821.62
L oan to Employees 4.94 -
4.94 -
Total 971.07 821.62
Note - 13
Other Financial Assets
Accruals
Interest accrued but not due on Bank Deposits 3541 29.06
Note - 14
Other Current Assets
(a) Prepaid expenses 5.04 5.26
{b) Other Advances 75.06 -
Total 80.10 5.26
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements
{ Rupess in Lakhs }

As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2024| 31 March 2023

Note - 15
Equity Share Capital
Authorised Share Capital
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 1,010.00 1,010.00
1,01,00,000 (1,01,00,000) Equity shares of Rs.
10/- each . :
Preference Shares of As.100/- each 1,000.00 1,000.00
10,00,000 (10,00,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10/-
each

Total 2,010.00 2,010.00

Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid-up Shares
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 568.98 568.98

56,89,760 (56,89,760) Equity shares of Rs. 10/-
each

Total o 568.98 568.98
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements
( Rupess in Lakhs )

. As at . Asat
Particulars ' 31 March 2024| 31 March 2023
Note - 16
Other Equity
{A) Capital Reserves
As per last balance sheet 282.48 282.48
Add / less: Transferred from General Reserve - -
Sub Total of (A) at the end of the year ) 282.48 282.48
(B) Share Premium Account
As per last balance sheet : 524.22 524.22
Add /(Less) : Utilised for Buy back of Equity Shares - -
Sub Total of (B} at the end of the year 524.22 524.22
(C) General Reserves
As per last balance sheet 92.30 : 92.30
Add / (Less) : Transferred to Capital Reserve _ - -
Sub Total of (C) at the end of the year 92.30 92.30
{D} Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
As per last Balance Sheet _ 5,192.16 4,888.39
Add : Profit for the year ‘ 1,253.06 303.01
: Other Comprehensive income {1.17) 0.57
Total comprehensive income 1,291.88 303.58
Add/(Less) : Short / Excess Tax W.back/ W.Off. - -
Income Tax Effect relating to remeasurement of the defined benefit plans (0.40) 0.19
Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss (D) 6,483.65 5,192.16
Total of {A)+{B)+(C}+(D) 7,382.66 6,091.17

Nature and purpose of each reserve

Capital Reserve - On forfeiture of partly paid equity shares and buy-back of shares
Securities Premium Reserve - The amount received in excess of the face value of equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium
Reserve.

General Reserve - The reserve arises on transfer of a portion of the net profit pursuant to the earlier provisions of Companies Act 1956,
Mandatory transfer to General Reserve is not required under the Companies Act 2013.
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements

( Rupess in Lakhs }

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Non-Current Financial Liabilities

Note - 17 ‘
Other Financial Liabilities

Security Deposits
(Refundable deposit received from licensees of Tech Park,Pune}

Total

Note - 18
Provisions (Non-Current)

Provision for Employee Benefit
Total

NOTE - 19

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

Qpening deferred tax liabilities

Add : On account of depreciation, non current Investment and gratuity

Total

Note - 20

Trade Payables

Qutstanding dues of micro enterprise and small enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enierprises :

(Refer Note No. 30B for Ageing Schedule)

Total

536.87 536.87
536.87 536.87
28.10 32.43
28.10 32.43
299.33 386.07
189.94 (86.74)
489.27 299.33
65.97 57.43
65.97 57.43

[PY T
e S
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements

- { Rupess in Lakhs }

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Note - 21
Other Financial Liabilities
Duties & Taxes

Others:

- Related Parties

- Others
The company has made full provision of disputed electricity dues
amounting to Rs. 1,85,59,436/- with Maharashtra State Electricity
Distribution Co. Ltd during the year 2017-18 out of which 50% such dues
are paid. The matter is disputed by the company before appropriate
authority.

Unpaid Dividend
Total

Note - 22

Provisions (Current)

Provision for Employee Benefit
Total

16.19 2134
95.12 96.99
2.33 4.51
113.64 122.84
2.72 1.15
2.72 1.15
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements

( Rupess in Lakhs )

For the For the
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023

Note - 23

Revenue from Operations

Income from Operaticn & Maintenance of Software
Development Park
Revenue from Tresury Operation & Investments

Other Operating Bevenue

Total

Note - 24
Other Icome
Interest Income

Fair Value Gain / (Loss) on Financial Instruments (FVTPL)
Other Non Operative Income

Total

1,160.27 1,262.81
403.74 {155.53)
21.93 2241
1,585.94 1,129.69
151.87 120.26
856.39 4.55
0.77 -

1,009.04 124.81

N)U‘J 'i m l;{g

1;:98 Q

w/%f
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements

( Rupess in Lakhs )

For the For the
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Note - 25
Employee Benefit Expense
(a) Salaries and Wages _ 211.92 206.06
b)C ihuti Provid lari dw
(b) Contribution to Provident & Other FundSalaries an ages 255 9.81
(c) Staff Welfare Expenses 14.23 10.04
Total 233.70 22591
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Notes forming part of Financial Statemenis

{ Rupess in Lakhs )

For the, For the
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Note - 26
Other Expenses
Share Trading Expenses 93.33 48.04
Travelling, Conveyance and Petrol Expenses 76.68 35.85
Legal, Professional Fees, Commission & Brokerage 27.33 112.99
Directers Sitting Fees - 1.40
Repairs and Maintenance 63.11 78.56
Property / Municipal Tax /Land Tax/N.A. Tax 29.93 28.31
Stamp Duty / Registration / Transfer / Agreement Charges 0.05 4.32
Postage, Courier, Telephone & Office Expenses 16.95 13.88
Housekeeping Expenditure
- Houskeeping Material Charges 2.85 -
- Houskeeping Labour Charges 67.31 65.20
Security Service Charges 0.26 -
Delisting Expenditure 0.47 6.95
Amaigamation Related Expenditure 11.74 -
Loss on Discard of Fixed Assets 3.46 0.20
STP Charges 6.00 6.00
Advertising Expenses 0.21 1.04
Electricity Expenses 31.67 28.97
Audititors Remunerations
- Statutory Audit Fees 1.50 1.50
Annual Listing Fees - 3.00
Printing & Stationery 2.11 2.15
Donation
- CSR Donation 5.00 5.22
- Other Donation 0.41 5.27
Other Expenses 23.66 36.72
Total 464.01 485.57
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Annexure - 9

GOLDCREST GLOBAL TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN U74999MH1994PTCO76391
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

(Rs. In Lakhs)

As at As at

Particulars Note No 31 March 2024| 31 March 2023

I. Equity And Liabilities
1) shareholders' Funds
A) Share Capital i 7.04 7.04
B) Reserves & Surplus . 2 1,398.95 1,398.59

2) Non - Current Liabilities

3) Current Liabilities 3

A) Short - term Borrowings 58.00 -
B) Trade Payables
a)total outstanding dues of micro enterprise
and Small Enterprises: and

b)total outstanding dues of creditors other

than micro enterprises and smalil entprise. 493.97 494,09

C) Other Current Liabilities 4 27.27 27.29
TOTAL . 1,985.24 1,927.01
II. Assets
1) Non - Current Assets

A) Non - Current Investments 5 1,807.93 1,724.78

B) Long - term leans And Advances ] - 15.00

C) Other Non - Currents Assets . 7 154.60 154.69
2) Current Assets ‘

A) Cash And Cash Equivalent 8 22.70 32.54
TOTAL 1,985.24 1,927.01

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
JAS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

FOR RAMESH M. SHETH & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS .
FRN:111883W ;

GOLDCREST GLOBAL TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

(\N@ T Java f*‘\W@

| (b
MEHUL R. SHETH

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR .
{PARTNER) : NITA TUSHAR TANNA ANUPA TANNA SHAR,
MEMBERSHIP NO. 101598 DIN NO. 00170591 DIN NO. 01587901
PLACE:- MUMBAI ‘ Mumbai

pate- 24]0¥ hnw : pate- 2N |8 R faoay
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GOLDCREST GLOBAL TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN U74999MH1994PTCO76391
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31 MARCH 2024

{Rs.in Lakhs)

For the For the
Particulars Note No Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Continuing Operations
I. Revenue from Operations 9 - 112,19
II. Other Income 10 1.04 17.49
III. Total Income (I + II) 1.04 129.67
IV. Expenses:
Other Expenses 11 0.54 42.80
Total Expenses 0.54 42.80
V. Profit Before Exceptional Item and Tax (III-IV) 0.50 86.88
VI. Exceptional Items - -
VII. Profit Before Tax (V-VI) 0.50 86.88
VIII. Tax Expense:
1) Current Tax 0.14 14.50
2) MAT Tax - -
IX. Profit After Tax (VII-VIII) 0.36 72.38
X. Profit / {(Loss) for the period 0.36 72.38
XI. Earnings per Equity Share:
1) Basic 0.51 102.82
2) Diluted 0.51 102.82

See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

For Ramesh M. Sheth & Associates
Chartered Accountants

MEHUL SHETH
(Partner)

Mumbai

pate :- 24 [og] 202y

For and on Behalf of

GOLDCREST GLOBAL TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

DIRECTOR

NITA TUSHAR TANNA ANUPA TANNA SHAH

DIN NO. 00170591 DIN NO. 01587901

Mumbai

DIRECTOR

Date:-2M] 0O i 20y
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GOLDCREST GLOBAL TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN U74939MH1994PTC076391

Notes to financial statements for the Year ending 31 March 2024

2.3) |Terms and rights to equity shares:

The Campany has two class of equity shares (Class A & Class B) having a par value of Rs. 10 each.
Fach Shareholder under Class A is entitied to one vote per share.

Sharehalders hotding shares under Class B are not entitled to any voting rights

Dividend, if any, fs declared and paid in Indian rupees.

The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Maeting.

Year ended 31 March

2.4) |Details of Share holders holding more than 5% of Class "A" Equity Shares at the end of the year Year ended 31 March 2024 2023
% of No. of
Names of P t T f Share!
s or Frmoter yps o s No. of Shares | Holding | Shares | % of Holding
- {Equity {Par value at Rs. 10 .
Mrs.Hansa Tanna each - Class -A) 4,107 7.92 4,107 7.92
{Equity {Par value at Rs. 10
Mrs. Nita Tushar Tanna each - Class -A) 34,137 65.86 34,137 65.86
(Equity (Par value at Rs. 10
Perigue Properties LLP each - Class -A) 9,626 18.57 9,626 18.57
Total 47,870 92.36 47,870 §2.35
Details of Share holders holding more than 5% of Class "B" carrying Non-voting Right Equity Shares at the end of Year ended 31 March
the year Year ended 31 March 2024 2023
Names of Prmoter Typs of Shares % of No. of

No. of Shares | Holding Shares | % of Holding

{Equity {Par value atRs. 10
Mrs. Nita Tushar Tanna each - Class -B) 18,557 100.00 18,557 100.00

2.5) IRights, preferences and restrictions

* The Company has two class of shares referred to as class "A" Equity Shares having par value of 10 each and class "B" Equity shares having par value of
Rs. 10/- each carrying Non - voting Rights . Class "A" holder of Equity Shares is entitled to one vote per share and .class "B" does not etitiled to vote.

Dividend, if any, is declared and paid in Indian rupees. The dividend, if any, propesed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. However, in view of the carry forward losses, no dividend isfwas declared on the Equity Shares for
the year ended March 31, 2024.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of ali preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Shares held by Promoters Class "A'

Equity Shares As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
94 Change % Change
No. of| % of Total " No. of| % of Total N
Names of Prmoter Shares Shares during the Shares Shares during the
year year
Mrs.Hansa Tanna 4,107 7.92 - 4,107 7.92 -
Mrs. Nita Tushar Tanna 34,137 65.86 - 34,137 65.86 -
Perique Properties LLP 9,626 18.57 - 9,626 18.57 -
Mrs, Anupa Tanna Shah 1,884 3.63 B 1,884 363 -
Ms. Namrata Tushar Tanna 1,884 3.63 .- 1,884 3.63 -
Tushar T. Tanna HUF 61 012 - 61 0.12 -
Fliessen Real Estate LLP 133 0.26 - 133 0.26 -
Total 51,832 100.00 - 51,832 100.0¢ -

|Shares held by promoter Class * As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

% Change % Change
No. of{ % of Total - No. of| % of Total -
Names of Prmoter Shares Shares during the Shares Shares during the
year year
Mrs. Nita Tushar Tanna 18,557 100.00 - 18,557 100.00 -
Total 18,557 100.00 - 18,557 100.00 -
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GOLDCREST GLCBAL TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN U7T4599MH1394PTCO76391
Grouping
. Asat As at
sr.no Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
3 A)Short Term Borrowings
Perique Properties LLP 58.00 -
Disputed dues- Cthers
Trade Payable Ageing Schedule for the year ended as on March 31 2024
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 1 1-2 years| 2-3 years Mare than 3 Total
year years
Ramesh M. Sheth & Associates 0.06 - - - 0.06
Bhor Industries Limited - - - 13.07 13.07
Goldcrest Corperation Limited - - - 24418 244,18
Golderest Solutions LLP - - - 236.66 236.66
Total 0.06 - - 493.91 493.97 49397 494.09
Trade Payable Ageing Schedule for the year ended as on March 31 2023
QOutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 1 1-2 years| 2-3years More than 3 Total
year years
Ramesh M. Sheth & Associates 0.06 612 - - 0.18
Bhor Industries Limited - - - 13.07 13.07
Goldcrest Corporation Limited - - - 244,18 24418
Goldcrest Solutions LLP - - - 236.66 236.66
Total 0.06 0.12 - 493.91 494.0%
4 Other Current Liabilities
(a) Other loans and advances
Total - -
5 {b) Short term provisions-
Tax Provision AY 2021-22 {Net) 10.73 10.73
Tax Provision AY 2022-23 {Net ) 2054 20.54
Tax Provision AY 2020-21 (Net } {4.06) (4.06)
Tax Provision AY 2023-24 (Net } 0,08 0.09
TAX provision AY. 2024-25 (Net) (0.02)
Total 27.27 27.29
6 Long-term Loans and Advances
Total - -
Rubman Polymers Pvt. Ltd. 15.00
Total - 15.00
7 Lther Non-current Assets,
MAT credit Entitelment of Assessment year 19-20 154.18 154.24
Accurued Interzst on FD 0.42 .46
154.60 154.69
8
Balance with Banks
- HDFC Bank Limited 012
- HDFC Bank Limited -E - Tax 015 017
- Kotak Mahindra Bank - Escrow Account {Delisting} 0.15
- Kotak Mahindra Bank 2.52 2.03
Totai balance with bank 2.67 2.51
Cash on Hand 0.03 .03
Other Bank Balances - Fixed Deposits less than twelve months 20.00 30.00
Total 22.70 32.54
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Annexure 10

Goldcrest Corporation Limited
CIN: U74999MH1983PLC029408
Registered Office: 3rd Floor, Devidas Mansion, Mereweather Road, Colaba, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400001, India
Email: office@goldcrestgroup.com

PROXY FORM
Form No. MGT-11

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member(s):

Registered address:

E-mail ID: Folio No./Client ID: DP ID:
1/ We being the member(s) of shares Goldcrest Corporation Limited , hereby appoint -
1)Name

Address
Email id Signature: Or failing him / her
2)Name

Address

Email id Signature: Or failing him / her
3)Name
Address
Email id Signature: Or failing him / her

as my / our proxy and whose signature(s) are appended below to attend and vote (on Poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the Meeting of the
Company to be held at 3rd Floor, Devidas Mansion, Mereweather Road, Colaba, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400001 on Thursday, October 10, 2024
at 10 AM and at any adjournment or adjournments thereof in respect of such resolutions and in such manner as are indicated below:

Sr. No. | Particulars

1 Approval of Scheme of Arrangement of Goldcrest Global Trading Private Limited with Goldcrest Corporation Limited and their
respective Shareholders — Hon’ble NCLT convened meeting
Signed this day of 2024
Affix Re. 1

Revenue Stamp

(Signature of shareholder(s)

Signature of Proxy

NOTES:

1. This form in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at 3rd Floor, Devidas
Mansion, Mereweather Road, Colaba, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400001, India.

. Please affix revenue stamp before putting signature.
. Alterations, if any, made in the Form of Proxy should be initialed.
. In case of multiple proxies, the proxy later in time shall be accepted.

. Proxy need not be the shareholder of the Company.

AN L A WD

. Body Corporate would be required to deposit certified copies of Board/ Custodial Resolutions/Power of Attorney in original, as the case may be,
authorizing the individuals named therein, to attend and vote at the meeting on its behalf. These documents must be deposited at the Registered
Office of the Applicant Transferee Company at 3rd Floor, Devidas Mansion, Mereweather Road, Colaba, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400001,
India at least 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.

7. The Proxies should carry their identity proof'i.e., a Pan Card / Aadhaar card / Passport / Driving License.
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Annexure 11

Goldcrest Corporation Limited
CIN: U74999MH1983PLC029408
Registered Office: 3rd Floor, Devidas Mansion, Mereweather Road, Colaba, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400001, India
Email: office@goldcrestgroup.com .

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Name :

Address :

Folio/D.P. ID:

Client I.D. No.:

No. of Equity shares held:

I /We hereby record my / our presence at the Meeting, of the Equity Shareholders of the Company at 3rd Floor, Devidas Mansion, Mereweather
Road, Colaba, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400001 on Thursday, October 10, 2024 at 10 AM pursuant to the Order of the Hon’ble Tribunal dated
August 12, 2024.

SIGNATURE OF THE ATTENDING MEMBER/PROXY

NOTES:

(1)  Shareholder/Proxy holder wishing to attend the meeting must bring the Attendance Slip to the meeting and hand over at the entrance duly
signed.

(2)  Shareholder/Proxy holder desiring to attend the meeting should bring his/her copy of the Notice for reference at the meeting.
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Annexure 12

ROUTE MAP

Churchgate to Goldcrest Corporation Limited, Devidas Mansion, 3rd Floor, Mereweather Road, Colaba, Mumbai — 400 001

Chhatrapati Shivaji Terminus to Goldcrest Corporation Limited, Devidas Mansion, 3rd Floor, Mereweather Road, Colaba,
Mumbai — 400 001
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